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Medallion Financial Corp. is a publicly traded finance company (nasdaq: taxi) with leading positions  

in three niche markets: Taxi Medallion Lending, Commercial Lending and Small Business Investments.
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To our sTocKHolders

When Leon Murstein bought  

his first taxi medallion as an  

immigrant in New York City in 

1937, he knew about building a 

business during tough economic 

times. Amid the adversity of the 

Great Depression, he established 

the sound principles upon which  

Medallion Financial would  

eventually grow. 

Today, as we face economic  

turbulence of equally historic  

proportions, our company is  

faring well because of those sound 

principles. We know who we are 

and we have adhered closely to our 

core basic businesses of investing 

and lending in niche industries 

based on relationships and trust. 

We continue to provide hope and 

opportunity to thousands of  

individuals and small businesses  

during challenging economic  

times. 

Thanks to our strong sense of  

identity, combined with the talent 

and dedication of our people, our 

company is weathering the recent 

global financial crises and we will 

continue to hold strong until after 

the storm has passed.

In 2008, we worked hard to keep 

the fundamentals of our business  

strong. And in spite of the  

worsening economy, we finished  

the year strong – something few 

other companies are able to say in 

this extreme economic climate.  

Because we have focused steadily  

on our core businesses, we did 

not venture into the more exotic 

financial products that are now 

proving toxic to businesses and the 

economy. As a result, our company 

remains healthy, profitable and 

poised to grow steadily long into 

the future.

Here are some of our benchmarks 

for 2008: 

n  Total assets under management, 

which in 2007 had surpassed the 

$1 billion mark for the first time 

in our company’s history, increased  

6 percent to $1.08 billion in 2008. 

n  Loan delinquencies, which  

had been at record low levels,  

continued at near-record low  

levels throughout 2008. 

n  Taxi medallion prices rose  

to new, historic levels, reaching 

$747,000 per corporate medallion 

in New York City.

n  A newly acquired loan portfolio 

gave Medallion Bank access for 

the first time to the thriving taxi 

medallion market in Miami. 

n  Our quarterly dividend was 

maintained at $0.19 per share.

The changing landscape of the 

financial sector in the second half 

of 2008 necessarily led us to make 

some changes in our relationships 

with credit facilities. We wound 

down our credit facility with  

Merrill Lynch, a relationship we 

were pleased to maintain for many 

years, and established a new credit 

facility in the amount of $200  

million with DZ Bank of Germany. 

We continue to utilize a diverse 

blend of resources for our credit  

facilities and have access to  

excellent credit. We renewed our 

commercial paper facility agreement  

with Citicorp North America  

for $225 million for another  

year. We thank Merrill Lynch for 

the many years of support, and 

welcome DZ Bank to what we  

anticipate will be a long and  

successful relationship.

In our core business of investing  

and lending in taxi medallions,  

we believe the continued rise in  

taxi medallion prices indicates  

the strength of that market even  

during the economic crisis, and  

we remain well positioned for  

future expansion and growth,  

especially in markets beyond  

New York. In addition to a new  

record-high corporate medallion  

price of $747,000 in New York, 

taxi medallion prices in Chicago 

have more than tripled in the past 

several years as well. 



We know who we are and we have adhered closely to our core  
basic businesses of investing and lending in niche industries based  
on relationships and trust.

Andrew M. Murstein, President          Alvin Murstein, Chairman & CEO
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As we watched markets around 

the world drop in the latter part 

of 2008, we are reminded of the 

enduring strength of the taxi  

medallion as an asset class, which 

over many decades has performed 

better than any other commodity  

on the market today, be it real 

estate, currency, oil, or even gold. 

Additionally, the loan-to-value  

ratio on our medallion portfolio 

is now below 50 percent, which 

provides additional comfort as to 

our credit quality in the current  

economic climate.

A new development in 2008 for  

Medallion Bank’s taxi portfolio 

was the acquisition of a $25 million 

portfolio of taxi medallion loans 

from Elk Associates Funding  

Corporation, whose parent  

company is Ameritrans Capital  

Corporation. In addition to  

growing Medallion Bank’s  

portfolio, this transaction also 

provided entry into Miami, a new 

and strong taxi medallion lending 

market, which is a perfect fit for 

our company as a whole. 

Medallion Bank continues to be a 

strong and profitable investment, 

with more than $400 million in 

assets and steady growth even  

under difficult economic  

conditions. We established the 

bank five years ago for times 

exactly such as these, and the bank 

provides us a dependable source 

of low cost funds. Although all 

institutions, large and small, have 

been affected by the residual 

effects of the lending crisis, there 

have been new opportunities  

that have arisen as some of our 

competitors pare down their  

businesses and shed non-core  

services. Largely due to the  

excellent source of low-cost funds 

available through the bank, we 

expect the health and growth  

of our operations to continue 

steadily into 2009.

In the commercial lending 

divisions of our company, we have 

maintained and grown excellent  

portfolios. When we look at loans 

on our balance sheet, as well as 

loans that we originated and  

service for various participants,  

we grew by 14 percent. As many  

of our competitors begin exiting  

the asset based lending arena,  

we anticipate abundant new  

opportunities for growth in 2009.

With our strong balance sheet and 

continued conservative underwriting  

standards, we believe investors 

will appreciate the strength of 

our portfolio and consider a flight 

to quality when evaluating our 

company. 

Our exceptional board of  

directors ensures the high quality 

and integrity of our organization.  

We are privileged to have on our  

board a diverse and accomplished  

roster of professionals from the  

worlds of finance, public service  

and sports and entertainment.  

Six of the board’s nine members  

are “disinterested” directors,  

according to regulatory definitions,  

attesting to the truly independent 

spirit of this group. Prominent 

former elected officials, successful 

business owners and entrepreneurs 

serve on our board, along with a 

director who is both a member of 

the Baseball Hall of Fame and a 

recipient of the Presidential  

Medal of Freedom.

Finally, our company is able to 

put its best foot forward daily 

due to our talented and dedicated 

employees, who work tirelessly on 

behalf of our customers and you, 

our shareholders. We look forward 

to speaking with you in 2009.

Alvin Murstein 

Chairman &  

Chief Executive Officer

 

Andrew M. Murstein 

President



,

Medallion Bank completed  
its fifth year of operation  
in 2008. With $435 million  
in assets, the bank loan  
portfolio grew by 26%  
over the past year.

Total Managed  
Taxi Medallion Loans  
are near an  
all time high at 
$591 million.* 

Confidence in our customers’ ability to weather the storm and  
grow their own business has been a cornerstone of our success.

L E N D I N G  O V E R V I E W   

Medallion Financial Strength –– Helping Business Grow
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2008

Total  
Loans 
increased 
 

26%

2008

Total  
Managed 
Taxi Loan  
Portfolio 
near record high

$591 million*

* including managed for 
   unaffiliated investors



,

Medallion Financial Strength –– Helping Business Grow

Medallion Business  
Credit enjoyed continued  
success in 2008, with over  
$100 million in loans to  
small and mid-sized  
businesses. This division  
continued to benefit from  
strong relationships and 
rapidly expanding business  
that came as a result of our  
new office in New Jersey  
serving a larger client base.

Medallion Financial has  
historically provided  
additional taxi medallion  
loans and small business  
loans through Freshstart  
Venture Capital Corp.  
This unit provides financing  
as an SBIC and continues  
to make loans to owners of  
garage and maintenance  
facilities for taxi fleets, and  
to other small businesses.

Our Generation Outdoor, Inc.  
investment exemplifies 
the sound strategies 
of the out-of-home  
advertising market.

O T h E r  O P E r A T I O N S
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2008

Gross 
Loan  
Portfolio 
over 

$100 million*

2008

Managed  
Mezzanine Loan  
and Investment  
Portfolio 
increased

11%

2008

Freshstart 
Managed  
Loan  
Portfolio 
increased

7%

An  
increasingly 
important  
factor 
in its niche 
marketplace.

Medallion Capital, Inc.  
saw its mezzanine portfolio  
grow to over $65 million  
in loans and investments.  
Success lies in the continued  
strategy of doing business  
with long-term, trusted  
relationship partners. The  
team has been able to endure  
challenging market conditions  
even against fierce competition.

* includes loans on balance sheet and 
   participated to various institutions



Medallion BanK

Medallion Bank, our wholly-owned portfolio investment, completed its fifth year of operation in 2008. 

With $435 million in assets, the bank’s loan portfolio grew by 26 percent over the past year.

With each passing year, the bank serves as a strong financial partner  

for many of our operations, fueling growth in key business lines. The 

bank extends Medallion Financial’s reach and also assists customers  

directly through its recreational, consumer and small business loan  

portfolios. Established in 2003, Medallion Bank is an FDIC-insured  

industrial bank chartered in Utah. Medallion Bank continues to be  

a steadily profitable investment for Medallion Financial.  

The recreational loan portfolio grew in 2008 to include RV, boat,  

horse trailer, motorcycle and hearing aid loans. Despite the drop in  

many consumer business segments in 2008 due to the nationwide  

economic downturn, the bank’s lending businesses remain healthy  

and sound, with low delinquencies.

In the 2008 fourth quarter, Medallion Bank acquired a $25 million port-

folio of taxi medallion loans from Elk Associates Funding Corporation,  

a subsidiary of Ameritrans Capital Corporation. 

The bank turned in a strong performance despite a weakening US economy, which is affecting all  

players, big and small, in the lending markets. We anticipate Medallion Bank will continue to be a 

solid and steady investment, with continued growth in 2009.
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medallion financi al cor p. annual r eport

Medallion Bank provides a  
strong financial basis for much  

of our operations fueling growth  
for the entire company.



Subsequent to year end, Medallion Bank received $11.8 million from the US Treasury’s TARP  

program. That money can now be leveraged conservatively in the bank with low cost deposits and 

help generate additional net interest income as the funds are deployed.

Ta xi Medallion lending

Taxi medallions have been one of the best asset classes to lend against in the United States for 

more than 50 years and we are proud to be an industry leader. During slower economic times 

the taxi industry often thrives for many reasons – additional manpower to drive taxis, mandated  

availability of credit card acceptance in every taxi, corporate cutbacks 

that reduce limousine and black car services – and the year 2008 was no  

exception. Taxi medallion prices in each of our markets continued to rise 

to record high levels. 

Taxi medallions are the legal permits required to operate a taxi in a number  

of municipalities across the country. Because cities control and regulate 

their number and distribution, medallions tend to stabilize and increase 

in price over time. Since the 1930s, when our company’s founder Leon  

Murstein first began buying medallions, we have found this to be an  

extremely attractive niche market. 

Our current portfolio of managed medallion loans, including loans  

underwritten by Medallion Bank, remains in good health. The portfolio 

now has a loan-to-value ratio of less than 50 percent. Our credit quality 

remains extremely sound and delinquencies have been kept low. 
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Taxi medallion prices in each 
of our markets continued to rise  
to record high levels in 2008.

medallion financi al cor p. annual r eport



In 2008, through the acquisition of a substantial loan portfolio from Elk Associates Funding  

Corporation, Medallion Bank added a new market, Miami, to the existing five metropolitan  

area markets that we serve, which include New York, Chicago, Boston-Cambridge, Newark, and  

Philadelphia. This was an excellent fit for our portfolio, and we continue to look to new markets for 

future expansion. 

Medallion prices in New York City are currently at record-high levels, with a corporate medallion in 

2008 priced at $747,000, up from $600,000 in 2007, and an individual  

medallion in 2008 priced at $547,000, up from $425,000 in 2007. 

In Chicago the price reached $155,000, a substantial increase from  

$100,000 last year. 

The taxi medallion lending business has come a long way since 1937, but   

ironically we once again find ourselves in an economic crisis that rivals  

conditions in the 1930s. Then as now, we made a name for ourselves  

through our personal relationships, holding steadfast to our core  

businesses, and our ability to work through diff icult times. These  

principles are what set us apart from institutions that compete  

with us, such as banks, credit unions and other lenders. Our strategy  

of investing in niche areas and steadily building core businesses has  

served us well, and will for years to come. 

Our Company’s involvement in the taxi industry is not limited to  

medallions. Medallion Financial in 2007 continued its practice of financing facilities, equipment and 

other operational needs of fleet establishments in all cities we serve. 
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The taxi medallion lending  
business has come a long way  

since 1937.



coMMercial lending

Small business commercial lending has been a core part of what we do for some time. In 2008, we 

maintained that successful practice with a steady hand and careful attention to the needs of our  

customers as they faced difficult times. Our commercial lending business, offered through two of our  

subsidiaries, is diversified with concentrations in asset based and sub-debt commercial loans. Doing  

business primarily with small manufacturers, distributors and service companies, both subsidiaries  

remained healthy throughout 2008.

A SSET BA SED L ENDI NG

Medallion Business Credit, our asset based lending division, con- 

tinued to serve the financing needs of its diverse customer base. We  

maintained a healthy portfolio of safe, profitable loans ranging from $1  

to $10 million. A majority of these loans are underwritten by Medallion 

Bank, exhibiting a seamless team effort. 

With off ices in New York and Flemington, NJ, the business has  

experienced continued growth in the past several years. Given current 

market conditions, Medallion Business Credit anticipates conservative 

growth into early 2009 as we remain tightly focused on our existing  

portfolio and servicing our clients. However, we also anticipate conditions  

will improve, as competitors exit the asset-based arena, opening up  

new opportunities in 2009.

page 9

medallion financi al cor p. annual r eport

We maintained a healthy portfolio  
of safe and profitable asset  
based loans.  



SU B DEBT M E Z Z A N I NE L ENDI NG

Our mezzanine lending subsidiary, Medallion Capital, Inc., meets an important need in the  

commercial lending marketplace. In 2008, Medallion Capital took advantage of the opportunity 

to grow its portfolio 11 percent in a competitive environment, from $59 million at the end of 2007  

to $65 million at the end of 2008. 

Medallion Capital continues to achieve success with its relationship-based  

lending strategy. In 2008, Medallion Capital stepped in where banks 

stepped back. Our growing portfolio of sub debt mezzanine loans  

consists largely of subordinated debt securities secured by business assets. 

Because of their longer term, subordinated structure, these loans’ rates  

of return were often improved through equity participations or other  

rate enhancements. 

OT H ER LOA NS: Medallion Financial has historically provided small 

business loans as well as taxi medallion lending or loans to businesses  

supporting fleet operators. As an example, our subsidiary, Freshstart  

Venture Capital Corp., provides financing as an SBIC and continues to 

lend to owners of garage and maintenance facilities for taxi fleets, and to  

other small businesses such as gas stations, restaurants, and food facilities. 
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Medallion Capital continues to  
achieve success with its relation- 

ship-based lending strategy.



gener aTion ouTdoor

Generation Outdoor, Inc., our wholly-owned outdoor advertising portfolio investment, faced a 

big challenge as 2008 began. The year started poorly with a stagehand’s strike on Broadway and a 

writer’s strike in Hollywood that shut down Generation Outdoor’s biggest clients.  

The turnaround was not easy, but an industry-leading staff made it happen. As a result of a much  

better second half, Generation Outdoor made up the initial deficit and produced full year results on  

a par with the prior year. This is a testimony to the sound strategy  

of f illing the growing needs of the out-of-home advertising market.  

Generation Outdoor continues to prove itself an increasing presence in  

its niche market.  

Generation Outdoor’s clients include major television networks such as 

ABC, Broadway shows, retail stores, and clothing companies. In 2008 the 

company added more new clients, helped launch Wyeth Pharmaceuticals  

into outdoor and worked with leading companies such as Kenneth Cole, 

J Crew, Disney XD, and others. Generation Outdoor works directly with 

up-and-coming shops and agencies such as Weiden + Kennedy, Spotco, 

and JL Media.  

In 2009, Generation Outdoor looks forward to continuing its solid  

relationships with current clients while winning new business and  

enhancing its market presence. 
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Generation Outdoor – filling 
the needs of the out-of-home 
advertising market.
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Medallion Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries

Selected Financial data

page 13

Year ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Statement of operations
Investment income $     52,284	 $					51,393	 $		39,635	 $		34,811	 $		24,833
Interest	expense	 23,711	 30,704	 24,190	 17,997	 12,834

Net interest income	 28,573	 20,689	 15,445	 16,814	 11,999
Noninterest	income	 3,837	 2,444	 2,646	 4,738	 4,334
Operating	expenses	 17,320	 17,835	 14,926	 16,984	 16,083

Net investment income before income taxes 15,090	 5,298	 3,165	 4,568	 250
Income	tax	(provision)	benefit	 —	 —	 —	 14	 (259)

Net investment income (loss) after income taxes 15,090	 5,298	 3,165	 4,582	 (9)
Net	realized	gains	(losses)	on	investments	 (3,746)	 14,172	 3,080	 3,606	 2,329
Net	change	in	unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	on		
	 Medallion	Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	(1)	 (2,419)	 2,292	 7,454	 5,012	 343
Net	change	in	unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	
	 on	investments	(1)	 6,323	 (6,326)	 (591)	 (6,339)	 19,849

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations $     15,248	 $					15,436	 $		13,108	 $				6,861	 $		22,512

Per share data
Net	investment	income	 $         0.85	 $									0.30	 $						0.18	 $						0.26	 $						0.01
Income	tax	(provision)	benefit	 —	 —	 —	 —	 (0.01)
Net	realized	gains	(losses)	on	investments	 (0.21)	 0.80	 0.17	 0.21	 0.13
Net	change	in	unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	
	 on	investments	(1)	 0.22	 (0.23)	 0.39	 (0.08)	 1.09

Net	increase	in	net	assets	resulting	from	operations	 $        0.86	 $        0.87	 $      0.74	 $						0.39	 $						1.22

Dividends	declared	per	share	 $         0.76	 $									0.76	 $						0.70	 $						0.54	 $						0.37

Weighted average common shares outstanding
	 Basic		 17,520,966	 17,480,523	 17,293,665	 17,087,034	 18,001,604
	 Diluted	 17,722,575	 17,786,310	 17,761,039	 17,552,228	 18,424,518

Balance sheet data
Net	investments	 $   570,597	 $   653,046	 $592,933	 $530,222	 $481,081
Total	assets	 646,685	 721,262	 631,605	 573,355	 522,090
Total	funds	borrowed	 462,650	 542,549	 455,137	 400,915	 339,395
Total	liabilities	 471,739	 548,839	 461,977	 407,000	 351,629
Total	shareholders’	equity	 174,946	 172,423	 169,628	 166,354	 170,461

Managed balance sheet data	(2)

Net	investments	 $   922,007	 $			934,955	 $833,639	 $723,253	 $643,541
Total	assets	 1,018,114	 1,025,633	 893,588	 792,973	 709,910
Total	funds	borrowed	 829,058	 841,632	 716,620	 620,022	 525,933
Total	liabilities	 843,168	 853,211	 723,960	 626,619	 539,448



Medallion Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries

Selected Financial data
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Year ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Selected financial ratios and other data
Return on average assets (ROA)	(3)

Net	investment	income	(loss)	after	taxes	 2.27%	 0.79%	 0.53%	 0.82%	 (0.00%)
Net	increase	in	net	assets	resulting	from	operations	 2.29	 2.30	 2.20	 1.23	 4.96
Return on average equity (ROE)	(4)

Net	investment	income	(loss)	after	taxes	 8.67	 3.09	 1.89	 2.73	 (0.01)
Net	increase	in	net	assets	resulting	from	operations	 8.76	 9.00	 7.82	 4.09	 13.82

Weighted	average	yield	 8.58%	 8.44%	 7.71%	 7.15%	 6.32%
Weighted	average	cost	of	funds	 3.89	 5.04	 4.70	 3.75	 3.33

Net	interest	margin	(5)	 4.69	 3.40	 3.01	 3.40	 2.99

Noninterest	income	ratio	(6)	 0.63	 0.40	 0.52	 0.99	 1.13
Total	expense	ratio	(7)	 6.74	 7.98	 7.62	 7.28	 7.57
Operating	expense	ratio	(8)	 2.84	 2.93	 2.91	 3.54	 4.17

As a percentage of net investment portfolio
Medallion	loans	 70%	 76%	 72%	 71%	 65%	
Commercial	loans	 16	 14	 15	 17	 21
Investment	in	subsidiaries	 13	 9	 8	 8	 7
Equity	investments	 1	 1	 3	 4	 7
Investment	securities	 —	 —	 2	 —	 —

Investments	to	assets	(9)	 88%	 91%	 94%	 92%	 92%
Equity	to	assets	(10)	 27	 24	 27	 29	 33
Debt	to	equity	(11)	 264	 315	 268	 241	 199

(1)  Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments represents the increase (decrease) for the year in the fair value of our investments, including the results of operations for 
Medallion Bank, Medallion Taxi Media, and other controlled subsidiaries, where applicable.

(2)  Includes the balances of wholly-owned, unconsolidated portfolio companies, primarily Medallion Bank.
(3) ROA represents the net investment income (loss) after taxes or net increase in net assets resulting from operations, divided by average total assets.
(4) ROE represents the net investment income (loss) after taxes or net increase in net assets resulting from operations, divided by average shareholders’ equity.
(5)  Net interest margin represents net interest income for the year divided by average interest earning assets, and included interest recoveries and bonuses of $4,471 in 2008, and 

$821 in 2007, $1,556 in 2006, $0 in 2005, and $0 in 2004 and also included dividends from Medallion Bank of $6,000 in 2008 and $5,750 in 2007. On a managed 
basis, combined with Medallion Bank, the net interest margin was 5.21%, 4.21%, 4.40%, 4.65%, and 4.37% for 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

(6) Noninterest income ratio represents noninterest income divided by average interest earning assets.
(7) Total expense ratio represents total expenses (interest expense, operating expenses, and income taxes) divided by average interest earning assets.
(8) Operating expense ratio represents operating expenses divided by average interest earning assets.
(9) Represents net investments divided by total assets as of December 31.
(10) Represents total shareholders’ equity divided by total assets as of December 31.
(11) Represents total funds borrowed divided by total shareholders’ equity as of December 31.



Medallion Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries
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The	information	contained	in	this	section	should	be	read	in	conjunction	
with	the	Consolidated	Financial	Statements	and	Notes	thereto	for	the	years		
ended	December	31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.	In	addition,	this	section	contains		
forward-looking	statements.	These	forward-looking	statements	are	subject		
to	the	inherent	uncertainties	in	predicting	future	results	and	conditions.

Critical Accounting Policies

The	SEC	has	recently	issued	cautionary	advice	regarding	disclosure	about		
critical	accounting	policies.	The	SEC	defines	critical	accounting	policies	as		
those	that	are	both	most	important	to	the	portrayal	of	a	company’s	financial		
condition	and	results,	and	that	require	management’s	most	difficult,	subjec-
tive,	or	complex	judgments,	often	as	a	result	of	the	need	to	make	estimates		
about	matters	that	are	inherently	uncertain	and	may	change	materially	in		
subsequent	periods.	The	preparation	of	our	consolidated	financial	statements		
requires	estimates	and	assumptions	that	affect	amounts	reported	and	disclosed		
in	the	financial	statements	and	related	notes.	Significant	estimates	made	by	
us	include	valuation	of	loans,	evaluation	of	the	recoverability	of	accounts	
receivable	and	income	tax	assets,	and	the	assessment	of	litigation	and	other	
contingencies.	The	matters	that	give	rise	to	such	provisions	are	inherently	
uncertain	and	may	require	complex	and	subjective	judgments.	Although		
we	believe	that	estimates	and	assumptions	used	in	determining	the	recorded	
amounts	of	net	assets	and	liabilities	at	December	31,	2008	are	reasonable,	
actual	results	could	differ	materially	from	the	estimated	amounts	recorded		
in	our	financial	statements.

Change in Reporting Entity

Since	Medallion	Bank	commenced	operations	in	December	2003,	we	had	
historically	consolidated	Medallion	Bank’s	financial	statements	with	those	
of	our	own.	Although	Medallion	Bank	is	not	an	investment	company,	and	
SEC	rules	generally	do	not	permit	investment	companies	such	as	ours	to	
consolidate	the	financial	statements	of	non-investment	companies,	such	
as	Medallion	Bank,	we	had	sought	and	obtained	a	letter	from	the	SEC	in	
March	2004	permitting	such	consolidation.	We	believed	that	consolidating	
Medallion	Bank	provided	a	more	complete	and	accurate	representation	of	
our	full	scope	of	operations,	and	our	complete	financial	position	and	results	
of	operations.

During	August	2006,	we	filed	a	registration	statement	on	Form	N-2	which	
the	SEC	staff	reviewed	and	on	which	they	provided	comments,	including		
those	relating	to	the	consolidation	of	the	accounts	of	Medallion	Bank	
which	have	evolved	since	2004.	Based	on	discussion	with	the	SEC	staff,	we	
determined	during	the	2006	fourth	quarter	to	voluntarily	not	consolidate	
Medallion	Bank	and	present	Medallion	Bank	as	a	portfolio	company.	We	
determined	that	this	change	represents	a	change	in	the	reporting	entity	as	
described	in	SFAS	No.	154,	“Accounting	Changes	and	Error	Corrections.”	

Accordingly	we	retrospectively	applied	this	change	to	the	financial	statements		
of	all	prior	periods	presented,	including	previously	issued	interim	periods	
presented,	included	in	our	2006	Form	10-K.	The	effect	of	this	retrospective	
application	was	to	present	our	financial	position	and	results	of	operations	
as	if	Medallion	Bank	had	not	been	consolidated	for	all	periods	presented	
and	to	present	Medallion	Bank	as	an	unconsolidated	portfolio	investment.	
Although	this	created	changes	in	the	reported	levels	of	assets,	liabilities,	
revenues,	and	expenses,	our	net	increase	in	net	assets	resulting	from		
operations,	shareholders’	equity,	and	the	related	amounts	per	common		
share	were	unchanged.

General

We	are	a	specialty	finance	company	that	has	a	leading	position	in	originating,	
acquiring,	and	servicing	loans	that	finance	taxicab	medallions	and	various	
types	of	commercial	businesses.	A	wholly-owned	portfolio	company	of		
ours,	Medallion	Bank,	also	originates	consumer	loans	for	the	purchase	of	
recreational	vehicles,	boats,	motorcycles,	and	trailers.	Since	1996,	the	year		
in	which	we	became	a	public	company,	we	have	increased	our	taxicab		
medallion	loan	portfolio	at	a	compound	annual	growth	rate	of	10%,	and	
our	commercial	loan	portfolio	at	a	compound	annual	growth	rate	of	7%	
(12%	and	13%	on	a	managed	basis	when	combined	with	Medallion	Bank).	
Since	Medallion	Bank	acquired	a	consumer	loan	portfolio	and	began	
originating	consumer	loans	in	2004,	it	has	increased	its	consumer	loan	
portfolio	at	a	compound	annual	growth	rate	of	18%.	Total	assets	under	our	
management,	which	includes	assets	serviced	for	third	party	investors	and	
managed	by	unconsolidated	portfolio	companies,	were	$1,075,509,000	as	
of	December	31,	2008	and	$1,017,433,000	at	December	31,	2007,	and	
have	grown	at	a	compound	annual	growth	rate	of	14%	from	$215,000,000	
at	the	end	of	1996.

Our	loan-related	earnings	depend	primarily	on	our	level	of	net	interest	
income.	Net	interest	income	is	the	difference	between	the	total	yield	on		
our	loan	portfolio	and	the	average	cost	of	borrowed	funds.	We	fund	our		
operations	through	a	wide	variety	of	interest-bearing	sources,	such	as	
revolving	bank	facilities,	bank	certificates	of	deposit	issued	to	customers,	
debentures	issued	to	and	guaranteed	by	the	SBA,	and	bank	term	debt.	Net	
interest	income	fluctuates	with	changes	in	the	yield	on	our	loan	portfolio	and	
changes	in	the	cost	of	borrowed	funds,	as	well	as	changes	in	the	amount	of	
interest-bearing	assets	and	interest-bearing	liabilities	held	by	us.	Net	interest	
income	is	also	affected	by	economic,	regulatory,	and	competitive	factors		
that	influence	interest	rates,	loan	demand,	and	the	availability	of	funding		
to	finance	our	lending	activities.	We,	like	other	financial	institutions,	are	
subject	to	interest	rate	risk	to	the	degree	that	our	interest-earning	assets	
reprice	on	a	different	basis	than	our	interest-bearing	liabilities.
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We	also	provide	debt,	mezzanine,	and	equity	investment	capital	to	companies	
in	a	variety	of	industries,	consistent	with	our	investment	objectives.	These	
investments	may	be	venture	capital	style	investments	which	may	not	be	fully	
collateralized.	Medallion	Capital’s	investments	are	typically	in	the	form	of	
secured	debt	instruments	with	fixed	interest	rates	accompanied	by	warrants	
to	purchase	an	equity	interest	for	a	nominal	exercise	price	(such	warrants	are	
included	in	equity	investments	on	the	consolidated	balance	sheets).	Interest	
income	is	earned	on	the	debt	instruments.

We	are	a	closed-end,	non-diversified	management	investment	company		
under	the	1940	Act.	We	have	elected	to	be	treated	as	a	business	development	
company	under	the	1940	Act.	We	have	also	elected	to	be	treated	for	federal	
income	tax	purposes	as	a	RIC	under	Subchapter	M	of	the	Code.	As	a	RIC,	
we	generally	do	not	have	to	pay	corporate-level	federal	income	taxes	on	any	
net	ordinary	income	or	capital	gains	that	we	distribute	to	our	shareholders	
as	dividends	if	we	meet	certain	source-of-income	and	asset	diversification	
requirements.	Medallion	Bank	is	not	a	RIC	and	must	pay	corporate-level	
federal	income	taxes.

Our	wholly-owned	portfolio	company,	Medallion	Bank,	is	a	bank	regulated	
by	the	FDIC	and	the	Utah	Department	of	Financial	Institutions	which		
originates	taxicab	medallion,	commercial,	and	consumer	loans,	raises	
deposits,	and	conducts	other	banking	activities.	Medallion	Bank	generally	
provides	us	with	our	lowest	cost	of	funds	which	it	raises	through	bank		
certificates	of	deposits	issued	to	its	customers.	To	take	advantage	of	this	low	
cost	of	funds,	we	refer	a	portion	of	our	taxicab	medallion	and	commercial	
loans	to	Medallion	Bank,	which	then	originates	these	loans,	which	are		
serviced	by	us.	We	earn	referral	and	servicing	fees	for	these	activities.

Realized	gains	or	losses	on	investments	are	recognized	when	the	investments	
are	sold	or	written	off.	The	realized	gains	or	losses	represent	the	difference	
between	the	proceeds	received	from	the	disposition	of	portfolio	assets,	if	
any,	and	the	cost	of	such	portfolio	assets.	In	addition,	changes	in	unrealized	
appreciation	or	depreciation	of	investments	are	recorded	and	represent	the	
net	change	in	the	estimated	fair	values	of	the	portfolio	assets	at	the	end	of	
the	period	as	compared	with	their	estimated	fair	values	at	the	beginning	of	
the	period.	Generally,	realized	gains	(losses)	on	investments	and	changes	in	
unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	on	investments	are	inversely	related.	
When	an	appreciated	asset	is	sold	to	realize	a	gain,	a	decrease	in	the	previously	
recorded	unrealized	appreciation	occurs.	Conversely,	when	a	loss	previously	
recorded	as	unrealized	depreciation	is	realized	by	the	sale	or	other	disposition		
of	a	depreciated	portfolio	asset,	the	reclassification	of	the	loss	from	unrealized	
to	realized	causes	a	decrease	in	net	unrealized	depreciation	and	an	increase	in	
realized	loss.

Our	investment	in	Medallion	Bank,	as	a	wholly	owned	portfolio	investment,	
is	also	subject	to	quarterly	assessments	of	fair	value.	We	conduct	a	thorough	
valuation	analysis	as	described	previously,	and	determine	whether	any	factors	
give	rise	to	a	valuation	different	than	recorded	book	value,	including	various	
regulatory	restrictions	that	were	established	at	Medallion	Bank’s	inception,	by	
the	FDIC	and	State	of	Utah,	and	also	by	additional	marketplace	restrictions,	
such	as	the	ability	to	transfer	industrial	bank	charters.	As	a	result	of	this	
valuation	process,	we	used	Medallion	Bank’s	actual	results	of	operations	as	the		
best	estimate	of	changes	in	fair	value,	and	recorded	the	results	as	a	component	
of	unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	on	investments,	although	changes	in	
these	restrictions	and	other	applicable	factors	could	change	these	conclusions	
in	the	future.

The	credit	markets	are	undergoing	a	crisis	which	has	disrupted	a	wide	range	
of	traditional	financing	sources.	The	crisis	has	made	it	increasingly	difficult	
and	significantly	more	expensive	through	higher	credit	spreads	for	finance	
companies	to	obtain	and	renew	financing.	Continued	turmoil	in	the	credit	
markets	could	limit	our	access	to	funds	and	restrict	us	from	continuing	our	
current	operating	strategy	or	implementing	new	operating	strategies.	If	funds	
are	available	to	us,	we	anticipate	that	our	cost	of	funds	will	increase	as	we	
obtain	new	financing.

The	credit	crisis	has	also	caused	many	financial	institutions	to	record		
significant	write-downs,	mostly	on	their	residential	mortgage	related	assets	
and	structured	investment	vehicles	and	due	to	unsound	lending	practices.	
We	are	not	involved	in	these	types	of	transactions	and	always	understand	
the	importance	of	proper	underwriting.	Nonetheless,	the	judgments	used	
by	management	in	applying	the	critical	accounting	policies	discussed	herein	
may	be	affected	by	a	further	and	prolonged	deterioration	in	the	economic	
environment,	which	may	result	in	changes	to	future	financial	results.	
Subsequent	evaluations	of	our	loan	portfolio	and	other	investments,	in	light	
of	the	factors	then	prevailing,	may	result	in	changes	to	the	fair	value	of	the	
investments,	including	a	decrease	in	the	fair	value.	In	addition,	the	fair	value	
of	investments	in	our	portfolio	may	be	negatively	impacted	by	illiquidity	or	
dislocation	in	marketplaces	resulting	in	depressed	market	prices.

Trends in Investment Portfolio

Our	investment	income	is	driven	by	the	principal	amount	of	and	yields		
on	our	investment	portfolio.	To	identify	trends	in	the	balances	and	yields,	
the	following	table	illustrates	our	investments	at	fair	value,	grouped	by	
medallion	loans,	commercial	loans,	equity	investments,	and	investment	
securities,	and	also	presents	the	portfolio	information	for	Medallion	Bank,	
at	the	dates	indicated.
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 December 31,  2008 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
 Interest Investment Interest Investment Interest Investment
(Dollars in thousands) Rate (1) Balances Rate (1) Balances Rate (1) Balances

Medallion loans
New	York	 6.04% $304,306	 6.91%	 $399,955	 6.74%	 $340,110
Boston	 	 7.54 31,283	 8.44	 32,446	 8.12	 32,787
Chicago		 7.15 28,172	 7.43	 33,008	 6.88	 31,077
Newark		 8.17 27,809	 8.40	 22,058	 8.32	 10,233
Cambridge	 7.59 4,387	 8.41	 5,174	 7.93	 8,184
Other	 	 7.40 6,584	 7.58 5,481	 7.55 5,586
Total medallion loans 6.42 402,541	 7.13	 498,122	 6.93	 427,977

Deferred	loan	acquisition	costs	 	 423	 	 798	 	 729
Unrealized	depreciation	on	loans	 	 —	 	 (37)	 	 (457)

Net medallion loans	 	 $402,964	 	 $498,883	 	 $428,249

Commercial loans
Secured	mezzanine	 14.23% $  65,475	 14.19%	 $		59,152	 13.78%	 $		53,732
Asset	based	 5.29 13,552	 8.91	 19,870	 10.28	 18,668
Other	secured	commercial	 8.34 15,870	 9.05	 19,256	 9.59	 18,504
Total commercial loans	 11.97 94,897	 12.12	 98,278	 12.21	 90,904

Deferred	loan	acquisition	(income)	costs	 	 (171)	 	 (64)	 	 (98)
Unrealized	depreciation	on	loans	 	 (5,115)	 	 (6,432)	 	 (2,599)

Net commercial loans	 	 $  89,611	 	 $		91,782	 	 $		88,207

Investment in Medallion Bank and
 other controlled subsidiaries, net 8.22% $  74,750	 13.79%	 $		57,501	 0.00%	 $		50,448

Equity investments 4.33% $    2,835	 4.70%	 $				2,138	 2.23%	 $		13,955
Unrealized	appreciation	on	equities	 	 437	 	 2,742	 	 2,113
Net equity investments	 	 $    3,272	 	 $				4,880	 	 $		16,068

Investment securities —% $         —	 —%	 $									—	 5.09%	 $				9,961
Unrealized	depreciation	on
	 investment	securities	 	 —	 	 —	 	 —
Net investment securities  $         —	 	 $									—	 	 $				9,961

Investments at cost 7.56% $575,023	 8.45%	 $656,039	 7.01%	 $593,245
Deferred	loan	acquisition	costs	 	 252	 	 734	 	 631
Unrealized	appreciation	on	equities	 	 437	 	 2,742	 	 2,113
Unrealized	depreciation	on	loans	 	 (5,115)	 	 (6,469)	 	 (3,056)

Net investments	 	 $570,597	 	 $653,046	 	 $592,933

Medallion Bank investments
Consumer loans 18.26% $189,886	 18.54%	 $139,972	 18.48%	 $113,777
Medallion loans 6.46 122,581	 6.72	 87,891	 6.65	 94,176
Commercial loans 5.64 87,800	 9.14	 88,785	 10.35	 60,929
Investment securities 4.87 20,056	 4.82	 21,707	 4.60	 21,841
Medallion Bank investments at cost	(2)	 11.54 420,323	 12.12	 338,355	 11.90	 290,723
Deferred	loan	acquisition	costs	 	 5,994	 	 4,569	 	 3,155
Unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)		
	 on	investment	securities	 	 (64)	 	 39	 	 (402)
Premiums	paid	on	purchased	securities	 	 96	 	 91	 	 245
Unrealized	depreciation	on	loans	 	 (10,936)	 	 (7,311)	 	 (6,057)

Medallion Bank net investments	 	 $415,413	 	 $335,743	 	 $287,664

(1) Represents the weighted average interest or dividend rate of the respective portfolio as of the date indicated.
(2)  The weighted average interest rate for the entire managed loan portfolio (medallion, commercial, and consumer loans) was 9.44%, 9.57%, and 9.44% at December 31, 

2008, 2007, and 2006.
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Portfolio Summary

Total Portfolio Yield

The	weighted	average	yield	of	the	total	portfolio	at	December	31,	2008	was	
7.56%	(7.47%	for	the	loan	portfolio),	a	decrease	of	88	basis	points	from	
8.44%	at	December	31,	2007,	which	was	an	increase	of	143	basis	points	
from	7.01%	at	December	31,	2006.	The	weighted	average	yield	of	the	total	
managed	portfolio	at	December	31,	2008	was	9.22%	(9.44%	for	the	loan	
portfolio),	a	decrease	of	19	basis	points	from	9.41%	at	December	31,	2007,	
which	was	an	increase	of	37	basis	points	from	9.04%	at	December	31,	
2006.	The	decrease	from	2007	reflected	the	general	market	condition	of	
falling	interest	rates,	partially	offset	by	changes	in	the	portfolio	composition	
towards	higher	yielding	commercial	and	equity	investments.	The	increase	
from	2006	primarily	reflected	the	market	increase	in	interest	rates,	partially	
offset	by	a	higher	proportion	of	lower-yielding	medallion	loans.

Medallion Loan Portfolio

Our	medallion	loans	comprised	70%	of	the	net	portfolio	of	$570,597,000	
at	December	31,	2008,	compared	to	76%	of	$653,046,000	at	December	
31,	2007	and	72%	of	$592,933,000	at	December	31,	2006.	Our	managed	
medallion	loans	of	$525,372,000	comprised	57%	of	the	net	portfolio	of	
$922,007,000	at	December	31,	2008,	compared	to	63%	of	$934,955,000	
at	December	31,	2007	and	63%	of	$833,639,000	at	December	31,	2006.	
The	medallion	loan	portfolio	decreased	by	$95,919,000	or	19%	in	2008	
($61,126,000	or	10%	on	a	managed	basis),	primarily	reflecting	decreases	in	
New	York,	Chicago	and	Boston.	The	decrease	in	the	New	York	market	can	
be	attributed	to	loan	payoffs	and	the	sale	of	participation	interests	to	third	
parties.	Total	medallion	loans	serviced	for	third	parties	were	$66,041,000,	
$4,443,000,	and	$5,783,000	at	December	31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.

The	weighted	average	yield	of	the	medallion	loan	portfolio	at	December	31,	
2008	was	6.42%,	a	decrease	of	71	basis	points	from	7.13%	at	December	31,	
2007,	which	was	an	increase	of	20	basis	points	from	6.93%	at	December	31,	
2006.	The	weighted	average	yield	of	the	managed	medallion	loan	portfolio	at	
December	31,	2008	was	6.43%,	a	decrease	of	64	basis	points	from	7.07%	at	
December	31,	2007,	which	was	an	increase	of	19	basis	points	from	6.88%	
at	December	31,	2006.	The	change	in	yield	primarily	reflected	the	impact	
of	changes	in	interest	rates	in	the	economy	which	rose	from	2006	into	2007	
and	then	fell	sharply.	At	December	31,	2008,	24%	of	the	medallion	loan	
portfolio	represented	loans	outside	New	York,	compared	to	20%	and	21%	
at	year-end	2007	and	2006.	At	December	31,	2008,	26%	of	the	managed	
medallion	loan	portfolio	represented	loans	outside	New	York,	compared	to		
17%	and	18%	at	year-end	2007	and	2006.	We	continue	to	focus	our	efforts		
on	originating	higher	yielding	medallion	loans	outside	the	New	York	market.

Commercial Loan Portfolio

Our	commercial	loans	represented	16%	of	the	net	investment	portfolio	as		
of	December	31,	2008,	compared	to	14%	and	15%	at	December	31,	2007		
and	2006,	and	were	19%,	19%,	and	18%	on	a	managed	basis.	Commercial		
loans	decreased	by	$2,171,000	or	2%	during	2008	(decreased	by	$3,404,000	
or	2%	on	a	managed	basis),	primarily	reflecting	loan	participations	sold.	Net	
commercial	loans	serviced	by	third	parties	were	$8,646,000	at	December	31,	
2008	and	$12,643,000	at	December	31,	2007,	compared	to	loans	serviced	
for	third	parties	of	$7,761,000	at	December	31,	2006.

The	weighted	average	yield	of	the	commercial	loan	portfolio	at	December	31,	
2008	was	11.97%,	a	decrease	of	15	basis	points	from	12.12%	at	December		
31,	2007,	which	was	down	9	basis	points	from	12.21%	at	December	31,	
2006.	The	weighted	average	yield	of	the	managed	commercial	loan	portfolio	
at	December	31,	2008	was	8.93%,	a	decrease	of	177	basis	points	from	
10.70%	at	December	31,	2007,	which	was	down	76	basis	points	from	
11.46%	at	December	31,	2006.	The	decrease	in	the	managed	portfolio		
reflected	the	greater	proportion	of	floating	rate	loans,	compared	to	the	owned	
portfolio	with	a	larger	concentration	of	high-yield,	fixed	rate	loans.	We		
continue	to	originate	adjustable-rate	and	floating-rate	loans	tied	to	the	prime	
rate.	At	December	31,	2008,	variable-rate	loans	represented	approximately	
22%	of	the	commercial	portfolio,	compared	to	28%	and	26%	at	December	
31,	2007	and	2006,	and	were	59%,	57%,	and	55%	on	a	managed	basis.	
Although	this	strategy	initially	produces	a	lower	yield,	we	believe	that	this	
strategy	mitigates	interest	rate	risk	by	better	matching	our	earning	assets	to	
their	adjustable-rate	funding	sources.

Consumer Loan Portfolios

Our	managed	consumer	loans,	all	of	which	are	held	in	the	portfolio	managed	
by	Medallion	Bank,	represented	20%	of	the	managed	net	investment	portfolio	
as	of	December	31,	2008,	compared	to	15%	at	December	31,	2007	and	13%		
at	December	31,	2006.	Medallion	Bank	started	originating	new	adjustable	
rate	consumer	loans	during	the	2004	third	quarter.	Recreational	vehicles,	
boats,	and	trailers	located	in	all	50	states	collateralize	the	loans.	The	portfolio	
is	serviced	by	a	third	party	subsidiary	of	a	major	commercial	bank.

The	weighted	average	gross	yield	of	the	managed	consumer	loan	portfolio	
was	18.26%	at	December	31,	2008,	compared	to	18.54%	and	18.48%	
at	December	31,	2007	and	2006.	Amortization	of	the	portfolio	purchase	
premium	reduced	the	yield	by	an	average	of	0.25%,	0.51%,	and	0.96%	
in	2008,	2007,	and	2006.	Adjustable	rate	loans	represented	approximately	
89%	of	the	managed	consumer	portfolio	compared	to	91%	and	84%	at	
December	31,	2007	and	2006.
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Delinquency and Loan Loss Experience

We	generally	follow	a	practice	of	discontinuing	the	accrual	of	interest	income	
on	our	loans	that	are	in	arrears	as	to	interest	payments	for	a	period	of	90	days	
or	more.	We	deliver	a	default	notice	and	begin	foreclosure	and	liquidation	
proceedings	when	management	determines	that	pursuit	of	these	remedies	
is	the	most	appropriate	course	of	action	under	the	circumstances.	A	loan	
is	considered	to	be	delinquent	if	the	borrower	fails	to	make	a	payment	on	
time;	however,	during	the	course	of	discussion	on	delinquent	status,	we	may		
agree	to	modify	the	payment	terms	of	the	loan	with	a	borrower	that	cannot	
make	payments	in	accordance	with	the	original	loan	agreement.	For	loan	
modifications,	the	loan	will	only	be	returned	to	accrual	status	if	all	past	
due	interest	payments	are	brought	fully	current.	For	credit	that	is	collateral	
based,	we	evaluate	the	anticipated	net	residual	value	we	would	receive	upon	
foreclosure	of	such	loans,	if	necessary.	There	can	be	no	assurance,	however,	
that	the	collateral	securing	these	loans	will	be	adequate	in	the	event	of	fore-

closure.	For	credit	that	is	cash	flow-based,	we	assess	our	collateral	position,	
and	evaluate	most	of	these	relationships	as	ongoing	businesses,	expecting	to	
locate	and	install	a	new	operator	to	run	the	business	and	reduce	the	debt.

For	the	consumer	loan	portfolio,	the	process	to	repossess	the	collateral	is	
started	at	60	days	past	due.	If	the	collateral	is	not	located	and	the	account	
reaches	120	days	delinquent,	the	account	is	charged	off	to	realized	losses.	If	
the	collateral	is	repossessed,	a	realized	loss	is	recorded	to	write	the	collateral	
down	to	75%	of	its	net	realizable	value,	and	the	collateral	is	sent	to	auction.	
When	the	collateral	is	sold,	the	net	auction	proceeds	are	applied	to	the	
account,	and	any	remaining	balance	is	written	off	as	a	realized	loss,	and	any	
excess	proceeds	are	recorded	as	a	realized	gain.	Proceeds	collected	on	charged	
off	accounts	are	recorded	as	realized	gains.	All	collection,	repossession,	and	
recovery	efforts	are	handled	on	behalf	of	Medallion	Bank	by	the	servicer.

The	following	table	shows	the	trend	in	loans	90	days	or	more	past	due	as	of	
December	31,

 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands) Amount %(1) Amount %(1) Amount %(1)

Medallion loans $     765 0.2%	 $3,519	 0.6%	 $		5,707	 1.1%

Commercial loans
Secured	mezzanine	 6,415 1.3	 2,819	 0.5	 3,459	 0.7
Asset-based	receivable	 — 0.0	 —	 0.0	 —	 0.0
Other	secured	commercial	 190 0.0	 1,195	 0.2	 1,652	 0.3

Total commercial loans 6,605 1.3	 4,014	 0.7	 5,111	 1.0

Total loans 90 days or more past due $  7,370 1.5%	 $7,533	 1.3%	 $10,818	 2.1%

Total Medallion Bank loans $  4,345 1.1%	 $1,036	 0.3%	 $	631	 0.2%

Total managed loans 90 days or more past due $11,715 1.3%	 $8,569	 0.9%	 $11,449	 1.5%

(1) Percentages are calculated against the total or managed loan portfolio, as appropriate.

In	general,	collection	efforts	since	the	establishment	of	our	collection	
department	have	substantially	contributed	to	the	sizable	reduction	in	overall	
delinquencies	of	medallion	and	other	secured	commercial	loans.	Medallion	
delinquencies	decreased	as	a	result	of	a	renegotiation	and	paydowns	with	a	
past	due	relationship.	Delinquencies	in	secured	mezzanine	financing,	mostly	
in	recreational	and	consumer-discretionary	services,	increased	over	2007	
due	to	the	current	state	of	the	economy.	For	the	same	reasons,	Medallion	
Bank	also	experienced	higher	consumer	delinquencies	due	to	bankruptcies	
and	job	losses.	We	are	actively	working	with	each	delinquent	borrower	to	
bring	them	current,	and	believe	that	any	potential	loss	exposure	is	reflected	
in	our	mark-to-market	estimates	on	each	loan.	Although	there	can	be	no	

assurances	as	to	changes	in	the	trend	rate	and	further	negative	changes	in	the	
economy,	management	believes	that	any	loss	exposures	are	properly	reflected	
in	reported	asset	values.

We	monitor	delinquent	loans	for	possible	exposure	to	loss	by	analyzing		
various	factors,	including	the	value	of	the	collateral	securing	the	loan	
and	the	borrower’s	prior	payment	history.	Under	the	1940	Act,	our	loan	
portfolio	must	be	recorded	at	fair	value	or	“marked-to-market.”	Unlike	
other	lending	institutions,	we	are	not	permitted	to	establish	reserves	for	loan	
losses.	Instead,	the	valuation	of	our	portfolio	is	adjusted	quarterly	to	reflect	
our	estimate	of	the	current	realizable	value	of	our	loan	portfolio.	Since	no	
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  Equity Foreclosed  
(Dollars in thousands) Loans Investments Properties Total

Balance December 31, 2005	 $(7,896)	 $					629	 $	(1,397)	 $	(8,664)
Net change in unrealized
Appreciation	on	investments	 —	 4,236	 921	 5,157
Depreciation	on	investments	 824	 (173)	 —	 651
Reversal of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) related to realized
Gains	on	investments	 —	 (2,579)	 —	 (2,579)
Losses	on	investments	 4,016	 —	 1,423	 5,439

Balance December 31, 2006	 (3,056)	 2,113	 947	 4
Net change in unrealized
Appreciation	on	investments	 —	 2,127	 8,245	 10,372
Depreciation	on	investments	 (4,246)	 (133)	 (159)	 (4,538)
Reversal of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) related to realized
Gains	on	investments	 —	 (1,361)	 (571)	 (1,932)
Losses	on	investments	 833	 —	 —	 833
Other	 —	 (4)	 (121)	 (125)

Balance December 31, 2007	 (6,469)	 2,742	 8,341	 4,614
Net change in unrealized
Appreciation	on	investments	 — (1,995) 8,183 6,188
Depreciation	on	investments	 (4,076) (110) 168 (4,018)
Reversal of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) related to realized
Gains	on	investments	 — — (1,400) (1,400)
Losses	on	investments	 5,230 — 322 5,552
Other	 200 (200) — —

Balance December 31, 2008	 $(5,115) $    437 $15,614 $10,936
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ready	market	exists	for	this	portfolio,	fair	value	is	subject	to	the	good	faith	
determination	of	management	and	the	approval	of	our	Board	of	Directors.	
Because	of	the	subjectivity	of	these	estimates,	there	can	be	no	assurance	that	
in	the	event	of	a	foreclosure	or	the	sale	of	portfolio	loans	we	would	be	able	
to	recover	the	amounts	reflected	on	our	balance	sheet.

In	determining	the	value	of	our	portfolio,	management	and	the	Board	of	
Directors	may	take	into	consideration	various	factors	such	as	the	financial	
condition	of	the	borrower	and	the	adequacy	of	the	collateral.	For	example,	
in	a	period	of	sustained	increases	in	market	interest	rates,	management	and	
the	Board	of	Directors	could	decrease	its	valuation	of	the	portfolio	if	the	

portfolio	consists	primarily	of	long-term,	fixed-rate	loans.	Our	valuation	
procedures	are	designed	to	generate	values	that	approximate	that	which	
would	have	been	established	by	market	forces,	and	are	therefore	subject	to	
uncertainties	and	variations	from	reported	results.	Based	upon	these	factors,	
net	unrealized	appreciation	or	depreciation	on	investments	is	determined,	
or	the	amount	by	which	our	estimate	of	the	current	realizable	value	of	our	
portfolio	is	above	or	below	our	cost	basis.

The	following	table	sets	forth	the	changes	in	our	unrealized	appreciation	
(depreciation)	on	investments,	other	than	investments	in	controlled		
subsidiaries,	for	the	years	ended	December	31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.
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The	following	table	presents	credit-related	information	for	the	investment	
portfolios	as	of	December	31.

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Total loans
Medallion	loans	 $402,964	 $498,883	 $428,249
Commercial	loans	 89,611	 91,782	 88,207

Total loans 492,575	 590,665	 516,456
Investment	in	Medallion	Bank	and		
	 other	controlled	subsidiaries	 74,750	 57,501	 50,448
Equity	investments	(1)	 3,272	 4,880	 16,068
Investment	securities	 —	 —	 9,961

Net investments $570,597	 $653,046	 $592,933

Net	investments	at	Medallion	Bank		
	 and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	 $415,413	 $335,743	 $287,664
Managed net investments $922,007	 $934,955	 $833,639

Unrealized appreciation  
 (depreciation) on investments
Medallion	loans	 $         —	 $								(37)	 $	 (457)
Commercial	loans	 (5,115)	 (6,432)	 (2,599)

Total loans	 (5,115)	 (6,469)	 (3,056)
Investment	in	Medallion	Bank	and		
	 other	controlled	subsidiaries	(2)	 —	 —	 —
Equity	investments	 437	 2,742	 2,113
Investment	securities	 —	 —	 —

Total unrealized appreciation  
 (depreciation) on investments	(2)	 $   (4,678)	 $			(3,727)	 $	(943)

Net	unrealized	appreciation		
	 (depreciation)	on	investments		
	 at	Medallion	Bank	and	other		
	 controlled	subsidiaries	 $ (11,000)	 $			(7,272)	 $	 (6,459)
Managed total unrealized  
 appreciation (depreciation)  
 on investments	(2)	 $ (15,678)	 $	(10,999)	 $			(7,402)

Unrealized appreciation  
 (depreciation) as a % of  
 balances outstanding (3)

Medallion	loans	 — %	 (0.01)%	 (0.11)%
Commercial	loans	 (5.39)	 (6.54)	 (2.86)
Total loans (1.03)	 (1.08)	 (0.59)
Investment	in	Medallion	Bank		
	 and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	 —	 —	 —
Equity	investments	 15.41	 128.22	 (15.14)
Investment	securities	 —	 —	 —
Net investments (0.81)	 (0.57)	 (0.16)

Net	investments	at	Medallion	Bank		
	 and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	 (2.62)%	 (2.15)%	 (2.22)%
Managed net investments (1.68)%	 (1.17)%	 (0.88)%

(1) Represents common stock and warrants held as investments.

(2)  Excludes $1,733, $1,920, and $1,250 for unrealized appreciation on Medallion Hamptons 
Holding, a wholly-owned subsidiary, at December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

(3)  Unlike other lending institutions, we are not permitted to establish reserves for loan losses. 
Instead, the valuation of our portfolio is adjusted quarterly to reflect estimates of the current 
realizable value of the loan portfolio. These percentages represent the discount or premiums 
that investments are carried on the books at, relative to their par or gross value.

The	following	table	presents	the	gain/loss	experience	on	the	investment	
portfolios	for	the	years	ended	December	31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Realized gains (losses) on loans  
 and equity investments	(1)

Medallion	loans	 $   1,378	 $		1,316	 $					19
Commercial	loans	 (5,266)	 (784)	 (5,473)
Total loans (3,888)	 532	 (5,454)
Investment	in	Medallion	Bank	and		
	 other	controlled	subsidiaries	 —	 —	 —
Equity	investments	 142	 13,640	 8,534
Investment	securities	 —	 —	 —
Total realized gains on loans and  
 equity investments	 $(3,746)	 $14,172	 $3,080

Net	realized	losses	on	investments		
	 at	Medallion	Bank	and	other		
	 controlled	subsidiaries	 (7,893)	 (3,868)	 (2,140)
Total managed realized gains on  
 loans and equity investments $(11,639)	 $10,304	 $			940

Realized gains (losses) as a % of  
 average balances outstanding
Medallion	loans	 0.32%	 0.28%	 0.00%
Commercial	loans	 (5.21)	 (0.82)	 (5.87)
Total loans	 (0.72)	 0.09	 (1.11)
Investment	in	Medallion	Bank	and		
	 other	controlled	subsidiaries	 —	 —	 —
Equity	investments	 5.74	 408.53	 40.81
Investment	securities	 —	 —	 —
Net investments	 (0.61)	 2.27	 0.59

Net	investments	at	Medallion	Bank		
	 and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	 (2.11)%	 (1.24)%	 (0.83)%
Managed net investments	 (1.26)%	 1.16%	 0.12%

(1)  Includes realized gains of $1,064, $1,336, and $4 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 
2007, and 2006 related to foreclosed properties, which are carried in other assets on the 
consolidated balance sheet.

The	table	below	summarizes	components	of	unrealized	and	realized	gains	
and	losses	in	the	investment	portfolios	for	the	years	ended	December	31,	
2008,	2007,	and	2006.

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Net change in unrealized appreciation  
 (depreciation) on investments
Unrealized	appreciation	 $(1,994)	 $		2,127	 $4,236
Unrealized	depreciation	 (4,186)	 (4,379)	 (7,185)
Net	unrealized	appreciation		
	 (depreciation)	on	investment		
	 in	Medallion	Bank	and	other		
	 controlled	subsidiaries	 (2,419)	 2,292	 7,454
Realized	gains	 —	 (11,647)	 (2,579)
Realized	losses	 5,230	 833	 4,016
Unrealized	gains	on	foreclosed	properties	 7,273	 6,740	 921

Total 	 $ 3,904	 $	(4,034)	 $6,863

Net realized gains (losses)  
 on investments
Realized	gains	 $      —	 $		2,914	 $2,579
Realized	losses	 (5,230)	 (833)	 (4,016)
Other	gains	 470	 10,732	 5,997
Direct	recoveries	(charge-offs)	 (50)	 23	 (1,484)
Realized	gains	on	foreclosed	properties	 1,064	 1,336	 4

Total 	 $(3,746)	 $14,172	 $3,080
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Investment in Medallion Bank and Other Controlled Subsidiaries

Investment	in	Medallion	Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	were	13%,	
9%,	and	8%	of	our	total	portfolio	at	December	31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.	
The	portfolio	company	investments	primarily	represent	the	wholly-owned	
unconsolidated	subsidiaries	of	ours,	substantially	all	of	which	is	represented	
by	our	investment	in	Medallion	Bank,	a	non-pass-through,	taxpaying	entity.	
We	are	currently	in	discussions	with	the	IRS	to	obtain	LLC	tax	treatment	
for	Medallion	Bank,	which	would	provide	“pass-through”	taxation	for	our	
shareholders,	and	which	has	already	been	agreed	to	by	the	State	of	Utah.		
We	cannot	assure	you	that	we	will	be	successful	in	our	efforts,	but	if	we		
are	successful,	this	treatment	would	reduce	taxes	and	increase	the	reported	
net	income	of	Medallion	Bank.	In	addition,	to	facilitate	maintenance	of	
Medallion	Bank’s	capital	ratio	requirement	and	to	provide	the	necessary	
capital	for	continued	growth,	the	Company	periodically	makes	capital	
contributions	to	Medallion	Bank,	including	an	aggregate	of	$10,750,000	
contributed	over	various	months	in	2008	and	an	aggregate	of	$6,800,000	
contributed	similarly	in	2007.	Separately,	Medallion	Bank	paid	dividends		
to	the	Company	of	$6,000,000	in	2008	and	$5,750,000	in	2007.	Without	
the	capital	infusions	by	the	Company,	a	portion	of	the	Medallion	Bank		
dividends	would	have	been	retained	to	ensure	Medallion	Bank	met	its	capital	
ratio	requirements,	and	in	such	circumstance,	if	the	Company	maintained	
its	dividend	at	the	existing	levels,	a	portion	of	those	dividends	would	have	
represented	a	tax-free	return	of	capital.	See	note	4	of	the	consolidated	financial	
statements	for	additional	information	about	these	investments.

Equity Investments

Equity	investments	were	1%,	1%,	and	3%	of	our	total	portfolio	at	December	
31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.	Equity	investments	were	less	than	1%,	1%,	and	
2%	of	our	total	managed	portfolio	at	December	31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.	
Equity	investments	are	comprised	of	common	stock,	partnership	interests,	
and	warrants.	The	decreases	in	equity	investments	primarily	reflected	the	sale	
of	shares	of	common	stock	of	Clear	Channel	that	were	received	in	a	tax-free	
exchange	for	100%	of	our	ownership	interest	in	Medallion	Taxi	Media.

Investment Securities

Investment	securities	were	0%,	0%,	and	2%	of	our	total	portfolio	at	December		
31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.	Investment	securities	were	2%,	2%,	and	4%	of	
our	total	managed	portfolio	at	December	31,	2008,	2007,	and	2006.	The	
investment	securities	are	primarily	US	Treasuries	and/or	adjustable-rate	
mortgage-backed	securities	purchased	by	Medallion	Bank	to	better	utilize	
required	cash	liquidity.

Trend in Interest Expense

Our	interest	expense	is	driven	by	the	interest	rates	payable	on	our	short-
term	credit	facilities	with	banks,	bank	certificates	of	deposit,	fixed-rate,	
long-term	debentures	issued	to	the	SBA,	and	other	short-term	notes	payable.	
The	establishment	of	the	Merrill	Lynch	Commercial	Financial	Corp	line	
of	credit	in	September	2002	(fully	paid	off	in	December	2008),	and	its	
favorable	subsequent	renegotiations	had	the	effect	of	substantially	reducing	
our	cost	of	funds.	Most	recently,	we	established	additional	medallion	lending	
relationships	with	DZ	Bank	in	December	2008,	and	with	Citibank	in	
December	2006	that	provide	for	future	growth	in	the	portfolio	at	generally	
lower	rates	than	under	prior	facilities.	In	addition,	Medallion	Bank	began	

raising	brokered	bank	certificates	of	deposit	during	2004,	which	were	at	our	
lowest	borrowing	costs.	As	a	result	of	Medallion	Bank	raising	funds	through	
certificates	of	deposits	as	previously	noted,	we	were	able	to	realign	the		
ownership	of	some	of	our	medallion	loans	and	related	assets	to	Medallion	
Bank	allowing	us	and	our	subsidiaries	to	use	cash	generated	through	these	
transactions	to	retire	debt	with	higher	interest	rates.	In	addition,	Medallion	
Bank	is	able	to	bid	on	these	deposits	at	a	wide	variety	of	maturity	levels	
which	allows	for	improved	interest	rate	management	strategies.

Our	cost	of	funds	is	primarily	driven	by	the	rates	paid	on	our	various	debt	
instruments	and	their	relative	mix,	and	changes	in	the	levels	of	average		
borrowings	outstanding.	See	Note	5	to	the	consolidated	financial	statements	
for	details	on	the	terms	of	all	outstanding	debt.	Our	debentures	issued	to	
the	SBA	typically	have	terms	of	ten	years.

We	measure	our	borrowing	costs	as	our	aggregate	interest	expense	for	all	of		
our	interest-bearing	liabilities	divided	by	the	average	amount	of	such	liabilities	
outstanding	during	the	period.	The	following	table	shows	the	average	
borrowings	and	related	borrowing	costs	for	the	years	ended	December	31,	
2008,	2007,	and	2006.	Average	balances	have	generally	increased,	primarily	
reflecting	the	funding	needs	to	support	the	growth	in	our	investment	port-
folios,	although	the	2008	decline	in	the	revolving	lines	of	credit	reflect	loan	
participations	sold	during	the	year.	The	increase	in	borrowing	costs	reflected	
the	trend	of	increasing	interest	rates	in	the	economy.

   Average 
 Interest Average Borrowing 
(Dollars in thousands) Expense Balance  Costs

December 31, 2008
Revolving	lines	of	credit	 $15,161 $355,706 4.26%
SBA	debentures	 5,253 81,319 6.46
Preferred	Securities	 2,538 33,000 7.69
Notes	payable	to	banks	 759 11,982 6.33
Margin	loans	 — — —

Total 	 $23,711 $482,007 4.92

Medallion	Bank	borrowings	 14,934 324,141 4.61

Total managed borrowings	 $38,645 $806,148 4.79

December 31, 2007
Revolving	lines	of	credit	 $23,185	 $380,405	 6.09%
SBA	debentures	 5,007	 77,250	 6.48
Preferred	Securities	 1,538	 19,822	 7.76
Notes	payable	to	banks	 849	 12,324	 6.89
Margin	loans	 125	 2,221	 5.63

Total		 $30,704	 $492,022	 6.24

Medallion	Bank	borrowings	 13,804	 268,962	 5.13

Total managed borrowings	 $44,508	 $760,984	 5.85

December 31, 2006
Revolving	lines	of	credit	 $17,550	 $323,823	 5.42%
SBA	debentures	 4,981	 77,250	 6.45
Notes	payable	to	banks	 1,119	 14,824	 7.55
Margin	loans	 540	 9,165	 5.89

Total		 $24,190	 $425,062	 5.69

Medallion	Bank	borrowings	 10,454	 232,605	 4.49

Total managed borrowings	 $34,644	 $657,667	 5.27

We	will	continue	to	seek	SBA	funding	to	the	extent	it	offers	attractive	rates.	
SBA	financing	subjects	its	recipients	to	limits	on	the	amount	of	secured	
bank	debt	they	may	incur.	We	use	SBA	funding	to	fund	loans	that	qualify	
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under	Small	Business	Investment	Act	(SBIA)	and	SBA	regulations.	We	
believe	that	financing	operations	primarily	with	short-term	floating	rate	
secured	bank	debt	has	generally	decreased	our	interest	expense,	but	has	also	
increased	our	exposure	to	the	risk	of	increases	in	market	interest	rates,	which	
we	mitigate	with	certain	interest	rate	strategies.	At	December	31,	2008,	
2007,	and	2006,	short-term	floating	rate	debt	constituted	78%,	78%,	and	
82%	of	total	debt,	and	was	44%,	51%,	and	53%	on	a	fully	managed	basis	
including	the	borrowings	of	Medallion	Bank.

Factors Affecting Net Assets

Factors	that	affect	our	net	assets	include	net	realized	gain	or	loss	on	investments	
and	change	in	net	unrealized	appreciation	or	depreciation	on	investments.	
Net	realized	gain	or	loss	on	investments	is	the	difference	between	the	proceeds	
derived	upon	sale	or	foreclosure	of	a	loan	or	an	equity	investment	and	the	cost	
basis	of	such	loan	or	equity	investment.	Change	in	net	unrealized	appreciation	
or	depreciation	on	investments	is	the	amount,	if	any,	by	which	our	estimate	
of	the	fair	value	of	our	investment	portfolio	is	above	or	below	the	previously	
established	fair	value	or	the	cost	basis	of	the	portfolio.	Under	the	1940	Act	
and	the	SBIA,	our	loan	portfolio	and	other	investments	must	be	recorded	at	
fair	value.

Unlike	certain	lending	institutions,	we	are	not	permitted	to	establish	re-
serves	for	loan	losses,	but	adjust	quarterly	the	valuation	of	the	loan	portfolio	
to	reflect	our	estimate	of	the	current	value	of	the	total	loan	portfolio.	Since		
no	ready	market	exists	for	our	loans,	fair	value	is	subject	to	our	good	faith	
determination.	In	determining	such	fair	value,	we	and	our	Board	of	Directors		
consider	factors	such	as	the	financial	condition	of	its	borrowers	and	the		
adequacy	of	their	collateral.	Any	change	in	the	fair	value	of	portfolio	loans	
or	other	investments	as	determined	by	us	is	reflected	in	net	unrealized		
depreciation	or	appreciation	of	investments	and	affects	net	increase	in	
net	assets	resulting	from	operations	but	has	no	impact	on	net	investment	
income	or	distributable	income.

Our	investment	in	Medallion	Bank,	as	a	wholly-owned	portfolio	investment,	
is	also	subject	to	quarterly	assessments	of	fair	value.	We	conduct	a	thorough	
valuation	analysis	as	described	previously,	and	determine	whether	any	factors	
give	rise	to	valuation	different	than	recorded	book	value,	including	various	
regulatory	restrictions	that	were	established	at	Medallion	Bank’s	inception,	by		
the	FDIC	and	State	of	Utah,	and	also	by	additional	marketplace	restrictions,	
such	as	the	ability	to	transfer	industrial	bank	charters.	As	a	result	of	this	
valuation	process,	we	used	Medallion	Bank’s	actual	results	of	operations	as	the		
best	estimate	of	changes	in	fair	value,	and	recorded	the	results	as	a	component	
of	unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	on	investments,	although	changes	in	
these	restrictions	and	other	applicable	factors	could	change	these	conclusions	
in	the	future.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Since	Medallion	Bank	commenced	operations	in	December	2003,	we	had	
historically	consolidated	Medallion	Bank’s	financial	statements	with	those	
of	our	own.	Although	Medallion	Bank	is	not	an	investment	company,	and	
SEC	rules	generally	do	not	permit	investment	companies	such	as	ours	to	
consolidate	the	financial	statements	of	non-investment	companies,	such	
as	Medallion	Bank,	we	had	sought	and	obtained	a	letter	from	the	SEC	in	

March	2004	permitting	such	consolidation.	We	believed	that	consolidating	
Medallion	Bank	provided	a	more	complete	and	accurate	representation	of	
our	full	scope	of	operations,	and	our	complete	financial	position	and	results	
of	operations.

During	August	2006,	we	filed	a	registration	statement	on	Form	N-2	which	
the	SEC	staff	reviewed	and	on	which	they	provided	comments,	including		
those	relating	to	the	consolidation	of	the	accounts	of	Medallion	Bank	
which	have	evolved	since	2004.	Based	on	discussion	with	the	SEC	staff,	we	
determined	during	the	2006	fourth	quarter	to	voluntarily	not	consolidate	
Medallion	Bank	and	present	Medallion	Bank	as	a	portfolio	company.	We	
determined	that	this	change	represents	a	change	in	the	reporting	entity	as	
described	in	SFAS	No.	154,	“Accounting	Changes	and	Error	Corrections.”	
Accordingly	we	retrospectively	applied	this	change	to	the	financial	statements	
of	all	prior	periods	presented,	including	previously	issued	interim	periods	
presented,	included	in	our	2006	Form	10-K.	The	effect	of	this	retrospective	
application	was	to	present	our	financial	position	and	results	of	operations	as		
if	Medallion	Bank	had	not	been	consolidated	for	all	periods	presented	and	to	
present	Medallion	Bank	as	an	unconsolidated	portfolio	investment.	Although	
this	created	changes	in	the	reported	levels	of	assets,	liabilities,	revenues,	and	
expenses,	our	net	increase	in	net	assets	resulting	from	operations,	shareholders’	
equity,	and	the	related	amounts	per	common	share	were	unchanged.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Net	increase	in	net	assets	resulting	from	operations	was	$15,248,000	or	
$0.86	per	diluted	common	share	in	2008,	down	$188,000	or	1%	from	
$15,436,000	or	$0.87	per	share	in	2007.	The	2008	changes	primarily	
reflected	lower	net	realized/unrealized	gains,	partially	offset	by	higher	net	
interest	and	noninterest	income	and	lower	operating	expenses.	Net	invest-
ment	income	after	taxes	was	$15,090,000	or	$0.85	per	share	in	2008,	up	
$9,792,000	from	$5,298,000	or	$0.30	per	share	in	2007.

Investment	income	was	$52,284,000	in	2008,	up	$891,000	or	2%	from	
$51,393,000	a	year	ago,	and	included	$4,471,000	from	interest	recoveries	
and	bonuses	on	certain	investments	in	2008,	compared	to	$821,000	in	
2007.	Also	included	in	2008	were	$6,000,000	in	dividends	from	Medallion	
Bank,	compared	to	$5,750,000	in	2007.	Excluding	those	items,	investment	
income	decreased	$3,009,000	or	7%,	primarily	reflecting	changes	in	the	
yields	earned.	The	yield	on	the	investment	portfolio	was	8.58%	in	2008,	
up	2%	from	8.44%	in	2007.	Excluding	the	extra	interest	and	dividends,	
the	2008	yield	was	down	7%	to	6.86%	from	7.36%	in	2007,	reflecting	the	
general	decrease	in	market	interest	rates	and	changes	in	the	portfolio	mix.	
Average	investments	outstanding	were	$609,634,000	in	2008	up	slightly	
from	$608,626,000	a	year	ago,	primarily	reflecting	loan	participations	sold,	
partly	offset	by	growth	in	the	medallion	loan	portfolio.

Medallion	loans	were	$402,964,000	at	year	end,	down	$95,919,000	or	
19%	from	$498,883,000	a	year	ago,	representing	70%	of	the	investment	
portfolio	compared	to	76%	a	year	ago,	and	were	yielding	6.42%	compared	
to	7.13%	a	year	ago,	a	decrease	of	10%,	reflecting	the	declining	interest	rate	
environment.	The	decrease	in	outstandings	primarily	reflected	an	increase	
in	loan	participations	sold	and	certain	fleet	repayments,	partially	offset	by	
portfolio	growth.	The	managed	medallion	portfolio,	which	includes	loans		
at	Medallion	Bank	and	those	serviced	for	third	parties,	was	$591,413,000		



Medallion Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries

page 24

ManaGeMent’S diScUSSiOn and analYSiS OF Financial cOnditiOn and ReSUltS OF OpeRatiOnS

at	year	end,	up	$472,000	from	$590,941,000	a	year	ago.	The	commercial		
loan	portfolio	was	$89,611,000	at	year	end,	compared	to	$91,782,000	a		
year	ago,	a	decrease	of	$2,171,000	or	2%,	and	represented	16%	of	the	
investment	portfolio,	compared	to	14%	a	year	ago.	The	decrease	primarily		
reflected	reductions	in	the	asset-based	and	other	secured	commercial	lending		
portfolios,	partially	offset	by	growth	in	the	high-yield	mezzanine	loan	
portfolio.	Commercial	loans	yielded	11.97%	at	year	end,	down	1%	from	
12.12%	a	year	ago,	reflecting	the	market	rate	decreases.	The	net	managed		
commercial	portfolio,	which	includes	loans	at	Medallion	Bank	and	those		
serviced	for	or	by	third	parties,	was	$167,576,000	at	year	end,	up	$1,593,000	
from	$166,983,000	a	year	ago,	primarily	reflecting	growth	in	the	high-yield	
mezzanine	loan	portfolio,	partially	offset	by	the	net	decrease	in	third	party	
loan	participations	purchased.	Investments	in	Medallion	Bank	and	other	
controlled	subsidiaries	were	$74,750,000	at	year	end,	up	$17,249,000	
or	30%	from	$57,501,000	a	year	ago,	primarily	reflecting	the	increase	
in	investments	in	the	SPAC	and	Medallion	Bank,	and	our	equity	in	the	
earnings	of	Medallion	Bank,	and	which	represented	13%	of	the	investment	
portfolio	compared	to	9%	a	year	ago,	and	which	yielded	8.22%	at	year	end,	
compared	to	13.64%	a	year	ago.	See	Notes	3	and	10	of	the	consolidated	
financial	statements	for	additional	information	about	Medallion	Bank	and	
the	other	controlled	subsidiaries.	Equity	investments	were	$3,272,000	at	
year	end,	down	$1,608,000	or	33%	from	$4,880,000	a	year	ago,	primarily		
reflecting	portfolio	depreciation,	partially	offset	by	increased	equity	purchases,	
and	represented	1%	of	the	investment	portfolio	at	both	year	ends,	and	had	a		
dividend	yield	of	4.33%,	compared	to	4.70%	a	year	ago.	Investment	securities	
were	zero	at	both	year	ends.	See	page	2	for	a	table	that	shows	balances	and	
yields	by	type	of	investment.

Interest	expense	was	$23,711,000	in	2008,	down	$6,993,000	or	23%	from	
$30,704,000	in	2007.	The	decrease	in	interest	expense	was	primarily	due	to		
the	decreased	cost	of	borrowed	funds.	The	cost	of	borrowed	funds	was	4.92%		
in	2008,	compared	to	6.24%	a	year	ago,	a	decrease	of	21%,	reflecting	the	
peak	in	rates	during	2007,	and	their	subsequent	decline	as	the	Fed	lowered	
interest	rates,	and	that	impact	on	the	adjustable	rate	nature	of	much	of	our		
borrowings.	Average	debt	outstanding	was	$482,007,000	in	2008,	compared	
to	$492,022,000	a	year	ago,	a	decrease	of	2%,	reflecting	changes	in	the	levels		
of	borrowings	used	to	fund	portfolio	investments.	See	page	2	for	a	table	which	
shows	average	balances	and	cost	of	funds	for	our	funding	sources.

Net	interest	income	was	$28,573,000	and	the	net	interest	margin	was	
4.69%	in	2008,	up	$7,884,000	or	38%	from	$20,689,000	a	year	ago,	
which	represented	a	net	interest	margin	of	3.40%,	all	reflecting	the	items	
discussed	above.

Noninterest	income,	which	is	comprised	of	servicing	fee	income,	prepayment	
fees,	late	charges,	and	other	miscellaneous	income	was	$3,837,000	in	2008,	
up	$1,393,000	or	57%	from	$2,444,000	a	year	ago.	Included	in	noninterest		
income	in	2008	were	unusually	large	prepayment	penalties	relating	to	the	
payoffs	of	several	large	fleets	of	$667,000.	Excluding	those	prepayment	
penalties,	noninterest	income	increased	28%	in	2008,	primarily	reflecting	
higher	servicing	fees	generated	from	the	portfolio	base,	other	prepayment	
penalties,	and	investment	partnership	income	distributions.

Operating	expenses	were	$17,320,000	in	2008,	down	$515,000	or	3%		
from	$17,835,000	in	2007.	Salaries	and	benefits	expense	was	$10,689,000	
in	the	year,	up	$497,000	or	5%	from	$10,192,000	in	2007,	primarily	

reflecting	higher	staffing	and	salary	levels,	partially	offset	by	lower	bonus	
accruals,	higher	salary	deferrals	related	to	loan	originations,	and	lower	stock	
compensation	expense.	Professional	fees	were	$1,606,000	in	2008,	down	
$997,000	or	38%	from	$2,603,000	a	year	ago,	primarily	reflecting	higher	
2007	costs	related	to	investment	projects	under	consideration,	higher		
accounting	costs,	including	costs	related	to	deconsolidating	Medallion	Bank		
and	for	consultant	services	for	operational	reviews,	and	higher	legal	expenses.		
Rent	expense	was	$1,271,000	in	2008,	down	$82,000	or	6%	from	$1,353,000	
in	2007,	primarily	reflecting	catch	up	rent	reimbursements	received	from	an	
unconsolidated	portfolio	company.	Other	operating	expenses	of	$3,754,000	
in	2008	were	up	$67,000	or	2%	from	$3,687,000	a	year	ago,	reflecting	
higher	directors’	fees,	franchise	tax	accruals,	and	travel	and	entertainment	
expense,	partially	offset	by	lower	loan	collections	costs,	office	expense,	and	
insurance	expense.

Income	tax	expense	was	$0	in	2008	and	2007.

Net	change	in	unrealized	appreciation	on	investments	was	$3,904,000	in	
2008,	compared	to	depreciation	of	$4,034,000	in	2007,	an	increase	of	
$7,938,000	in	appreciation	in	2008.	Net	change	in	unrealized	appreciation,	
net	of	the	net	unrealized	appreciation	or	depreciation	on	Medallion	Bank	
and	the	other	controlled	subsidiaries	was	$6,323,000	in	2008,	compared	to	
depreciation	of	$6,326,000	in	2007,	resulting	in	increased	appreciation	of	
$12,649,000	in	2008.	Unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	arises	when	we	
make	valuation	adjustments	to	the	investment	portfolio.	When	investments	
are	sold	or	written	off,	any	resulting	realized	gain	(loss)	is	grossed	up	to	
reflect	previously	recorded	unrealized	components.	As	a	result,	movement	
between	periods	can	appear	distorted.	The	2008	activity	resulted	from	net	
unrealized	appreciation	on	foreclosed	property	of	$8,351,000	and	reversals	
of	unrealized	depreciation	associated	with	fully	depreciated	loans	which	were	
charged	off	of	$5,230,000,	partially	offset	by	net	unrealized	depreciation	
on	loans	of	$3,875,000,	net	depreciation	on	Medallion	Bank	and	other	
controlled	subsidiaries	of	$2,419,000,	net	unrealized	depreciation	on	equity	
investments	of	$2,305,000,	and	by	net	reversals	of	unrealized	appreciation	
associated	with	foreclosed	properties	that	were	sold	of	$1,078,000.	The	
2007	activity	resulted	from	reversals	of	unrealized	appreciation	associated	
with	equity	investments	that	were	sold	of	$11,647,000,	net	unrealized	
depreciation	on	loans	of	$4,246,000,	and	reversals	of	unrealized	appreciation	
associated	with	foreclosed	properties	that	were	sold	of	$1,336,000,	partially	
offset	by	net	unrealized	appreciation	on	foreclosed	property	of	$8,076,000,	
net	appreciation	on	Medallion	Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries		
of	$2,292,000,	net	unrealized	appreciation	on	equity	investments	of	
$1,994,000,	and	by	reversals	of	unrealized	depreciation	associated	with	fully	
depreciated	loans	which	were	charged	off	of	$833,000.	The	net	appreciation		
or	depreciation	on	Medallion	Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	described	
above	is	net	of	dividends	declared	by	them	to	Medallion	Financial	of	
$6,000,000	in	2008	and	$5,750,000	in	2007.

Our	net	realized	losses	on	investments	were	$3,746,000	in	2008,	compared		
to	gains	of	$14,172,000	in	2007.	The	2008	activity	reflected	the	reversals		
described	in	the	unrealized	paragraph	above	and	net	direct	charge	offs	of		
$50,000	and	net	direct	losses	on	foreclosed	properties	of	$14,000,	partially		
offset	by	net	direct	gains	on	sales	of	equity	and	other	investments	of	$470,000.	
The	2007	activity	reflected	the	above	and	net	direct	gains	on	sales	of	equity	
and	other	investments	of	$1,999,000	and	net	direct	recoveries	of	$23,000.
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The	Company’s	net	realized/unrealized	gains	on	investments	were	$158,000	
in	2008	and	$10,138,000	in	2007,	reflecting	the	above.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Net	increase	in	net	assets	resulting	from	operations	was	$15,436,000	or	$0.87		
per	diluted	common	share	in	2007,	up	$2,328,000	or	18%	from	$13,108,000	
or	$0.74	per	share	in	2006.	The	2007	increase	primarily	reflected	higher	net	
interest	income	and	net	realized/unrealized	gains,	partially	offset	by	higher	
operating	expenses	and	lower	noninterest	income.	Net	investment	income	
after	taxes	was	$5,298,000	or	$0.30	per	share	in	2007,	up	$2,133,000	or	67%	
from	$3,165,000	or	$0.18	per	share	in	2006.

Investment	income	was	$51,393,000	in	2007,	up	$11,758,000	or	30%	from		
$39,635,000	a	year	ago,	and	included	$821,000	from	interest	recoveries	
on	certain	investments	in	2007,	compared	to	$1,556,000	in	2006.	Also	
included	in	2007	were	$5,750,000	in	dividends	from	Medallion	Bank.	
Excluding	those	items,	investment	income	increased	$6,743,000	or	18%,	
primarily	reflecting	growth	in	the	investment	portfolios	and	to	a	lesser	
extent,	changes	in	the	yields	earned.	The	yield	on	the	investment	portfolio	
was	8.44%	in	2007,	up	9%	from	7.71%	in	2006.	Excluding	the	interest		
recoveries	and	dividends,	the	2007	yield	was	down	1%	to	7.36%	from	
7.42%	in	2006,	reflecting	the	general	decrease	in	market	interest	rates	
and	changes	in	the	portfolio	mix.	Average	investments	outstanding	were	
$608,626,000	in	2007,	up	19%	from	$513,059,000	a	year	ago,	primarily	
reflecting	growth	in	the	medallion	loan	portfolio.

Medallion	loans	were	$498,883,000	at	year	end,	up	$70,634,000	or	17%	
from	$428,249,000	a	year	ago,	representing	76%	of	the	investment	portfolio	
compared	to	72%	a	year	ago,	and	were	yielding	7.13%	compared	to	6.93%	
a	year	ago,	an	increase	of	3%.	The	increase	in	outstandings	primarily	reflected		
efforts	to	book	new	business,	primarily	in	the	New	York	City	market,	and	
also	reflected	the	increase	in	medallion	values.	The	managed	medallion	
portfolio,	which	includes	loans	at	Medallion	Bank	and	those	serviced	for	
third	parties,	was	$590,941,000	at	year	end,	up	$62,965,000	or	12%	from	
$527,976,000	a	year	ago.	The	commercial	loan	portfolio	was	$91,782,000	
at	year	end,	compared	to	$88,207,000	a	year	ago,	an	increase	of	$3,575,000	
or	4%,	and	represented	14%	of	the	investment	portfolio	compared	to		
15%	a	year	ago.	The	increase	primarily	reflected	growth	in	the	high-yield	
mezzanine	loan	portfolio,	partially	offset	by	increases	in	valuation	allowances.	
Commercial	loans	yielded	12.12%	at	year	end,	down	1%	from	12.21%	a		
year	ago,	reflecting	the	interest	rate	cycle	peak	in	2007	and	the	beginning		
of	market	rate	decreases.	The	managed	commercial	portfolio,	which	includes		
loans	at	Medallion	Bank	and	those	serviced	for	third	parties,	was	$166,983,000	
at	year	end,	up	$10,778,000	or	7%	from	$156,205,000	a	year	ago,	primarily		
reflecting	the	increases	described	above	and	growth	at	Medallion	Bank,	
partially	offset	by	the	net	increase	in	third	party	loan	participations	purchased.		
Investments	in	Medallion	Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	was	
$57,501,000	at	year	end,	up	$7,053,000	or	14%	from	$50,448,000	a	year	
ago,	primarily	reflecting	the	increased	value	of	those	investments,	a	large	
portion	of	which	reflected	the	earnings	of	Medallion	Bank,	and	which	
represented	9%	of	the	investment	portfolio	for	both	years,	and	which	
yielded	13.79%	the	end	of	2007,	compared	to	0.00%	a	year	ago.	See	Note	
4	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements	for	additional	information	about	
Medallion	Bank	and	the	other	controlled	subsidiaries.	Equity	investments	
were	$4,880,000,	down	$11,188,000	or	70%	from	$16,068,000	a	year	ago,		

primarily	reflecting	the	sale	of	a	portion	of	the	Clear	Channel	common	stock		
received	for	our	ownership	interest	in	Media,	partially	offset	by	portfolio	
appreciation,	and	represented	1%	of	the	investment	portfolio	and	had	a	
dividend	yield	of	4.70%,	compared	to	3%	and	2.23%	a	year	ago.	Investment	
securities	were	zero	at	year	end,	compared	to	$9,961,000	a	year	ago,	when	
they	represented	2%	of	the	investment	portfolio	and	yielded	5.09%.	See	
page	17	for	a	table	that	shows	balances	and	yields	by	type	of	investment.

Interest	expense	was	$30,704,000	in	2007,	up	$6,514,000	or	27%	from	
$24,190,000	in	2006.	The	increase	in	interest	expense	was	due	to	increased	
levels	of	borrowings	compounded	by	the	higher	cost	of	borrowed	funds.	
Average	debt	outstanding	was	$492,022,000	for	2007,	compared	to	
$425,061,000	a	year	ago,	an	increase	of	16%,	primarily	reflecting	increased	
borrowings	used	to	fund	portfolio	investment	growth.	The	cost	of	borrowed	
funds	was	6.24%	in	2007,	compared	to	5.69%	a	year	ago,	an	increase	10%,	
reflecting	increases	in	the	general	level	of	interest	rates	over	the	last	year,	and	
the	adjustable	rate	nature	of	much	of	our	borrowings.	See	page	22	for	a	table	
which	shows	average	balances	and	cost	of	funds	for	our	funding	sources.

Net	interest	income	was	$20,689,000	and	the	net	interest	margin	was	
3.40%	for	2007,	up	$5,244,000	or	34%	from	$15,445,000	a	year	ago,	
which	represented	a	net	interest	margin	of	3.01%,	all	reflecting	the	items	
discussed	above.

Noninterest	income,	which	is	comprised	of	servicing	fee	income,	prepayment		
penalties,	late	charges,	and	other	miscellaneous	income	was	$2,444,000	in	
2007,	down	$202,000	or	8%	from	$2,646,000	a	year	ago.	Included	in	2006	
was	$629,000	of	unusually	large	prepayment	penalties	from	several	large	
paid-off	loans.	Excluding	those	prepayment	penalties,	noninterest	income	
increased	21%	in	2007,	reflecting	higher	servicing	fees,	other	prepayment	
penalties,	and	late	charges	on	a	larger	portfolio	base.

Operating	expenses	were	$17,835,000	in	2007,	up	$2,909,000	or	20%	
from	$14,926,000	in	2006.	Salaries	and	benefits	expense	was	$10,192,000	
in	the	year,	up	$1,999,000	or	24%	from	$8,193,000	in	2006,	primarily		
reflecting	higher	bonus	accruals	and	an	increase	in	headcount	and	salary		
levels,	partially	offset	by	increased	salary	deferrals	related	to	loan	originations.	
Professional	fees	were	$2,603,000	in	2007,	up	$648,000	or	33%	from	
$1,955,000	a	year	ago.	The	increase	primarily	reflected	higher	investment	
project-related	professional	costs,	higher	accounting	costs,	including	costs	
related	to	deconsolidating	Medallion	Bank	and	for	consultant	services	for	
operational	reviews,	and	higher	legal	expenses.	Rent	expense	was	$1,353,000	
in	the	year,	up	$87,000	or	7%	compared	to	$1,266,000	in	2006,	reflecting	
lease	adjustments.	Other	operating	expenses	of	$3,687,000	in	2007	were	
up	$175,000	or	5%	from	$3,512,000	a	year	ago,	primarily	reflecting	higher	
general	office	expenses	and	franchise	tax	accruals,	partially	offset	by	lower	
director’s	fees	and	loan	collections	costs.

Income	tax	expense	was	$0	in	2007	and	2006.

Net	unrealized	depreciation	on	investments	of	$4,034,000	in	2007,	compared	
to	appreciation	of	$6,863,000	in	2006,	a	decrease	of	$10,897,000.	Net	change		
in	unrealized	depreciation,	net	of	the	net	change	in	unrealized	appreciation	
on	Medallion	Bank	and	the	other	controlled	subsidiaries,	was	$6,326,000	in	
2007,	compared	to	$591,000	in	2006,	resulting	in	increased	depreciation	of	
$5,735,000	in	2007.	Unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	arises	when	we	
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make	valuation	adjustments	to	the	investment	portfolio.	When	investments		
are	sold	or	written	off,	any	resulting	realized	gain	(loss)	is	grossed	up	to	reflect		
previously	recorded	unrealized	components.	As	a	result,	movement	between	
periods	can	appear	distorted.	The	2007	activity	resulted	from	reversals	of	
unrealized	appreciation	associated	with	equity	investments	that	were	sold	
of	$11,647,000,	net	unrealized	depreciation	on	loans	of	$4,246,000,	and	
reversals	of	unrealized	appreciation	associated	with	foreclosed	properties	that		
were	sold	of	$1,336,000,	partially	offset	by	net	unrealized	appreciation	on	
foreclosed	property	of	$8,076,000,	net	appreciation	on	Medallion	Bank	and		
other	controlled	subsidiaries	of	$2,292,000,	net	unrealized	appreciation	on		
equity	investments	of	$1,994,000,	and	by	reversals	of	unrealized	depreciation	
associated	with	fully	depreciated	loans	which	were	charged	off	of	$833,000.	
The	net	appreciation	on	Medallion	Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	
described	above	is	net	of	the	$5,750,000	of	dividends	declared	by	them	to	
Medallion	Financial	in	2007.	The	2006	activity	resulted	from	net	appreciation	
on	Medallion	Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries	of	$7,454,000,	net	
unrealized	appreciation	on	equity	investments	of	$4,236,000,	reversals	of	
unrealized	depreciation	associated	with	fully	depreciated	loans	which	were	
charged	off	of	$4,016,000,	and	net	unrealized	appreciation	on	foreclosed	
property	of	$921,000,	partially	offset	by	net	unrealized	depreciation	on	
loans	of	$7,185,000	and	reversals	of	unrealized	appreciation	associated	with	
equity	investments	that	were	sold	of	$2,579,000.	See	Notes	3	and	4	to	the	
consolidated	financial	statements	for	more	information	about	Medallion	
Bank	and	other	controlled	subsidiaries.

Our	net	realized	gains	on	investments	were	$14,172,000	in	2007,	compared	
to	$3,080,000	in	2006.	The	2007	activity	reflected	the	reversals	described	in	
the	unrealized	paragraph	above	and	by	net	direct	gains	on	sales	of	equity	and	
other	investments	of	$1,999,000	and	net	direct	recoveries	of	$23,000.	The	
2006	activity	reflected	the	above	and	net	direct	gains	on	sales	of	equity	and	
other	investments	of	$5,997,000	and	gains	on	sales	of	foreclosed	property	of	
$4,000,	partially	offset	by	net	direct	chargeoffs	$1,484,000.

The	Company’s	net	realized/unrealized	gains	on	investments	were	$10,138,000		
in	2007,	compared	to	$9,943,000	in	2006,	reflecting	the	above.

Asset/Liability Management

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We,	like	other	financial	institutions,	are	subject	to	interest	rate	risk	to	the	
extent	that	our	interest-earning	assets	(consisting	of	medallion,	commer-
cial,	and	consumer	loans;	and	investment	securities)	reprice	on	a	different	
basis	over	time	in	comparison	to	our	interest-bearing	liabilities	(consisting	
primarily	of	credit	facilities	with	banks	and	other	lenders,	bank	certificates	
of	deposit,	and	subordinated	SBA	debentures).

Having	interest-bearing	liabilities	that	mature	or	reprice	more	frequently	
on	average	than	assets	may	be	beneficial	in	times	of	declining	interest	rates,	
although	such	an	asset/liability	structure	may	result	in	declining	net	earn-
ings	during	periods	of	rising	interest	rates.	Abrupt	increases	in	market	rates	

of	interest	may	have	an	adverse	impact	on	our	earnings	until	we	are	able	to	
originate	new	loans	at	the	higher	prevailing	interest	rates.	Conversely,	having	
interest-earning	assets	that	mature	or	reprice	more	frequently	on	average	
than	liabilities	may	be	beneficial	in	times	of	rising	interest	rates,	although	
this	asset/liability	structure	may	result	in	declining	net	earnings	during	peri-
ods	of	falling	interest	rates.	This	mismatch	between	maturities	and	interest	
rate	sensitivities	of	our	interest-earning	assets	and	interest-bearing	liabilities	
results	in	interest	rate	risk.

The	effect	of	changes	in	interest	rates	is	mitigated	by	regular	turnover	of	the	
portfolio.	Based	on	past	experience,	we	anticipate	that	approximately	40%	
of	the	taxicab	medallion	portfolio	will	mature	or	be	prepaid	each	year.	We	
believe	that	the	average	life	of	our	loan	portfolio	varies	to	some	extent	as	a	
function	of	changes	in	interest	rates.	Borrowers	are	more	likely	to	exercise	
prepayment	rights	in	a	decreasing	interest	rate	environment	because	the	
interest	rate	payable	on	the	borrower’s	loan	is	high	relative	to	prevailing	
interest	rates.	Conversely,	borrowers	are	less	likely	to	prepay	in	a	rising	inter-
est	rate	environment.	However,	borrowers	may	prepay	for	a	variety	of	other	
reasons,	such	as	to	monetize	increases	in	the	underlying	collateral	values,	
particularly	in	the	medallion	loan	portfolio.

In	addition,	we	manage	our	exposure	to	increases	in	market	rates	of	interest	
by	incurring	fixed-rate	indebtedness,	such	as	ten	year	subordinated	SBA	
debentures,	and	by	setting	repricing	intervals	or	the	maturities	of	tranches	
drawn	under	the	revolving	lines	of	credit	or	issued	as	certificates	of	deposit,	
for	terms	of	up	to	five	years.	We	had	outstanding	SBA	debentures	of	
$88,250,000	with	a	weighted	average	interest	rate	of	6.10%,	constituting	
19%	of	our	total	indebtedness	as	of	December	31,	2008.	Also,	as	of	De-
cember	31,	2008,	portions	of	the	adjustable	rate	debt	with	banks	repriced	
at	intervals	of	as	long	as	45	months,	and	certain	of	the	certificates	of	deposit	
were	for	terms	of	up	to	35	months,	further	mitigating	the	immediate	impact	
of	changes	in	market	interest	rates.

A	relative	measure	of	interest	rate	risk	can	be	derived	from	our	interest	rate	
sensitivity	gap.	The	interest	rate	sensitivity	gap	represents	the	difference	
between	interest-earning	assets	and	interest-bearing	liabilities,	which	mature	
and/or	reprice	within	specified	intervals	of	time.	The	gap	is	considered	to	be	
positive	when	repriceable	assets	exceed	repriceable	liabilities,	and	negative	
when	repriceable	liabilities	exceed	repriceable	assets.	A	relative	measure	of	
interest	rate	sensitivity	is	provided	by	the	cumulative	difference	between	in-
terest	sensitive	assets	and	interest	sensitive	liabilities	for	a	given	time	interval	
expressed	as	a	percentage	of	total	assets.

The	following	table	presents	our	interest	rate	sensitivity	gap	at	December	
31,	2008,	compared	to	the	respective	positions	at	the	end	of	2007	and	
2006.	The	principal	amount	of	interest	earning	assets	are	assigned	to	the	
time	frames	in	which	such	principal	amounts	are	contractually	obligated	to	
be	repriced.	We	have	not	reflected	an	assumed	annual	prepayment	rate	for	
such	assets	in	this	table.
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 December 31, 2008 Cumulative Rate Gap (1)

  More Than More Than More Than More Than More Than  
  1 and 2 and 3 and 4 and 5 and 
 Less Than Less Than Less Than Less Than Less Than Less Than 
(Dollars in thousands) 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years 5 Years 6 Years Thereafter Total

Earning assets
Floating-rate	 $   17,013 $           — $         — $       — $         — $        — $          — $  17,013
Adjustable	rate	 9,125 1,061 29,059 9,136 — — — 48,381
Fixed-rate	 30,647 68,152 221,094 46,011 43,649 8,767 13,724 432,044
Cash	 	 32,075 — — — — — — 32,075

Total earning assets	 $   88,860 $    69,213 $250,153 $55,147 $ 43,649 $   8,767 $   13,724 $529,513

Interest bearing liabilities
Revolving	line	of	credit	 $ 314,858 $           — $         — $       — $         — $        — $          — $314,858
Notes	payable	to	banks	 15,000 — 11,542 — — — — 26,542
Preferred	securities	 — — — 33,000 — — — 33,000
SBA	debentures	 — — 17,985 13,500 19,450 13,500 23,815 88,250

Total liabilities	 $ 329,858 $— $  29,527 $46,500 $ 19,450 $ 13,500 $   23,815 $462,650

Interest rate gap	 $(240,998) $69,213 $220,626 $  8,647 $ 24,199 $ (4,733) $(10,091) $  66,863

Cumulative interest rate gap	(2)	 $(240,998) $(171,785) $  48,841 $57,488 $ 81,687 $ 76,954 $   66,863 —

December	31,	2007	(2)	 $	(278,252)	 $	(185,966)	 $	(21,721)	 $	77,901	 $108,459	 $	96,540	 $			87,305	 —
December	31,	2006	(2)	 (267,015)	 (152,783)	 (8,334)	 53,943	 127,019	 115,046	 89,104	 —

(1)  The ratio of the cumulative one year gap to total interest rate sensitive assets was (46%), (44%), and (49%), as of December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, and was (34%), (34%), and (34%), on a 
combined basis with Medallion Bank.

(2)  Adjusted for the medallion loan 40% prepayment assumption results in a cumulative one year negative interest rate gap and related ratio of ($107,671) or (20%) for December 31, 2008, compared 
to a negative rate gap of ($127,292) or (20%) and ($127,184) or ( 23%) for December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and was ($155,873) or (16%), ($156,202) or (16%), and ($117,151) or 
(14%) on a combined basis with Medallion Bank.

Our	interest	rate	sensitive	assets	were	$529,513,000	and	interest	rate		
sensitive	liabilities	were	$462,650,000	at	December	31,	2008.	The	one-	
year	cumulative	interest	rate	gap	was	a	negative	$240,998,000	or	46%		
of	interest	rate	sensitive	assets,	compared	to	a	negative	$278,252,000	or		
44%	at	December	31,	2007	and	$267,015,000	or	49%	at	December	31,		
2006.	However,	using	our	estimated	40%	prepayment/refinancing	rate		
for	medallion	loans	to	adjust	the	interest	rate	gap	resulted	in	a	negative	
gap	of	$107,671,000	or	20%	at	December	31,	2008.	We	seek	to	manage	
interest	rate	risk	by	originating	adjustable-rate	loans,	by	incurring	fixed-rate	
indebtedness,	by	evaluating	appropriate	derivatives,	pursuing	securitization	
opportunities,	and	by	other	options	consistent	with	managing	interest		
rate	risk.

On	a	combined	basis	with	Medallion	Bank,	our	interest	rate	sensitive	assets	
were	approximately	$959,237,000	and	interest	rate	sensitive	liabilities	were	
$829,058,000	at	December	31,	2008.	The	one-year	cumulative	interest	rate	
gap	was	a	negative	$326,687,000	or	34%	of	interest	rate	sensitive	assets,	
compared	to	a	negative	$333,855,000	or	34%	and	$287,680,000	or	34%		
at	December	31,	2007	and	2006.	Using	our	estimated	40%	prepayment/	
refinancing	rate	for	medallion	loans	to	adjust	the	interest	rate	gap	resulted		
in	a	negative	gap	of	$155,873,000	or	16%	at	December	31,	2007.

Interest Rate Cap Agreements

From	time-to	time,	we	enter	into	interest	rate	cap	agreements	to	manage	
the	exposure	of	the	portfolio	to	increases	in	market	interest	rates	by	hedging	
a	portion	of	our	variable-rate	debt	against	increases	in	interest	rates.	There	
were	no	interest	rate	caps	outstanding	during	2008,	2007	and	2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our	sources	of	liquidity	are	the	revolving	lines	of	credit	with	Citibank	and	
DZ	Bank,	unfunded	commitments	from	the	SBA	for	long-term	deben-
tures	that	are	issued	to	or	guaranteed	by	the	SBA,	loan	amortization	and	
prepayments,	private	issuances	of	debt	securities,	and	participations	or	
sales	of	loans	to	third	parties.	As	a	RIC,	we	are	required	to	distribute	at	
least	90%	of	our	investment	company	taxable	income;	consequently,	we	
have	primarily	relied	upon	external	sources	of	funds	to	finance	growth.	
Trust	II’s	$225,000,000	line	with	Citibank	had	availability	of	$3,467,000	
as	of	December	31,	2008,	and	the	Trust	III’s	$200,000,000	revolving	line	
of	credit	with	DZ	Bank	has	$106,675,000	availability.	Medallion	Capital	
has	$8,500,000	of	additional	funding	commitments	with	the	SBA,	which	
requires	capital	contributions	from	us	of	up	to	$4,250,000.	Since	SBA	
financing	subjects	its	recipients	to	certain	regulations,	we	will	seek	funding	
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at	the	subsidiary	level	to	maximize	its	benefits.	Lastly,	$13,000,000	was	
available	under	revolving	credit	agreements	with	commercial	banks,	and	ap-
proximately	$240,000	was	available	under	the	company’s	margin	loans.

Additionally,	Medallion	Bank,	our	wholly-owned,	unconsolidated	portfolio	
company	has	access	to	independent	sources	of	funds	for	our	business	origi-
nated	there,	primarily	through	brokered	certificates	of	deposit.	Medallion	
Bank	also	has	$25,000,000	available	under	Fed	Funds	lines	with	several	
commercial	banks.	In	addition,	Medallion	Bank,	as	a	non-RIC	subsidiary	of	
ours,	is	allowed	to	retain	all	earnings	in	the	business	to	fund	future	growth.

The	components	of	our	debt	were	as	follows	at	December	31,	2008.	See	
note	5	to	the	consolidated	financial	statements	on	page	F-2	for	details	of	the	
contractual	terms	of	our	borrowings.

(Dollars in thousands) Balance Percentage Rate (1)

Revolving	lines	of	credit	 $314,858	 68%	 3.28%
SBA	debentures	 88,250	 19	 6.10
Preferred	securities	 33,000	 7	 7.68
Notes	payable	to	banks	 26,542	 6	 4.64

Total outstanding debt	 $462,650	 100%	 4.20

Certificates	of	deposit		
	 at	Medallion	Bank	 366,408	 —	 3.85%

Total outstanding debt,  
 including Medallion Bank	 $829,058	 —	 4.04

(1) Weighted average contractual rate as of December 31, 2008.

Our	contractual	obligations	expire	on	or	mature	at	various	dates	through	
September	2037.	The	following	table	shows	all	contractual	obligations	at	
December	31,	2008.

 a. Payments due by period  

 Less than     More than 
(Dollars in thousands) 1 year 1–2 years 2–3 years 3–4 years 4–5 years 5 years Total

Revolving	lines	of	credit	 $221,533	 $								—	 $										—	 $								—	 $			93,325	 $								—	 $314,858
SBA	debentures	 —	 —	 17,985	 13,500	 19,450	 37,315	 88,250
Preferred	securities	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 33,000	 33,000
Notes	payable	to	banks	 15,326	 326	 10,890	 —	 —	 —	 26,542

Total  $236,859 $     326 $  28,875 $13,500 $112,775 $70,315 $462,650

Certificates	of	deposit	at	Medallion	Bank	 229,863	 54,986	 81,559	 —	 —	 —	 366,408

Total, including Medallion Bank $466,722 $55,312 $110,434 $13,500 $112,775 $70,315 $829,058

We	value	our	portfolio	at	fair	value	as	determined	in	good	faith	by	management	
and	approved	by	the	Board	of	Directors	in	accordance	with	our	valuation	
policy.	Unlike	certain	lending	institutions,	we	are	not	permitted	to	establish	
reserves	for	loan	losses.	Instead,	we	must	value	each	individual	investment	
and	portfolio	loan	on	a	quarterly	basis.	We	record	unrealized	depreciation	
on	investments	and	loans	when	we	believe	that	an	asset	has	been	impaired	
and	full	collection	is	unlikely.	We	record	unrealized	appreciation	on	equities	
if	we	have	a	clear	indication	that	the	underlying	portfolio	company	has	ap-
preciated	in	value	and,	therefore,	our	equity	investment	has	also	appreciated	
in	value.	Without	a	readily	ascertainable	market	value,	the	estimated	value	
of	our	portfolio	of	investments	and	loans	may	differ	significantly	from	the	
values	that	would	be	placed	on	the	portfolio	if	there	existed	a	ready	market	
for	the	investments.	We	adjust	the	valuation	of	the	portfolio	quarterly	to		
reflect	management’s	estimate	of	the	current	fair	value	of	each	investment		
in	the	portfolio.	Any	changes	in	estimated	fair	value	are	recorded	in	our	
statement	of	operations	as	net	unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	on		
investments.	Our	investment	in	Medallion	Bank,	as	a	wholly-owned	portfolio		
investment,	is	also	subject	to	quarterly	assessments	of	its	fair	value.	We		
conduct	a	thorough	valuation	analysis	as	described	previously,	and	determine		
whether	any	factors	give	rise	to	valuation	different	than	recorded	book	value.	
As	a	result	of	this	valuation	process,	we	used	Medallion	Bank’s	actual	results	
of	operations	as	the	best	estimate	of	changes	in	fair	value,	and	recorded	the	
result	as	a	component	of	unrealized	appreciation	(depreciation)	on	investments,	
although	changes	in	these	restrictions	and	other	applicable	factors	could	
change	these	conclusions	in	the	future.

In	addition,	the	illiquidity	of	our	loan	portfolio	and	investments	may		
adversely	affect	our	ability	to	dispose	of	loans	at	times	when	it	may	be		
advantageous	for	us	to	liquidate	such	portfolio	or	investments.	In	addition,		
if	we	were	required	to	liquidate	some	or	all	of	the	investments	in	the		
portfolio,	the	proceeds	of	such	liquidation	may	be	significantly	less	than		
the	current	value	of	such	investments.	Because	we	borrow	money	to	make		
loans	and	investments,	our	net	operating	income	is	dependent	upon	the		
difference	between	the	rate	at	which	we	borrow	funds	and	the	rate	at	which		
we	invest	these	funds.	As	a	result,	there	can	be	no	assurance	that	a	significant		
change	in	market	interest	rates	will	not	have	a	material	adverse	effect	on		
our	interest	income.	In	periods	of	sharply	rising	interest	rates,	our	cost	of		
funds	would	increase,	which	would	reduce	our	net	operating	income	before		
net	realized	and	unrealized	gains.	We	use	a	combination	of	long-term	and		
short-term	borrowings	and	equity	capital	to	finance	our	investing	activities.		
Our	long-term	fixed-rate	investments	are	financed	primarily	with	short-	
term	floating-rate	debt,	and	to	a	lesser	extent	by	term	fixed-rate	debt.	We		
may	use	interest	rate	risk	management	techniques	in	an	effort	to	limit	our		
exposure	to	interest	rate	fluctuations.	Such	techniques	may	include	various		
interest	rate	hedging	activities	to	the	extent	permitted	by	the	1940	Act.		
We	have	analyzed	the	potential	impact	of	changes	in	interest	rates	on	net		
interest	income.	Assuming	that	the	balance	sheet	were	to	remain	constant		
and	no	actions	were	taken	to	alter	the	existing	interest	rate	sensitivity,	and		
including	the	impact	on	Medallion	Bank,	a	hypothetical	immediate	1%		
increase	in	interest	rates	would	have	negatively	impacted	net	increase	in	net		
assets	resulting	from	operations	as	of	December	31,	2008	by	approximately	
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$1,702,000	on	an	annualized	basis,	compared	to	a	positive	impact	of	
$374,000	at	December	31,	2007,	and	the	impact	of	such	an	immediate	
increase	of	1%	over	a	one	year	period	would	have	been	($2,831,000)	at	
December	31,	2008,	compared	to	($2,895,000)	for	December	31,	2007.	
Although	management	believes	that	this	measure	is	indicative	of	our	
sensitivity	to	interest	rate	changes,	it	does	not	adjust	for	potential	changes	
in	credit	quality,	size,	and	composition	of	the	assets	on	the	balance	sheet,	
and	other	business	developments	that	could	affect	net	increase	in	net	assets	
resulting	from	operations	in	a	particular	quarter	or	for	the	year	taken	as	a	
whole.	Accordingly,	no	assurances	can	be	given	that	actual	results	would	not	
differ	materially	from	the	potential	outcome	simulated	by	these	estimates.

We	continue	to	work	with	investment	banking	firms	and	other	financial	
intermediaries	to	investigate	the	viability	of	a	number	of	other	financing	
options	which	include,	among	others,	the	sale	or	spin	off	certain	assets	or	
divisions,	the	development	of	a	securitization	conduit	program,	and	other		
independent	financing	for	certain	subsidiaries	or	asset	classes.	These	financing		
options	would	also	provide	additional	sources	of	funds	for	both	external	
expansion	and	continuation	of	internal	growth.

The	following	table	illustrates	sources	of	available	funds	for	us	and	each	of	
our	subsidiaries,	and	amounts	outstanding	under	credit	facilities	and	their	
respective	end	of	period	weighted	average	interest	rates	at	December	31,	
2008.	See	note	5	to	the	consolidated	financial	statements	for	additional	
information	about	each	credit	facility.

(Dollars in thousands) The Company MFC MCI MBC FSVC UTAH Total 12/31/2007

Cash	 	 $15,955	 $				2,754	 $		2,869	 $4,817	 $		5,680	 $									—	 $  32,075	 $		33,454
Bank loans	(1)	 20,000	 8,000	 —	 —	 —	 —	 28,000	 38,000
Amounts	undisbursed	 5,000	 8,000	 —	 —	 —	 —	 13,000	 24,000
Amounts	outstanding	 15,000	 11,542	 —	 —	 —	 —	 26,542	 20,850
Average	interest	rate	 3.61%	 5.59%	 —	 —	 —	 —	 4.47%	 6.81%
Maturity	 7/09	 8/09–7/11	 —	 —	 —	 —	 7/09–7/11	 6/08–6/10
Preferred Securities	(2)	 33,000	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 33,000	 33,000
Average	interest	rate	 7.68%	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 7.68%	 7.68%
Maturity	 9/37	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 9/37	 9/37
Lines of Credit	 —	 425,000	 —	 —	 —	 —	 425,000	 625,000
Amounts	undisbursed	 —	 110,142	 —	 —	 —	 —	 110,142	 213,551
Amounts	outstanding	 —	 314,858	 —	 —	 —	 —	 314,858	 411,449
Average	interest	rate	 —	 3.28%	 —	 —	 —	 —	 3.28%	 5.58%
Maturity	 —	 11/09–12/13	 —	 —	 —	 —	 11/09–12/13	 9/08–12/09
Margin loan	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —
Average	interest	rate	 —%	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —%	 —%
Maturity	 N/A	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 N/A	 N/A
SBA debentures	 —	 —	 46,750	 —	 50,000	 —	 96,750	 96,750
Amounts	undisbursed	 —	 —	 8,500	 —	 —	 —	 8,500	 19,500
Amounts	outstanding	 —	 —	 38,250	 —	 50,000	 —	 88,250	 77,250
Average	interest	rate	 —	 —	 6.10%	 —	 6.09%	 —	 6.10%	 6.05%
Maturity	 —	 —	 9/11–9/18	 —	 9/11–3/19	 —	 9/11–3/19	 9/11–3/16

Total cash and amounts  
 remaining undisbursed  
 under credit facilities	 $20,955	 $120,896	 $11,369	 $4,817	 $		5,680	 $									—	 $163,717	 $290,505

Total debt outstanding	 $48,000	 $326,400	 $38,250	 $					—	 $50,000	 $									—	 $462,650	 $542,549

Including Medallion Bank

Cash and cash equivalents	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 $				9,401	 $    9,401	 $		17,025
Certificates of deposit	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 366,408	 366,408	 299,083
Average	interest	rate	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 3.85%	 3.85%	 4.85%
Maturity	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 1/09–11/11	 1/09–11/11	 1/08–10/10

Total cash and amounts  
 remaining undisbursed  
 under credit facilities	 $20,955	 $120,896	 $11,369	 $4,806	 $		5,680	 $				9,401	 $173,107	 $307,530

Total debt outstanding	 $48,000	 $326,400	 $38,250	 $					—	 $50,000	 $366,408	 $829,058	 $841,632

(1) In June 2008, the $10,000 revolving note agreement with Citibank matured.

(2)  In December 2008, a new $200,000 five-year, revolving line of credit with DZ Bank was established, at the lower of the commercial paper rate, at 30 day LIBOR plus 0.75%, or 90 day LIBOR 
plus 0.50%; plus 0.95%. Also, the credit line with Citibank was extended to November 2009, at a reduced commitment level of $225,000 at 0.82% over the commercial paper rate, and the Merrill 
Lynch facility was paid off.

(3)  During 2008, FSVC and MCI issued $6,000 and $5,000 of debentures to the SBA, $3,000 of which bears interest until the March 2009 pooling at 5.70%, at which time they will be pooled, 
repriced, and termed until March 2019.
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Loan	amortization,	prepayments,	and	sales	also	provide	a	source	of	funding	
for	us.	Prepayments	on	loans	are	influenced	significantly	by	general	interest	
rates,	medallion	loan	market	values,	economic	conditions,	and	competition.

Based	on	current	market	conditions,	we	believe	Citibank	may	not	extend	the		
credit	facility	beyond	its	current	maturity	date	in	November	2009.	We	have		
available	liquidity	of	$106,675,000	under	our	revolving	credit	agreement		
with	DZ	Bank	as	of	December	31,	2008.	We	also	generate	liquidity	through	
deposits	generated	at	Medallion	Bank,	borrowing	arrangements	with	other	
banks,	and	through	the	issuance	of	SBA	debentures,	as	well	as	from	cash	flow		
from	operations.	In	addition,	we	may	choose	to	participate	a	greater	portion	
of	our	loan	portfolio	to	third	parties.	We	are	actively	seeking	additional	
sources	of	liquidity,	including	sources	of	liquidity	to	repay	our	borrowings	
under	the	Citibank	facility;	however,	given	current	market	conditions,	we	
cannot	assure	you	that	we	will	be	able	to	secure	additional	liquidity	on	terms	
favorable	to	us	or	at	all.	If	that	occurs,	we	may	decline	to	underwrite	lower	
yielding	loans	in	order	to	conserve	capital	until	credit	conditions	in	the	
market	become	more	favorable;	or	we	may	be	required	to	dispose	of	assets	
when	we	would	not	otherwise	do	so,	and	at	prices	which	may	be	below	
the	net	book	value	of	such	assets	in	order	for	us	to	repay	indebtedness	on	
a	timely	basis.	Also,	Medallion	Bank	is	not	a	RIC,	and	therefore	is	able	to	
retain	earnings	to	finance	growth.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In	October	2008,	the	FASB	issued	FSP	FAS	157-3,	“Determining	the	
Fair	Value	of	a	Financial	Asset	When	the	Market	for	That	Asset	Is	Not	
Active”.	The	FSP	clarifies	the	application	of	SFAS	No.	157,	“Fair	Value	
Measurement”,	and	provides	an	example	to	illustrate	key	considerations	
in	determining	the	fair	value	of	a	financial	asset	when	the	market	for	that	
financial	asset	is	not	active.	The	FSP	is	effective	upon	issuance,	including	for	
prior	periods	for	which	financial	statements	have	not	been	issued.	Revisions	
resulting	from	a	change	in	the	valuation	technique	or	its	application	should	
be	accounted	for	as	a	change	in	accounting	estimate;	however,	the	disclosure	
provisions	for	a	change	in	accounting	estimate	are	not	required	for	revisions	
resulting	from	a	change	in	valuation	technique	or	its	application.	We	do		
not	believe	that	this	pronouncement	will	have	an	impact	on	our	financial	
condition	or	results	of	operations.

In	April	2008,	the	FASB	issued	FSP	No.	FAS	142-3,	“Determination	of	the	
Useful	Life	of	Intangible	Assets”	(“FAS	142-3”),	which	amends	the	factors	
that	should	be	considered	in	developing	renewal	or	extension	assumptions	
used	for	purpose	of	determining	the	useful	life	of	a	recognized	intangible	
asset	under	SFAS	No.	142,	“Goodwill	and	Other	Intangible	Assets”	(“SFAS	
142”).	FAS	142-3	is	intended	to	improve	the	consistency	between	the	useful		
life	of	a	recognized	intangible	asset	under	SFAS	142	and	the	period	of	expected		
cash	flows	used	to	measure	the	fair	value	of	the	asset	under	SFAS	141(R),	

“Business	Combinations”,	and	other	US	generally	accepted	accounting	
principles.	FAS	142-3	is	effective	for	fiscal	years	beginning	after	December	
15,	2008.	Earlier	application	is	not	permitted.	The	Company	believes	the	
impact	of	adopting	FAS	142-3	will	not	have	a	material	effect	on	the	Con-
solidated	Financial	Statements.

In	March	2008,	the	FASB	issued	SFAS	No.	161,	“Disclosures	about	Derivative		
Instruments	and	Hedging	Activities”	(“SFAS	161”).	SFAS	161	requires	
specific	disclosures	regarding	the	location	and	amounts	of	derivative	instru-
ments	in	the	Company’s	financial	statements;	how	derivative	instruments	
and	related	hedged	items	are	accounted	for;	and	how	derivative	instruments	
and	related	hedged	items	affect	the	Company’s	financial	position,	financial	
performance,	and	cash	flows.	SFAS	161	is	effective	for	financial	statements	
issued	and	for	fiscal	years	and	interim	periods	after	November	15,	2008.	
Early	application	is	permitted.	We	do	not	believe	that	this	pronouncement	
will	have	an	impact	on	our	financial	condition	or	results	of	operations.

In	December	2007,	the	FASB	issued	SFAS	No.	160,	“Noncontrolling		
Interests	in	Consolidated	Financial	Statements-an	amendment	of	ARB		
No.	51”,	which	establishes	accounting	and	reporting	standards	for	the	
noncontrolling	interest	in	a	subsidiary	and	for	the	deconsolidation	of	a	
subsidiary	by	clarifying	that	a	noncontrolling	interest	in	a	subsidiary	is	an	
ownership	interest	in	the	consolidated	entity	that	should	be	reported	as		
a	component	of	equity.	It	requires	that	changes	in	a	parent’s	ownership	
interest	while	the	parent	retains	its	controlling	interest	be	accounted	for	as	
equity	transactions	and	any	retained	noncontrolling	equity	investment	upon	
the	deconsolidation	of	a	subsidiary	be	initially	measured	at	fair	value.	SFAS	
No.	160	is	effective	for	fiscal	years	beginning	on	or	after	December	15,	2008	
and	shall	be	applied	prospectively,	except	for	the	presentation	and	disclosure		
requirements	which	shall	be	applied	retrospectively.	We	do	not	believe	that	
this	pronouncement	will	have	an	impact	on	our	financial	condition	or	results		
of	operations.

In	December	2007,	the	FASB	issued	SFAS	No.	141R	(revised	2007),	“Busi-
ness	Combinations”	which	establishes	principles	and	requirements	on	how	
an	acquirer	recognizes	and	measures	in	its	financial	statements	the	identifi-
able	assets	acquired,	liabilities	assumed,	and	any	noncontrolling	interest	
in	the	acquiree	at	the	acquisition	date	fair	value,	as	well	as	the	recognition	
and	measurement	of	goodwill	acquired	in	a	business	combination.	SFAS	
No.	141R	also	requires	certain	disclosures	to	enable	users	of	the	financial	
statements	to	evaluate	the	nature	and	financial	effects	of	the	business	com-
bination.	Acquisition	costs	associated	with	the	business	combination	will	
generally	be	expensed	as	incurred.	SFAS	No.	141R	is	effective	prospectively	
to	business	combinations	in	fiscal	years	beginning	on	or	after	December	15,	
2008.	We	do	not	believe	that	this	pronouncement	will	have	an	impact	on	
our	financial	condition	or	results	of	operations.



Medallion Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries

page 31

ManaGeMent’S diScUSSiOn and analYSiS OF Financial cOnditiOn and ReSUltS OF OpeRatiOnS

Important Information Relating to Forward-Looking Statements

The	Private	Securities	Litigation	Reform	Act	of	1995	provides	a	safe	harbor		
for	forward-looking	statements	so	long	as	those	statements	are	identified	as		
forward-looking	and	are	accompanied	by	meaningful	cautionary	statements		
identifying	important	factors	that	could	cause	actual	results	to	differ	materially		
from	those	projected	in	such	statements.	In	connection	with	certain	forward-	
looking	statements	contained	in	this	Form	10-K	and	those	that	may	be	made		
in	the	future	by	us	or	on	our	behalf,	we	note	that	there	are	various	factors	
that	could	cause	actual	results	to	differ	materially	from	those	set	forth	in	any	
such	forward-looking	statements.	The	forward-looking	statements	contained	
in	this	Form	10-K	were	prepared	by	management	and	are	qualified	by,	and	
subject	to,	significant	business,	economic,	competitive,	regulatory,	and	other	
uncertainties	and	contingencies,	all	of	which	are	difficult	or	impossible	to	
predict,	and	many	of	which	are	beyond	our	control.	Accordingly,	there	can	
be	no	assurance	that	the	forward-looking	statements	contained	in	this	Form	
10-K	will	be	realized	or	that	actual	results	will	not	be	significantly	higher	

or	lower.	The	statements	have	not	been	audited	by,	examined	by,	compiled	
by,	or	subjected	to	agreed-upon	procedures	by	independent	accountants,	
and	no	third-party	has	independently	verified	or	reviewed	such	statements.	
Readers	of	this	Form	10-K	should	consider	these	facts	in	evaluating	the	
information	contained	herein.	In	addition,	our	business	and	operations	are	
subject	to	substantial	risks	which	increase	the	uncertainty	inherent	in	the	
forward-looking	statements	contained	in	this	Form	10-K.	The	inclusion	of	
the	forward-looking	statements	contained	in	this	Form	10-K	should	not		
be	regarded	as	a	representation	by	us	or	any	other	person	that	the	forward-	
looking	statements	contained	in	this	Form	10-K	will	be	achieved.	In	light	of	
the	foregoing,	readers	of	this	Form	10-K	are	cautioned	not	to	place	undue	
reliance	on	the	forward-looking	statements	contained	herein.	These	risks	
and	others	that	are	detailed	in	this	Form	10-K	and	other	documents	that	
we	file	from	time	to	time	with	the	Securities	and	Exchange	Commission,	
including	quarterly	reports	on	Form	10-Q	and	any	current	reports	on	Form	
8-K	must	be	considered	by	any	of	our	investors	or	potential	investors.

Our	management	is	responsible	for	establishing	and	maintaining	adequate	
internal	control	over	financial	reporting.	Internal	control	over	financial		
reporting	is	defined	in	Rule	13a-15(f )	and	15d-15(f )	promulgated	under	the		
Exchange	Act	as	a	process	designed	by,	or	under	the	supervision	of,	our	
principal	executive	and	principal	financial	officers	and	effected	by	our	Board	
of	Directors,	management,	and	other	personnel,	to	provide	reasonable		
assurance	regarding	the	reliability	of	financial	reporting	and	the	preparation	of		
financial	statements	for	external	purposes	in	accordance	with	generally	accepted	
accounting	principles,	and	includes	those	policies	and	procedures	that:

•		Pertain	to	the	maintenance	of	records	that	in	reasonable	detail	accurately	
and	fairly	reflect	the	transactions	and	dispositions	of	our	assets;

•		Provide	reasonable	assurance	that	transactions	are	recorded	as	necessary	
to	permit	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	generally	
accepted	accounting	principles,	and	that	our	receipts	and	expenditures	are	
being	made	only	in	accordance	with	authorizations	of	our	management	
and	directors;	and

•		Provide	reasonable	assurance	regarding	prevention	or	timely	detection	of	
unauthorized	acquisition,	use,	or	disposition	of	our	assets	that	could	have	
a	material	effect	on	the	financial	statements.

Because	of	its	inherent	limitations,	internal	control	over	financial	reporting		
may	not	prevent	or	detect	misstatements.	Projections	of	any	evaluation	
of	effectiveness	to	future	periods	are	subject	to	the	risk	that	controls	may	
become	inadequate	because	of	changes	in	conditions,	or	that	the	degree	of	
compliance	with	the	policies	or	procedures	may	deteriorate.

Our	management	assessed	the	effectiveness	of	our	internal	control	over	
financial	reporting	as	of	December	31,	2008.	In	making	this	assessment,	
management	used	the	criteria	set	forth	by	the	Committee	of	Sponsoring		
Organizations	of	the	Treadway	Commission	(“COSO”)	in	Internal	Control-
Integrated	Framework.	Based	on	its	assessment	and	those	criteria,	management		
believes	that	we	maintained	effective	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	
as	of	December	31,	2008.

We	believe	that	the	consolidated	financial	statements	included	in	this	report	
fairly	represent	our	consolidated	financial	position	and	consolidated	results	
of	operations	for	all	periods	presented.

Our	Independent	Registered	Public	Accounting	Firm,	Weiser	LLP,	has	
audited	and	issued	a	report	on	management’s	assessment	of	our	internal	
control	over	financial	reporting.	The	report	of	Weiser	LLP	appears	below.

ManaGeMent’S annUal RepORt On inteRnal cOntROl OveR Financial RepORtinG
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of  
Medallion Financial Corp.

We	have	audited	Medallion	Financial	Corp.	and	subsidiaries’	(the	“Company”)	
internal	control	over	financial	reporting	as	of	December	31,	2008,	based	on	
criteria	established	in	Internal	Control	—	Integrated	Framework	issued	by	
the	Committee	of	Sponsoring	Organizations	of	the	Treadway	Commission	
(“COSO”).	The	Company’s	management	is	responsible	for	maintaining	
effective	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	and	for	its	assessment	of	
the	effectiveness	of	internal	control	over	financial	reporting,	included	in	
the	accompanying	Management’s	Annual	Report	on	Internal	Control	over	
Financial	Reporting.	Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	the	
Company’s	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	based	on	our	audit.

We	conducted	our	audit	in	accordance	with	the	standards	of	the	Public	
Company	Accounting	Oversight	Board	(United	States).	Those	standards	
require	that	we	plan	and	perform	the	audit	to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	
about	whether	effective	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	was		
maintained	in	all	material	respects.	Our	audit	included	obtaining	an		
understanding	of	internal	control	over	financial	reporting,	assessing	the		
risk	that	a	material	weakness	exists,	and	testing	and	evaluating	the	design	
and	operating	effectiveness	of	internal	control,	based	on	the	assessed	risk,	
and	performing	such	other	procedures	as	we	considered	necessary	in	the	
circumstances.	We	believe	that	our	audit	provides	a	reasonable	basis	for		
our	opinion.

A	Company’s	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	is	a	process	designed	
to	provide	reasonable	assurance	regarding	the	reliability	of	financial	reporting	
and	the	preparation	of	financial	statements	for	external	purposes	in	accordance	
with	generally	accepted	accounting	principles.	A	Company’s	internal	control		
over	financial	reporting	includes	those	policies	and	procedures	that	(1)	pertain		
to	the	maintenance	of	records	that,	in	reasonable	detail,	accurately	and	fairly	
reflect	the	transactions	and	dispositions	of	the	assets	of	the	Company	(2)	

provide	reasonable	assurance	that	transactions	are	recorded	as	necessary	
to	permit	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	generally	
accepted	accounting	principles,	and	that	receipts	and	expenditures	of	the	
Company	are	being	made	only	in	accordance	with	authorizations	of	manage-
ment	and	directors	of	the	Company;	and	(3)	provide	reasonable	assurance	
regarding	prevention	or	timely	detection	of	unauthorized	acquisition,	use,		
or	disposition	of	the	Company’s	assets	that	could	have	a	material	effect	on	
the	financial	statements.

Because	of	its	inherent	limitations,	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	
may	not	prevent	or	detect	misstatements.	Also,	projections	of	any	evaluation	
of	effectiveness	to	future	periods	are	subject	to	the	risk	that	controls	may	
become	inadequate	because	of	changes	in	conditions,	or	that	the	degree	of	
compliance	with	the	policies	and	procedures	may	deteriorate.

In	our	opinion,	the	Company	maintained,	in	all	material	respects,	effective	
internal	control	over	financial	reporting	as	of	December	31,	2008,	based		
on	criteria	established	in	Internal	Control-Integrated	Framework	issued	by	
the	Committee	of	Sponsoring	Organizations	of	the	Treadway	Commission	
(“COSO”).

We	also	have	audited,	in	accordance	with	the	standards	of	the	Public	Company	
Accounting	Oversight	Board	(United	States),	the	consolidated	balance	sheets		
of	the	Company	including	the	consolidated	schedule	of	investments,	as	of	
December	31,	2008	and	2007,	and	the	related	consolidated	statements	of	
operations,	changes	in	net	assets,	cash	flows,	and	the	selected	financial	ratios	
and	other	data	for	each	of	the	three	years	in	the	three-year	period	ended	
December	31,	2008,	and	our	report	dated	March	13,	2009	expressed	an	
unqualified	opinion	on	those	consolidated	financial	statements.

Weiser LLP
New	York,	New	York
March	13,	2009

RepORt OF independent ReGiSteRed pUBlic accOUntinG FiRM
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Year Ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)   2008 2007 2006

Interest income on investments   $44,914 $44,176 $38,032
Dividends and interest income on short-term investments (1)   6,378 6,312 1,059
Medallion lease income   992 905 544

Total investment income   52,284 51,393 39,635

Total interest expense (2)   23,711 30,704 24,190

Net interest income   28,573 20,689 15,445

Total noninterest income   3,837 2,444 2,646

Salaries and benefits   10,689 10,192 8,193
Professional fees   1,606 2,603 1,955
Occupancy expense   1,271 1,353 1,266
Other operating expenses   3,754 3,687 3,512

Total operating expenses   17,320 17,835 14,926

Net investment income before income taxes (1) (3)   15,090 5,298 3,165
Income tax (provision) benefit   — — —

Net investment income after income taxes   15,090 5,298 3,165

Net realized gains (losses) on investments   (3,746) 14,172 3,080

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments   6,323 (6,326) (591)
Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on  Medallion Bank  
 and other controlled subsidiaries   (2,419) 2,292 7,454

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments   3,904 (4,034) 6,863

Net realized/unrealized gains on investments   158 10,138 9,943

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations   $15,248 $15,436 $13,108

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations per common share
Basic     $    0.87 $    0.88 $    0.76
Diluted    $    0.86 $    0.87 $    0.74

Dividends declared per share   $    0.76 $    0.76 $    0.70

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic     17,520,966 17,480,523 17,293,665
Diluted    17,722,575 17,786,310 17,761,039

(1) Includes $6,000 and $5,750 of dividend income in 2008 and 2007 from Medallion Bank.
(2)  Average borrowings outstanding were $482,007, $492,022, and $425,062, and the related average borrowing costs were 4.92%, 6.24%, and 5.69% for the years ended 

December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.
(3)  Includes $2,493, $2,027, and $1,891 of net revenues received from Medallion Bank for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 primarily for servicing fees, 

loan origination fees, and expense reimbursements. See notes 4 and 11 for additional information.
The accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
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(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)    December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Assets
Medallion loans, at fair value    $402,964 $498,883
Commercial loans, at fair value (1)    89,611 91,782
Investment in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries, at fair value   74,750 57,501
Investment securities, at fair value    — —
Equity investments, at fair value    3,272 4,880

Net investments ($347,517 at December 31, 2008 and $458,102 at  December 31, 2007  
 pledged as collateral under borrowing arrangements)    570,597 653,046

Cash and cash equivalents ($0 at December 31, 2008 and $852 at  December 31, 2007  
 restricted as to use by lender) (2)    32,075 33,454
Accrued interest receivable    2,149 2,449
Fixed assets, net    411 558
Goodwill, net    5,008 5,007
Other assets, net    36,445 26,748

Total assets    $646,685 $721,262

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    $    7,074 $    4,203
Accrued interest payable    2,015 2,087
Funds borrowed    462,650 542,549

Total liabilities    471,739 548,839

Commitments and contingencies    — —
Shareholders’ equity (net assets)
Preferred stock (1,000,000 shares of $0.01par value stock authorized —none outstanding)   — —
Common stock (50,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value stock authorized — 18,963,466  
 shares at December 31, 2008 and 18,902,416 shares at December 31, 2007 issued)   190 189
Treasury stock at cost (1,414,242 shares at December 31, 2008 and 1,406,551 at December 31, 2007)  (13,012) (12,938)
Capital in excess of par value    178,482 177,819
Accumulated undistributed net investment income (loss)    (1,650) 2,739
Accumulated undistributed net realized gains on investments    — —
Net unrealized appreciation on investments    10,936 4,614

Total shareholders’ equity (net assets)    174,946 172,423

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity    $646,685 $721,262

Number of common shares outstanding    17,549,224 17,495,865
Net asset value per share    $      9.97 $      9.86

(1) Includes a $3,100 loan to an entity which is majority owned by one of our controlled subsidiaries.
(2) Includes $100 in an FDIC insured deposit with Medallion Bank.
The accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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Year Ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)   2008 2007 2006

Net investment income after income taxes   $  15,090 $    5,298 $    3,165
Net realized gains (losses) on investments   (3,746) 14,172 3,080
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments   3,904 (4,034) 6,863

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations   15,248 15,436 13,108

Investment income, net   (13,276) (6,085) (6,049)
Realized gain from investment transactions, net   (38) (7,200) (5,377)

Dividends and distributions to shareholders’ (1)   (13,314) (13,285) (11,426)

Exercise of stock options   663 971 1,592
Treasury stock acquired   (74) (327) —

Capital share transactions   589 644 1,592

Total increase in net assets   2,523 2,795 3,274
Net assets at the beginning of the year   172,423 169,628 166,354

Net assets at the end of the year (2)   $174,946 $172,423 $169,628

Capital share activity
Common stock issued, beginning of year   18,902,416 18,799,766 18,546,648
Exercise of stock options   61,050 102,650 253,118

Common stock issued, end of year   18,963,466 18,902,416 18,799,766

Treasury stock, beginning of year   (1,406,551) (1,373,351) (1,373,351)
Treasury stock acquired   (7,691) (33,200) —

Treasury stock, end of year   (1,414,242) (1,406,551) (1,373,351)

Common stock outstanding   17,549,224 17,495,865 17,426,415

(1) Dividends paid were $0.76, $0.76, and $0.66 per share for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.
(2)  Includes $1,360, $2,739 and $1,368 of undistributed net investment income and $0, $0, and $0 of undistributed net realized gains on investments at December 31, 2008, 

2007, and 2006.
The accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
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Year ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands)   2008 2007 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations   $   15,248 $   15,436 $   13,108
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets resulting
 from operations to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization   1,472 1,421 1,049
  Amortization of origination costs   363 495 510
  Increase in net unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on investments  (6,323) 6,326 591
  Increase in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on
  Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries   2,419 (2,292) (7,454)
  Net realized (gains) losses on investments   3,746 (14,172) (3,080)
  Stock-based compensation expense   310 323 342
  (Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable   300 (272) 205
  (Increase) in other assets, net   (3,085) (4,072) (2,653)
  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses   2,870 (854) 732
  Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable   (72) 312 24

Net cash provided by operating activities   17,248 2,651 3,374

Cash Flows Used for Investing Activities
Investments originated   (248,950) (329,955) (309,761)
Proceeds from principal receipts, sales, and maturities of investments   342,523 275,468 293,920
Investments in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries, net   (19,026) (4,761) (2,658)
Capital expenditures   (240) (488) (486)
Banco portfolio acquisition   — — (35,703)

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities   74,307 (59,736) (54,688)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from funds borrowed   518,219 361,881 269,656
Repayments of funds borrowed   (609,118) (308,777) (215,434)
Proceeds from SBA debentures issued   11,000 — —
Proceeds from Trust Preferred Securities issued   — 35,000 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   353 648 1,244
Payments of declared dividends   (13,314) (13,285) (11,426)
Purchase of treasury stock at cost   (74) (327) —
Commitment fees on SBA leverage   — — (135)

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities   (92,934) 75,140 43,905

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (1,379) 18,055 (7,409)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year   33,454 15,399 22,808

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year   $   32,075 $   33,454 $   15,399

Supplemental Information
Cash paid during the year for interest   $   24,723 $   29,435 $   23,713
Cash paid during the year for income taxes   — — —
Non-cash investing activities-net transfers to (from) other assets   (642) — —

The accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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NOTE 1:
Organization of Medallion Financial Corp. and its Subsidiaries

We, Medallion Financial Corp. (the Company), are a closed-end management  
investment company organized as a Delaware corporation. The Company has 
elected to be regulated as a business development company (BDC) under the  
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the 1940 Act). The Company 
conducts its business through various wholly-owned subsidiaries including 
its primary operating company, Medallion Funding Corp. (MFC), a Small 
Business Investment Company (SBIC) which originates and services taxicab 
medallion and commercial loans.

The Company also conducts business through Medallion Capital, Inc. (MCI), 
an SBIC which conducts a mezzanine financing business, and Freshstart 
Venture Capital Corp. (FSVC), an SBIC which originates and services  
taxicab medallion and commercial loans. MFC, MCI, and FSVC, as SBICs, 
are regulated and financed in part by the Small Business Administration 
(SBA). The Company also conducts business through our asset-based 
lending division, Medallion Business Credit (MBC), an originator of loans 
to small businesses for the purpose of financing inventory and receivables, 
which prior to December 31, 2007, was a wholly-owned investment company 
subsidiary. On December 31, 2007, Medallion Business Credit was merged 
into the Company and ceased to exist as a separate legal entity.

In December 2008, MFC established a wholly-owned subsidiary, Taxi 
Medallion Loan Trust III (Trust III), for the purpose of owning medallion 
loans originated by MFC or others. Trust III is a separate legal and corporate 
entity with its own creditors who, in any liquidation of Trust III, will be 
entitled to be satisfied out of Trust III’s assets prior to any value in Trust 
III becoming available to Trust III’s equity holders. The assets of Trust III, 
aggregating $102,465,000 at December 31, 2008, are not available to pay 
obligations of its affiliates or any other party, and the assets of affiliates or 
any other party are not available to pay obligations of Trust III. Trust III’s 
loans are serviced by MFC.

In June 2007, the Company established a wholly-owned subsidiary, Medallion 
Financing Trust I (Fin Trust) for the purpose of issuing unsecured preferred 
securities to investors. Fin Trust is a separate legal and corporate entity with 
its own creditors who, in any liquidation of Fin Trust, will be entitled to be 
satisfied out of Fin Trust’s assets prior to any value in Fin Trust becoming 
available to Fin Trust’s equity holders. The assets of Fin Trust, aggregating 
$36,173,000 at December 31, 2008, are not available to pay obligations of 
its affiliates or any other party, and the assets of affiliates or any other party 
are not available to pay obligations of Fin Trust.

In December 2006, MFC established a wholly-owned subsidiary, Taxi  
Medallion Loan Trust II (Trust II), for the purpose of owning medallion 
loans originated by MFC or others. Trust II is a separate legal and corporate 
entity with its own creditors who, in any liquidation of Trust II, will be 
entitled to be satisfied out of Trust II’s assets prior to any value in Trust 
II becoming available to Trust II’s equity holders. The assets of Trust II, 

aggregating $249,127,000 at December 31, 2008, are not available to pay 
obligations of its affiliates or any other party, and the assets of affiliates or 
any other party are not available to pay obligations of Trust II. Trust II’s 
loans are serviced by MFC.

In December 2006, September 2006, and previously in June 2003, MFC 
through several wholly-owned and newly formed subsidiaries which, along 
with an existing subsidiary (together, Medallion Chicago), purchased certain 
City of Chicago taxicab medallions out of foreclosure which are leased to 
fleet operators while being held for sale.

A wholly-owned portfolio investment, Medallion Bank, a Federal Deposit  
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured industrial bank, originates medallion  
loans, commercial loans, and consumer loans, raises deposits, and conducts 
other banking activities (see Note 4). Medallion Bank was capitalized on 
December 16, 2003, with $22,000,000 from the Company. On December 
22, 2003, upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the FDIC’s order 
of October 2, 2003 approving Medallion Bank’s application for federal 
deposit insurance, the FDIC certified that the deposits of each depositor 
in Medallion Bank were insured to the maximum amount provided by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Act and Medallion Bank opened for business. 
Medallion Bank is subject to competition from other financial institutions 
and to the regulations of certain federal and state agencies, and undergoes 
examinations by those agencies.

Medallion Bank is not an investment company, and therefore, is not consol-
idated with the Company, but instead is treated as a portfolio investment. It 
was initially formed for the primary purpose of originating commercial loans 
in three categories: 1) loans to finance the purchase of taxicab medallions 
(licenses), 2) asset-based commercial loans, and 3) SBA 7(a) loans. The loans 
are marketed and serviced by Medallion Bank’s affiliates who have extensive 
prior experience in these asset groups. Additionally, Medallion Bank began 
issuing brokered certificates of deposit in January 2004, and purchased over 
$84,150,000 of taxicab medallion and asset-based loans from affiliates of 
the Company. On April 1, 2004, Medallion Bank purchased a consumer 
loan portfolio from an unrelated financial institution for consideration of 
$86,309,000. The purchase was funded with $7,700,000 of additional 
capital contributed by the Company and with deposits raised by Medallion  
Bank. In the 2004 third quarter, Medallion Bank began originating consumer  
loans similar to the acquired portfolio, which are serviced by a third party.

In September 2002, MFC established a wholly-owned subsidiary, Taxi 
Medallion Loan Trust I (Trust), for the purpose of owning medallion loans 
originated by MFC or others. The Trust is a separate legal and corporate 
entity with its own creditors who, in any liquidation of the Trust, will be 
entitled to be satisfied out of the Trust’s assets prior to any value in the Trust 
becoming available to the Trust’s equity holders. The assets of the Trust,  
aggregating $91,000 at December 31, 2008 are not available to pay obligations  
of its affiliates or any other party, and the assets of affiliates or any other 
party are not available to pay obligations of the Trust. The Trust’s loans are 
serviced by MFC.
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NOTE 2:
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity  
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires management to make estimates that affect the amounts 
reported in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying 
notes. Accounting estimates and assumptions are those that management 
considers to be the most critical to an understanding of the consolidated 
financial statements because they inherently involve significant judgments 
and uncertainties. All of these estimates reflect management’s best judgment 
about current economic and market conditions and their effects based on  
information available as of the date of these consolidated financial statements.  
If such conditions persist longer or deteriorate further than expected, it is 
reasonably possible that the judgments and estimates could change, which 
may result in future impairments of loans receivable, loans held for sale, 
investments, among other effects.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company 
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, except for Medallion Bank and other 
portfolio investments. All significant intercompany transactions, balances, 
and profits have been eliminated in consolidation. As a non-investment 
company, Medallion Bank is not consolidated with the Company, which 
is an investment company under the 1940 Act. See note 3 regarding our 
changes in reporting entity in 2006, and note 4 for the presentation of 
financial information for Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with an original 
purchased maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash 
balances are generally held in accounts at large national or regional banking 
organizations in amounts that frequently exceeds the federally insured limits.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The Company adopted Statement of Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair 
Value Measurements (SFAS No. 157) in the 2008 first quarter, which 
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and 
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. While SFAS No. 157 
does not require any new fair value measurements, it applies under other 
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, such as 
SFAS No. 107, 133, 150, 155, and 156. SFAS No 157 clarifies the definition 
of fair value as an exit price (i.e. a price that would be received to sell, as  
opposed to acquire, an asset or transfer a liability), and emphasizes that fair  
value is a market-based measurement. It establishes a fair value hierarchy 
that distinguishes between assumptions developed based on market data  
obtained from independent external sources and the reporting entities own 
assumptions. Further, it specifies that fair value measurement should consider 

adjustment for risk, such as the risk inherent in the valuation technique or 
its inputs. For assets and liabilities measured at fair value, SFAS No. 157 
expands the required disclosures concerning the inputs used to measure fair 
value. See also Notes 2, 16, and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Valuation

The Company’s loans, net of participations and any unearned discount, are 
considered investment securities under the 1940 Act and are recorded at fair 
value. As part of the fair value methodology, loans are valued at cost adjusted 
for any unrealized appreciation (depreciation). Since no ready market exists  
for these loans, the fair value is determined in good faith by management, 
and approved by the Board of Directors. In determining the fair value,  
the Company and Board of Directors consider factors such as the financial 
condition of the borrower, the adequacy of the collateral, individual credit 
risks, historical loss experience, and the relationships between current 
and projected market rates and portfolio rates of interest and maturities. 
Foreclosed properties, which represent collateral received from defaulted 
borrowers, are valued similarly.

Equity investments (common stock and stock warrants, including certain 
controlled subsidiary portfolio investments) and investment securities (US 
Treasuries and mortgage backed bonds), in total representing 14% and 10% 
of the investment portfolio at December 31, 2008 and 2007, are recorded 
at fair value, represented as cost, plus or minus unrealized appreciation or 
depreciation. The fair value of investments that have no ready market are 
determined in good faith by management, and approved by the Board of 
Directors, based upon the financial condition and operating performance  
of the underlying investee companies as well as general market trends for 
businesses in the same industry. Included in equity investments were mar-
ketable securities of $1,543,000 and $4,263,000 at December 31, 2008 and 
2007, and non-marketable securities of $1,729,000 and $617,000 in the 
comparable periods. The $74,750,000 and $57,501,000 related to portfolio 
investments in controlled subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were 
all non-marketable in each period. Because of the inherent uncertainty of 
valuations, management’s estimates of the values of the investments may 
differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready 
market for the investments existed, and the differences could be material.

Our investment in Medallion Bank, as a wholly owned portfolio investment, 
is also subject to quarterly assessments of fair value. We conduct a thorough 
valuation analysis as described previously, and determine whether any factors 
give rise to a valuation different than recorded book value, including various 
regulatory restrictions that were established at Medallion Bank’s inception, by  
the FDIC and State of Utah, and also by additional marketplace restrictions, 
such as on the ability to transfer industrial bank charters. As a result of this 
valuation process, we used Medallion Bank’s actual results of operations as the  
best estimate of changes in- fair value, and recorded the results as a component 
of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments, although changes 
in these restrictions and other applicable factors could change these conclusions 
in the future. See Note 4 for additional information about Medallion Bank.
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A majority of the Company’s investments consist of long-term loans to persons 
defined by SBA regulations as socially or economically disadvantaged, or to 
entities that are at least 50% owned by such persons. Approximately 70% 
and 76% of the Company’s investment portfolio at December 31, 2008 and 
2007 had arisen in connection with the financing of taxicab medallions, 
taxicabs, and related assets, of which 76% and 80% were in New York City 
at December 31, 2008 and 2007. These loans are secured by the medallions, 
taxicabs, and related assets, and are personally guaranteed by the borrowers, 
or in the case of corporations, are generally guaranteed personally by the 
owners. A portion of the Company’s portfolio (16% and 14% at December 
31, 2008 and 2007) represents loans to various commercial enterprises, in a 
wide variety of industries, including manufacturing, wholesaling, adminis-
trative and support services, accommodation and food services, and various 
other industries. More than 25% of these loans are made primarily in the 
metropolitan New York City area, with the balance widely scattered across 
the US. Investments in controlled unconsolidated subsidiaries, equity invest-
ments, and investment securities were 13%, 1%, and 0% at December 31, 
2008 and 9%, 1%, and 0% at December 31, 2007.

On a managed basis, which includes the investments of Medallion Bank 
after eliminating the Company’s investment in Medallion Bank, medallion  
loans were 57% and 63% at December 31, 2008 and 2007 (74% and 
83% in New York City), commercial loans were 19% and 19%, and 20% 
and 15% were consumer loans in all 50 states collateralized by recreational 
vehicles, boats, motorcycles, and trailers. Investment securities were 2% 
at both December 31, 2008 and 2007, and equity investments (including 
investments in controlled subsidiaries) were 2% and 1%.

Investment Transactions and Income Recognition

Loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs are deferred and 
recognized as an adjustment to the yield of the related loans. At December 
31, 2008 and 2007, net origination costs totaled approximately $252,000 
and $734,000. Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 
2008, 2007, and 2006 was $363,000, $495,000, and $510,000.

Investment securities are purchased from time-to-time in the open market at 
prices that are greater or lesser than the par value of the investment. The re-
sulting premium or discount is deferred and recognized as an adjustment to 
the yield of the related investment. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, there 
were no premiums or discounts on investment securities, and their related 
income accretion or amortization was immaterial for 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis. Taxicab medallion and 
commercial loans are placed on nonaccrual status, and all uncollected accrued 
interest is reversed, when there is doubt as to the collectability of interest or 
principal, or if loans are 90 days or more past due, unless management has 
determined that they are both well-secured and in the process of collection. 
Interest income on nonaccrual loans is generally recognized when cash is 
received, unless a determination has been made to apply all cash receipts to 
principal. At December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, total non-accrual loans 
were approximately $17,939,000, $21,968,000, and $13,670,000, and 

represented 4%, 4%, and 3% of the gross medallion and commercial loan  
portfolio at each yearend. The amount of interest income on nonaccrual loans  
that would have been recognized if the loans had been paying in accordance 
with their original terms was approximately $4,172,000, $6,856,000, and  
$5,281,000 as of December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, of which $1,749,000,  
$2,892,000, and $2,103,000 would have been recognized in the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Loan Sales and Servicing Fee Receivable

The Company accounts for its sales of loans in accordance with Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers 
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a 
Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125” (SFAS 140). In addition, we 
are in compliance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
156 “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets — an Amendment of 
FASB Statement No. 140” (SFAS 156). SFAS 156 provides accounting 
and reporting standards for transfers and servicing of financial assets and 
extinguishments of liabilities. In accordance with SFAS 156, we have elected 
the fair value measurement method for our servicing assets and liabilities. 
The principal portion of loans serviced for others by the Company was 
$268,028,000 and $168,781,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and 
included $204,055,000 and $163,816,000 of loans serviced for Medallion 
Bank. The Company has evaluated the servicing aspect of its business in 
accordance with SFAS 156, most of which relates to servicing assets held by 
Medallion Bank, and determined that no material servicing asset or liability 
exists as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation) and Realized Gains (Losses)  
on Investments

The change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments is 
the amount by which the fair value estimated by the Company is greater 
(less) than the cost basis of the investment portfolio. Realized gains or losses 
on investments are generated through sales of investments, foreclosure on 
specific collateral, and writeoffs of loans or assets acquired in satisfaction 
of loans, net of recoveries. Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on net 
investments was $10,936,000, $4,614,000, and $4,000 as of December 
31, 2008, 2007, and 2006. Our investment in Medallion Bank, a wholly 
owned portfolio investment, is a also subject to quarterly assessments of fair 
value. We conduct a thorough valuation analysis as described previously, and 
determine whether any factors give rise to valuation different than recorded 
book value, including various regulatory restrictions that were established 
at Medallion Bank’s inception, by the FDIC and State of Utah, and also by 
additional marketplace restrictions, such as on the ability to transfer indus-
trial bank charters. As a result of this valuation process, we used Medallion 
Bank’s actual results of operations as the best estimate of changes in fair 
value, and recorded the results as a component of unrealized appreciation 
(depreciation) on investments, although changes in these restrictions and 
other applicable factors could change these conclusions in the future. See 
note 4 for the presentation of financial information for Medallion Bank.



Medallion Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

page 40

The following table sets forth the changes in our unrealized appreciation 
(depreciation) on investments, other than investments in controlled  
subsidiaries, for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

The table below summarizes components of unrealized and realized gains 
and losses in the investment portfolios for the years ended December 31, 
2008, 2007, and 2006.

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Net change in unrealized appreciation  
 (depreciation) on investments
Unrealized appreciation $(1,994) $  2,127 $ 4,236
Unrealized depreciation (4,186) (4,379) (7,185)
Net unrealized appreciation  
 (depreciation) on investment  
 in Medallion Bank and other  
 controlled subsidiaries (2,419) 2,292 7,454
Realized gains — (11,647) (2,579)
Realized losses 5,230 833 4,016
Unrealized gains on foreclosed properties 7,273 6,740 921

Total  $3,904 $ (4,034) $ 6,863

Net realized gains (losses)  
 on investments
Realized gains $       — $  2,914 $ 2,579
Realized losses (5,230) (833) (4,016)
Other gains 470 10,732 5,997
Direct recoveries (charge-offs) (50) 23 (1,484)
Realized gains on foreclosed properties 1,064 1,336 4

Total  $(3,746) $14,172 $ 3,080

Goodwill

Effective January 1, 2002, coincident with the adoption of SFAS No.142, 
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets,” the Company tests its goodwill for 
impairment, and engages a consultant to help management evaluate its  
carrying value. The results of this evaluation demonstrated no impairment 
in goodwill for 2008, 2007, and 2006. The Company conducts annual,  
and if necessary, more frequent, appraisals of its goodwill, and will recognize 
any impairment in the period any impairment is identified as a charge to 
operating expenses.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, 
and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives 
of 3 to 10 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated economic useful life 
of the improvement. Depreciation and amortization expense was $387,000, 
$457,000, and $415,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 
and 2006.

  Equity Foreclosed 
(Dollars in thousands) Loans Investments Properties Total

Balance December 31, 2005 $(7,896) $     629 $ (1,397) $ (8,664)
Net change in unrealized
Appreciation on investments — 4,236 921 5,157
Depreciation on investments 824 (173) — 651
Reversal of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) related to realized
Gains on investments — (2,579) — (2,579)
Losses on investments 4,016 — 1,423 5,439

Balance December 31, 2006 (3,056) 2,113 947 4
Net change in unrealized
Appreciation on investments — 2,127 8,245 10,372
Depreciation on investments (4,246) (133) (159) (4,538)
Reversal of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) related to realized
Gains on investments — (1,361) (571) (1,932)
Losses on investments 833 — — 833
Other  — (4) (121) (125)

Balance December 31, 2007 (6,469) 2,742 8,341 4,614
Net change in unrealized
Appreciation on investments — (1,995) 8,183 6,188
Depreciation on investments (4,076) (110) 168 (4,018)
Reversal of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) related to realized
Gains on investments — — (1,400) (1,400)
Losses on investments 5,230 — 322 5,552
Other  200 (200) — —

Balance December 31, 2008 $(5,115) $    437 $15,614 $10,936
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Deferred Costs

Deferred financing costs, included in other assets, represents costs associated 
with obtaining the Company’s borrowing facilities, and is amortized on a  
straight line basis over the lives of the related financing agreements. Amortiza-
tion expense was $1,085,000, $964,000, and $634,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006. In addition, the Company capitalizes 
certain costs for transactions in the process of completion, including those 
for acquisitions and the sourcing of other financing alternatives. Upon 
completion or termination of the transaction, any accumulated amounts 
will be amortized against income over an appropriate period, capitalized as 
goodwill, or written off. The amounts on the balance sheet for all of these 
purposes were $5,748,000 and $3,918,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Federal Income Taxes

The Company and each of its major subsidiaries other than Medallion 
Bank (the RIC subsidiaries) have qualified to be treated for federal income 
tax purposes as regulated investment companies (RICs) under the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). As RICs, the Company and 
each of the RIC subsidiaries are not subject to US federal income tax on any 
gains or investment company taxable income (which includes, among other 
things, dividends and interest income reduced by deductible expenses) that 
it distributes to its shareholders, if at least 90% of its investment company 
taxable income for that taxable year is distributed. It is the Company’s and 
the RIC subsidiaries’ policy to comply with the provisions of the Code. 
The Company’s RIC qualification is determined on an annual basis, and it 
qualified and filed its federal tax returns as a RIC for 2007 and 2006, and 
anticipates qualifying and filing as a RIC for 2008. Income tax (provision) 
benefit reported on the consolidated statements of operations were $0, $0, 
and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006. State and 
local tax treatment follows the federal model.

Medallion Bank is not a RIC and is taxed as a regular corporation. Fin Trust,  
Trust II, and Trust III are not subject to federal income taxation, instead 
their taxable income is treated as having been earned by the Company and 
MFC as appropriate.

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net increase in net assets 
resulting from operations available to common shareholders by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted 
earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if option 
contracts to issue common stock were exercised, and has been computed 
after giving consideration to the weighted average dilutive effect of the 
Company’s stock options. The Company uses the treasury stock method to 
calculate diluted EPS, which is a method of recognizing the use of proceeds 
that could be obtained upon exercise of options and warrants in computing 
diluted EPS. It assumes that any proceeds would be used to purchase common 
stock at the average market price during the period.

The table below shows the calculation of basic and diluted EPS.

Years Ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Net increase in net assets resulting  
 from operations available to  
 common shareholders $15,248 $15,436 $13,108

Weighted average common  
 shares outstanding applicable  
 to basic EPS 17,520,966 17,480,523 17,293,665
Effect of dilutive stock options 201,609 305,787 467,374

Adjusted weighted average  
 common shares outstanding  
 applicable to diluted EPS 17,722,575 17,786,310 17,761,039

Basic earnings per share $    0.87 $    0.88 $    0.76
Diluted earnings per share 0.86 0.87 0.74

Potentially dilutive stock options excluded from the above calculations  
aggregated 1,328,537, 795,936, and 611,762 shares as of December 31, 
2008, 2007, and 2006.

Dividends to Shareholders

The table below shows the tax character of distributions for tax reporting 
purposes.

Years Ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Dividends paid from
Investment income, net $13,276 $ 6,085 $ 6,049
Realized gain from investment  
 transactions, net 38 7,200 5,377

Total dividends $13,314 $13,285 $11,426

Our ability to make dividend payments is restricted by SBA regulations 
and under the terms of the SBA debentures. As of December 31, 2008, the 
Company anticipates paying an estimated $1,360,000 of ordinary income 
dividends for tax purposes by September 15, 2009.

Stock Compensation

The Company applies SFAS No. 123 (Revised), “Share-Based Payment” 
(SFAS No. 123R), and related interpretations in accounting for its stock 
option plans effective January 1, 2006, and accordingly, the Company 
recognizes the expense of these grants as required. Stock-based employee 
compensation costs pertaining to stock options is reflected in net increase 
in net assets resulting from operations, for both any new grants, as well as 
for all unvested options outstanding at December 31, 2005, in both cases 
using the fair values established by usage of the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model, expensed over the vesting period of the underlying option.

The Company elected the modified prospective transition method for 
adopting SFAS No. 123R. Under this method, the provisions of SFAS 123R 
apply to all awards granted or modified after the date of adoption, as well as 
for all unvested options outstanding at December 31, 2005. During 2008, 
2007, and 2006, the Company issued 429,918, 209,674, and 207,162 
shares of stock-based compensation awards, and recognized $310,000, 
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$323,000, and $342,000, or $0.02 per diluted common share for each year, 
of non-cash stock-based compensation expense related to the option grants. 
As of December 31, 2008, the total remaining unrecognized compensation 
cost related to unvested stock options was $449,000, which is expected to be 
recognized over the next ten quarters (see note 6).

Derivatives

The Company had no interest rate cap agreements or other derivative 
investments outstanding during 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances to conform 
with the current year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on 
the previously reported results of operations.

NOTE 3:
Change in the Reporting Entity

Since Medallion Bank commenced operations in December 2003, the  
Company had historically consolidated Medallion Bank’s financial state-
ments with those of its own. Although Medallion Bank is not an investment 
company, and SEC rules generally do not permit investment companies such  
as the Company to consolidate the financial statements of non-investment 
companies, such as Medallion Bank, the Company had sought and obtained 
a letter from the SEC in March 2004 permitting such consolidation. The 
Company believed that consolidating Medallion Bank provided a more 
complete and accurate representation of the Company’s full scope of opera-
tions, and its complete financial position and results of operations.

During August 2006, the Company filed a registration statement on Form 
N-2 which the SEC staff reviewed and on which they provided comments, 
including those relating to the consolidation of the accounts of Medallion  
Bank which have evolved since 2004. Based on discussions with the SEC 
staff, the Company determined during the 2006 fourth quarter to volun-
tarily not consolidate Medallion Bank and present Medallion Bank as a 
portfolio company. The Company determined that this change represents  
a change in the reporting entity as described in SFAS No. 154, “Accounting 
Changes and Error Corrections.” Accordingly the Company retrospectively 
applied this change to the financial statements of all prior periods presented, 
including previously issued interim periods presented, included in its 2006 
Form 10-K. The effect of this retrospective application was to present the 
Company’s financial position and results of operations as if Medallion Bank 
had not been consolidated for all periods presented and to present Medallion  
Bank as an unconsolidated portfolio investment. Although this created 
changes in the reported levels of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, 
our net increase in net assets resulting from operations, shareholders’ equity, 
and the related amounts per common share were unchanged.

NOTE 4:
Investment in Medallion Bank and Other Controlled Subsidiaries

The following table presents information derived from Medallion Bank’s 
statement of operations and other valuation adjustments on other controlled 
subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Statement of operations
Investment income $41,373 $36,564 $29,975
Interest expense 14,934 13,804 10,453

Net interest income 26,439 22,760 19,522
Noninterest income 468 337 490
Operating expenses 8,554 7,190 6,289

Net investment income before  
 income taxes 18,353 15,907 13,723
Income tax provision 2,776 4,059 4,388

Net investment income after  
 income taxes 15,577 11,848 9,335
Net realized/unrealized losses  
 of Medallion Bank (11,452) (4,696) (3,331)

Net increase in net assets resulting  
 from operations of Medallion Bank 4,125 7,152 6,004
Unrealized depreciation on  
 Medallion Bank (1) (6,000) (5,750) —
Net realized/unrealized gains/(losses)  
 of controlled subsidiaries other  
 than Medallion Bank (544) 890 1,450

Net increase (decrease) in net assets  
 resulting from operations of  
 Medallion Bank and other  
 controlled subsidiaries $ (2,419) $  2,292 $  7,454

(1)  Unrealized depreciation on Medallion Bank reflects the adjustment to the investment carrying 
amount to reflect the dividends paid to the parent.

The following table presents information derived from Medallion Bank’s 
balance sheets and the net investment in other controlled subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

(Dollars in thousands)  2008 2007

Loans   $396,103 $315,108
Investment securities, at fair value  20,088 21,838
Net investments ($0 pledged as collateral under  
 borrowing arrangements at December 31, 2008  
 and 2007)  416,191 336,946
Cash ($0 at December 31, 2008 and 2007  
 restricted as to use by lender)  9,401 17,025
Receivable from parent  — 1,059
Other assets, net  9,801 6,743

Total assets  $435,394 $361,773

Other liabilities  $    1,227 $    4,080
Payable to parent  335 —
Deposits and federal funds purchased, including  
 accrued interest payable  370,064 302,800

Total liabilities  371,626 306,880
Medallion Bank equity  63,768 54,893

Total liabilities and equity  $435,394 $361,773

Investment in other controlled subsidiaries  $  10,747 $    3,667
Total investment in Medallion Bank  
 and other controlled subsidiaries  74,750 57,501

(1)  Included in Medallion Bank’s net investments is $856 and $1,203 for purchased loan  
premium and facility fees at December 31, 2008 and 2007.
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The following paragraphs summarize the accounting and reporting policies 
of Medallion Bank, and provide additional information relating to the table 
presented above.

Investment securities are purchased from time-to-time in the open market 
at prices that are greater or lesser than the par value of the investment. The 
resulting premium or discount is deferred and recognized on a level yield ba-
sis as an adjustment to the yield of the related investment. At December 31, 
2008 and 2007, the net premium on investment securities totaled $96,000 
and $92,000, and (income accretion)/amortization expense was $(14,000), 
$140,000, and $160,000 for 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Medallion Bank’s policies regarding nonaccrual of medallion and commer-
cial loans are similar to those of the Company. The consumer portfolio has 
different characteristics compared to commercial loans, typified by a larger 
number of lower dollar loans that have similar characteristics. These loans 
are placed on nonaccrual, when they become 90 days past due, or earlier if 
they enter bankruptcy and are charged off in their entirety when deemed 
uncollectible, or when they become 120 days past due, whichever occurs 
first, at which time appropriate collection and recovery efforts against both 
the borrower and the underlying collateral are initiated. At December 31, 
2008, $2,442,000 or 1% of consumer loans and $1,832,000 or 2% of com-
mercial loans were on nonaccrual, compared to $623,000, or less than 1% 
of consumer loans on nonaccrual at December 31, 2007. The amount of 
interest income on nonaccrual loans that would have been recognized if the 
loans had been paying in accordance with their original terms was $141,000 
in 2008, $27,000 in 2007, and $0 in 2006. None of Medallion Bank’s me-
dallion loans were on nonaccrual as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Medallion Bank’s loan and investment portfolios are assessed for collect-
ability on a monthly basis, and a loan loss allowance is established for any 
realizability concerns on specific investments, and general reserves have 
also been established for any unknown factors. The consumer portfolio 
purchase was net of unrealized depreciation of $4,244,000, or 5.0% of the 
balances outstanding, and included a purchase premium of approximately 
$5,678,000 of which $421,000, $654,000, and $986,000 was amortized 
into interest income during 2008, 2007, and 2006. The premium amount 
on the balance sheet was $818,000 and $1,239,000 as of December 2008 
and 2007. Adjustments to the fair value of this portfolio are based on the 
historical loan loss data obtained from the seller, adjusted for changes in 
delinquency trends and other factors as described previously in note 2.

In January 2004, Medallion Bank commenced raising deposits to fund 
the purchase of various affiliates’ loan portfolios. The deposits were raised 
through the use of investment brokerage firms who package deposits 
qualifying for FDIC insurance into pools that are sold to Medallion Bank. 
The rates paid on the deposits are highly competitive with market rates 
paid by other financial institutions, and include a brokerage fee of 0.25% 
to 0.55%, depending on the maturity of the deposit, which is capitalized 
and amortized to interest expense over the life of the respective pool. The 
total amount capitalized at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $988,000 
and $645,000, and $956,000, $795,000, and $699,000 was amortized to 
interest expense during 2008, 2007, and 2006. Interest on the deposits is 
accrued daily and paid monthly, semiannually, or at maturity.

The outstanding balances of fixed rate borrowings were as follows:

 Payments Due for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, December 31, December 31, Interest

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter 2008 2007 Rate (1)

Deposits and fed funds purchased $229,863 $54,986 $81,559 $ — $ — $ — $366,408 $302,800 3.85%

(1) Weighted average contractual rate as of December 31, 2008.

Medallion Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements admin-
istered by the FDIC and State of Utah Department of Financial Institu-
tions. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain 
mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, 
if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on Medallion Bank’s and 
our financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regula-
tory framework for prompt corrective action, Medallion Bank must meet 
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of Medallion 
Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated un-
der regulatory accounting practices. Medallion Bank’s capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the bank regulators 
about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

FDIC-insured banks, including Medallion Bank, are subject to certain 
federal laws, which impose various legal limitations on the extent to which 
banks may finance or otherwise supply funds to certain of their affiliates. In 
particular, Medallion Bank is subject to certain restrictions on any exten-
sions of credit to, or other covered transactions, such as certain purchases of 
assets, with the Company or its affiliates.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy 
require Medallion Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios as de-
fined in the regulations (set forth in the table below). Additionally, as condi-
tions of granting Medallion Bank’s application for federal deposit insurance, 
the FDIC ordered that beginning paid-in-capital funds of not less than 
$22,000,000 be provided, and that the Tier I Leverage Capital to total assets 
ratio, as defined, be not less than 15%, and that an adequate allowance for 
loan losses be maintained. As a result, to facilitate maintenance of Medal-
lion Bank’s capital ratio requirement and to provide the necessary capital for 
continued growth, the Company periodically makes capital contributions 
to Medallion Bank, including an aggregate of $10,750,000 contributed over 
various months in 2008 and an aggregate of $6,800,000 contributed simi-
larly in 2007. Separately, Medallion Bank paid dividends to the Company 
of $6,000,000 in 2008, and $5,750,000 in 2007. Without the capital infu-
sions by the Company, a portion of the Medallion Bank dividends would 
have been retained to ensure Medallion Bank met its capital ratio require-
ments, and in such circumstance, if the Company maintained its dividend 
at the existing levels, a portion of those dividends would have represented a 
tax-free return of capital.
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The following table represents Medallion Bank’s actual capital amounts and 
related ratios as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, compared to required 
regulatory minimum capital ratios and the ratio required to be considered 
well capitalized. As of December 31, 2008 the Tier I Leverage Capital ratio 

was 14.7%, below the FDIC mandated 15%, and as a result, in January 
2009, $1,750,000 of capital was contributed by the Company to Medallion 
Bank. Otherwise, Medallion Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements 
to which it is subject, and is well-capitalized as of December 31, 2008.

 Regulatory

(Dollars in Thousands) Minimum Well-capitalized December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Tier I capital $17,383 $21,729 $   63,808 $   54,869
Total capital 33,447 41,809 69,105 59,109
Average assets — — 434,585 347,111
Risk-weighted assets — — 418,089 336,103
Leverage ratio (1) 4% 5% 14.7% 15.8%
Tier I capital ratio (2) 4 6 15.2 16.3
Total capital ratio (2) 8 10 16.5 17.6

(1) Calculated by dividing Tier I capital by average assets.

(2) Calculated by dividing Tier I or total capital by risk-weighted assets.

NOTE 5:
Funds Borrowed

The outstanding balances of funds borrowed were as follows:

 Payments Due for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, December 31, December 31, Interest

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter 2008 2007 Rate (1)

Revolving lines of credit $221,533 $  — $       — $       — $  93,325 $       — $314,858 $411,449 3.28%
SBA debentures — — 17,985 13,500 19,450 37,315 88,250 77,250 6.10
Preferred securities — — — — — 33,000 33,000 33,000 7.68
Notes payable to banks 15,326 326 10,890 — — — 26,542 20,850 4.64

Total  $236,859 $326 $28,875 $13,500 $112,775 $70,315 $462,650 $542,549 4.20

(1) Weighted average contractual rate as of December 31, 2008.

(A) Revolving Lines of Credit

In December 2008, Trust III entered into a revolving line of credit agreement  
with DZ Bank, to provide up to $200,000,000 of financing through a 
commercial paper conduit to acquire medallion loans from MFC (DZ line), 
of which $93,325,000 was outstanding at December 31, 2008. Borrowings 
under Trust III’s revolving line of credit are collateralized by Trust III’s assets. 
MFC is the servicer of the loans owned by Trust III. The DZ line includes 
a borrowing base covenant and rapid amortization in certain circumstances. 
In addition, if certain financial tests are not met, MFC can be replaced as 
the servicer. The DZ line matures in December 2013. The interest rate is 
the lesser of a pooled short-term commercial paper rate (which approximates 
LIBOR), 30 day LIBOR (0.44% at December 31, 2008) plus 0.75%, or 90 
day LIBOR (1.43% at December 31, 2008) plus 0.50%; plus 0.95%.

In December 2006, and as renegotiated in December 2007 and November  
2008, Trust II entered into a revolving line of credit agreement with Citibank  
N.A., to provide up to $250,000,000 of financing through a commercial 
paper conduit to acquire medallion loans from MFC (Citi line), of which 
$221,533,000 was outstanding at December 31, 2008. In November 2008 
the line of credit was reduced to $225,000,000. Borrowings under Trust 
II’s revolving line of credit are collateralized by Trust II’s assets. MFC is the 

servicer of the loans owned by Trust II. The Citi line includes a borrowing 
base covenant and rapid amortization in certain circumstances. In addition, 
if certain financial tests are not met, MFC can be replaced as the servicer. 
The Citi line matures in November 2009. The interest rate is a pooled 
short-term commercial paper rate, which approximates LIBOR (0.44%  
at December 31, 2008), plus 0.82% with a facility fee of 0.15% on the 
aggregate Citi line, and prior to November 2008 was plus 0.47% with a 
facility fee of 0.15%.

In September 2002, and as renegotiated in September 2003, January 2005, 
January 2006, September 2006, and December 2006, the Trust entered  
into a revolving line of credit agreement (amended) with Merrill Lynch 
Commercial Finance Corp., as successor to Merrill Lynch Bank, USA 
(MLB) to provide up to $375,000,000 of financing to acquire medallion 
loans from MFC (MLB line), which was paid off in December 2008.

Based on current market conditions, we expect that Citibank may not 
extend the credit facility beyond its current maturity date in November 
2009. We have available liquidity of $106,675,000 under our revolving 
credit agreement with DZ Bank. We also generate liquidity through deposits 
generated at Medallion Bank, borrowing arrangements with other banks, 
and through the issuance of SBA debentures, as well as from cash flow from 
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operations. In addition, we may choose to participate a greater portion of 
our loan portfolio to third parties. We are actively seeking additional sources 
of liquidity, including sources of liquidity to repay our borrowings under the 
Citibank line; however, given current market conditions, we cannot assure 
you that we will be able to secure additional liquidity on terms favorable to 
us or at all. If that occurs, we may decline to underwrite lower yielding loans 
in order to conserve capital until credit conditions in the market become 
more favorable; or we may be required to dispose of assets when we would 
not otherwise do so, and at prices which may be below the net book value  
of such assets in order for us to repay indebtedness on a timely basis.

(B) SBA Debentures

In September 2006, the SBA approved a $6,000,000 commitment for FSVC 
to issue additional debentures to the SBA during a four year period upon 
payment of a 1% fee and the infusion of $2,000,000 of additional capital. 
In March 2006, the SBA approved a $13,500,000 commitment for MCI  
to issue additional debentures to the SBA during a four year period upon 
payment of a 1% fee and the infusion of $6,750,000 of additional capital. 
In November 2003, the SBA approved an $8,000,000 commitment for FSVC, 
and during 2001, the SBA approved $36,000,000 each in commitments for 
FSVC and MCI. As of December 31, 2008, $91,000,000 of commitments 
had been fully utilized, and $8,500,000 was available for borrowing.

The notes are collateralized by substantially all the Company’s assets and 
are subject to the terms and conditions of agreements with the SBA which, 
among other things, restrict stock redemptions, disposition of assets, new 
indebtedness, dividends or distributions, and changes in management, own-
ership, investment policy, or operations. The debentures have been issued in 
various tranches for terms of ten years with interest payable semiannually.

(C) Preferred Securities, Notes Payable to Banks, and Margin Loans

In April 2008, certain operating subsidiaries of MFC entered into an aggregate 
$1,800,000 of note agreements with State Bank of Long Island (SBLI). 
These agreements are collateralized by certain taxicab medallions owned by 
Medallion Chicago of which $1,767,000 was outstanding at December 31, 
2008. The note agreements bear interest at 5.50%, payable monthly. The 
notes mature May 1, 2011 and are guaranteed by both the Company and 
MFC. Principal and interest payments of $12,000 are due monthly, with 
the balance due at maturity.

In June 2007, the Company issued and sold $36,083,000 aggregate principal 
amount of unsecured junior subordinated notes to Fin Trust which, in turn, 
sold $35,000,000 of preferred securities to Merrill Lynch International and 
issued 1,083 shares of common stock to the Company. The notes bear a fixed 
rate of interest of 7.68% to September 2012, and thereafter a variable rate 
of interest of 90 day LIBOR plus 2.125%. The notes mature in September 
2037, and are prepayable at par on or after September 6, 2012. Interest is 
payable quarterly in arrears. The terms of the preferred securities and the 
notes are substantially identical. At December 31, 2008, $33,000,000 was 
outstanding on the preferred securities. In December 2007, the Company 
was able to acquire $2,000,000 of the preferred securities for $1,300,000, 
realizing a gain of $700,000 in a transaction with a third party investor.

In March 2007, the Company entered into a margin loan agreement with 
Smith Barney, a subsidiary of Citicorp. The margin loan was secured by  
the pledge of short-term, high-quality investment securities held by the 
Company, and was generally available at 99% of the current fair market 
value of the securities. The margin loan bore interest at LIBOR (0.44% at 
December 31, 2008) plus 0.35%. As of December 31, 2008, $0 had been 
drawn down under this margin loan.

In December 2006, the Company entered into a margin loan agreement 
with Bear Stearns & Co. Inc. The margin loan was secured by the pledge  
of short-term, high-quality investment securities held by the Company,  
and was generally available at 99% of the current fair market value of the 
securities. The margin loan bore interest at LIBOR (0.44% at December 31, 
2008) plus 0.50%. This line expired during 2008.

In December 2006, certain operating subsidiaries of MFC entered into an 
aggregate $966,000 of note agreements with New York Commercial Bank, 
which was increased by $756,000 in January 2007, by $2,250,000 in May 
2007, and by $1,572,000 in May 2008 to an aggregate of $5,544,000. 
These agreements are collateralized by certain taxicab medallions owned by 
Medallion Chicago of which $5,457,000 was outstanding at December 31, 
2008. The note agreements bear interest at 5.50%, payable monthly. The 
notes mature May 14, 2011, and are guaranteed by both the Company and 
MFC. Principal and interest payments of $38,000 are due monthly, with 
the balance due at maturity.

In October 2006, certain operating subsidiaries of MFC entered into an  
aggregate $840,000 of note agreements with Metropolitan Bank of New 
York, which was increased by $2,250,000 in May 2007 and by $1,302,000 
in June 2008, to an aggregate of $4,392,000. These agreements are collater-
alized by certain taxicab medallions owned by Medallion Chicago of which 
$4,318,000 was outstanding at December 31, 2008. The note agreements 
bear interest at 5.75%, payable monthly. The notes mature July 1, 2011 and 
are guaranteed by MFC. Principal and interest payments of $33,000 are due 
monthly, with the balance due at maturity.

In January 2005, MFC entered into a $4,000,000 revolving note agreement 
with New York Commercial Bank, formerly known as Atlantic Bank of New 
York that matured on December 1, 2005, and which maturity was extended 
by New York Commercial Bank to August 1, 2009. On March 6, 2006, 
the line of credit was increased to $6,000,000, and was further increased to 
$8,000,000 in March 2007. The line is secured by medallion loans of MFC 
that are in process of being sold to the Trusts, any draws being payable from 
the receipt of proceeds from the sale. The line bears interest at the prime 
rate (3.25% at December 31, 2008) minus 0.25%, payable monthly. As of 
December 31, 2008, $0 had been drawn down under this line.

On April 26, 2004, the Company entered into a $15,000,000 revolving note  
agreement with Sterling National Bank that was further extended to July 1,  
2009 and was increased to $20,000,000. The line is secured by certain pledged 
assets of the Company, and is subject to periodic borrowing base requirements. 
Effective August 2006, the line bears interest, payable monthly, at LIBOR 
(0.44% at December 31, 2008) plus 2.0% with no unused fee, and prior to 
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that was at the prime rate, and was subject to an unused fee of 0.125% (see 
Note 18). As of December 31, 2008, $15,000,000 had been drawn down 
under this line.

(D) Covenant Compliance

In the normal course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries enter 
into agreements, or are subject to regulatory requirements, that result in 
loan restrictions. Certain of our debt agreements contain restrictions that 
require the Company to maintain certain financial ratios, including debt to 
equity and minimum net worth. In addition, the Company’s wholly-owned 
subsidiary Medallion Bank is subject to regulatory requirements related to 
the declaration of dividends (see Note 18).

NOTE 6:
Stock Options

The Company has a stock option plan (2006 Stock Option Plan) available 
to grant both incentive and nonqualified stock options to employees. The 
2006 Stock Option Plan, which was approved by the Board of Directors 
on February 15, 2006 and shareholders on June 16, 2006, provides for the 
issuance of a maximum of 800,000 shares of common stock of the Com-
pany. At December 31, 2008, 256,732 shares of the Company’s common 
stock remained available for future grants. The 2006 Stock Option Plan is 
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. 
The option price per share may not be less than the current market value of 
the Company’s common stock on the date the option is granted. The term 
and vesting periods of the options are determined by the Compensation 
Committee, provided that the maximum term of an option may not exceed 
a period of ten years.

The Company’s Board of Directors approved a new non-employee director 
stock option plan (the 2006 Director Plan) on February 15, 2006, which was  
approved by shareholders on June 16, 2006, and on which exemptive relief  
to implement the 2006 Director Plan was received from the SEC on August 
28, 2007. The 2006 Director Plan provides for an automatic grant of options  
to purchase 9,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to an Eligible 
Director upon election to the Board, with an adjustment for directors who  
are elected to serve less than a full term. A total of 100,000 shares of the 
Company’s common stock are issuable under the 2006 Director Plan. At  
December 31, 2008, 37,000 shares of the Company’s common stock remained  
available for future grants. The option price per share may not be less than 
the current market value of the Company’s common stock on the date 
the option is granted. Options granted under the 2006 Director Plan are 
exercisable annually, as defined in the 2006 Director Plan. The term of the 
options may not exceed ten years.

The Company’s 1996 Stock Option Plan and 1996 Director Plan terminated 
on May 21, 2006 and no additional shares are available for future issuance. 
At December 31, 2008, 1,729,187 shares of the Company’s common stock 
were outstanding under the 1996 and 2006 plans, of which 1,169,585 
shares were exercisable.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using 
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The weighted average fair value of 
options granted was $1.11, $1.93, and $2.25 per share for the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006. The following assumptions were used 
for the shares granted during 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Year ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006

Risk free interest rate 3.00% 4.92% 4.75%
Expected dividend yield 8.00 8.00 8.00
Expected life of option in years (1) 5.98 5.88 7.00
Expected volatility (2) 30.00 35.00 35.00

(1) Expected life is calculated using the simplified method.

(2)  We determine our expected volatility using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on 
our historical volatility.

The following table presents the activity for the stock option program under 
the 1996 and 2006 Stock Option Plans and the 1996 and 2006 Director 
Plans for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

   Weighted 
 Number  Exercise Price Average 
 of Options Per Share Exercise Price

Outstanding at  
 December 31, 2005 1,654,404 $ 3.50–29.25 $10.21
Granted 207,162 13.06–13.06 13.06
Cancelled (151,918) 4.85–29.25 17.03
Exercised (1) (253,118) 3.70–8.40 4.94

Outstanding at  
 December 31, 2006 1,456,530 3.50–29.25 10.82
Granted 209,674 10.76–11.24 11.11
Cancelled (95,499) 8.51–13.06 11.78
Exercised (1) (102,650) 3.87–8.51 6.30

Outstanding at  
 December 31, 2007 1,468,055 3.50–29.25 11.12
Granted 429,918 7.79–9.99 9.16
Cancelled (107,736) 6.50–29.25 20.33
Exercised (1) (61,050) 3.87–7.03 5.79

Outstanding at  
 December 31, 2008 (2) 1,729,187 $ 3.50–18.75 $10.25

Options exercisable at
December 31, 2006 1,233,512 $ 3.50–29.25 $10.79
December 31, 2007 1,206,190 3.50–29.25 11.13
December 31, 2008 (2) 1,169,585 3.50–18.75 9.70

(1)  The aggregate intrinsic value, which represents the difference between the price of the 
Company’s common stock at the exercise date and the related exercise price of the underlying 
options, was $242,000, $523,000, and $1,186,000 for 2008, 2007, and 2006.

(2)  The aggregate intrinsic value, which represents the difference between the price of the 
Company’s common stock at December 31, 2008 and the related exercise price of the  
underlying options, was $1,032,000 for outstanding options and $1,032,000 for exercisable 
options as of December 31, 2008.

The following table presents the activity for the unvested options outstanding 
under the plan for the year ended December 31, 2008.
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   Weighted 
 Number  Exercise Price Average 
 of Options Per Share Exercise Price

Outstanding at  
 December 31, 2007 261,865 $ 8.51–13.06 $11.08
Granted 429,918 7.79–9.99 9.16
Cancelled (16,266) 9.22–11.21 10.87
Vested (115,915) 7.79–13.06 10.63

Outstanding at  
 December 31, 2008 559,602 $7.79–13.06 $ 9.70

The fair value of the options vested was $4,000, $510,000, and $1,665,000 
in 2008, 2007, and 2006.

The following table summarizes information regarding options outstanding 
and options exercisable at December 31, 2008 under the 1996 and 2006 
Stock Option Plans and the 1996 and 2006 Director Plans.

 Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

 Weighted average Weighted average

 Shares at Remaining  Shares at Remaining 
 December 31,  contractual  December 31,  contractual 
Range of Exercise Prices 2008 life in years Exercise price 2008 life in years Exercise price

$ 3.50–5.51 377,650 3.54 $  4.91 377,650 3.54 $  4.91
6.89–13.06 1,034,655 7.54 10.06 475,053 6.00 10.49
14.63–15.56 26,948 1.93 14.98 26,948 1.93 14.98
17.25–18.75 289,934 0.42 17.41 289,934 0.42 17.41

$ 3.50–18.75 1,729,187 5.39 10.25 1,169,585 3.73 10.51

NOTE 7:
Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table presents the Company’s quarterly results of operations  
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2008 Quarter Ended
Investment income $14,444 $12,730 $11,743 $13,367
Net investment income (loss) after income taxes 3,397 3,825 3,425 4,443
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 3,921 4,377 4,118 2,832
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations per common share
 Basic $0.22 $0.25 $0.23 $0.16
 Diluted 0.22 0.25 0.23 0.16

2007 Quarter Ended
Investment income $10,439 $13,157 $13,555 $14,242
Net investment income (loss) after income taxes (395) 1,618 1,555 2,520
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 3,780 4,272 3,602 3,782
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations per common share
 Basic $    0.22 $    0.24 $    0.21 $    0.22
 Diluted 0.21 0.24 0.20 0.21

2006 Quarter Ended
Investment income $10,014 $   9,338 $  9,630 $10,653
Net investment income after income taxes 1,727 329 144 965
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 1,787 4,076 1,401 5,844
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations per common share
 Basic $    0.10 $     0.24 $    0.08 $    0.34
 Diluted 0.10 0.23 0.08 0.33
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NOTE 8:
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair  
Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active”. 
The FSP clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurement”, 
and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the 
fair value of a financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not 
active. The FSP is effective upon issuance, including for prior periods for 
which financial statements have not been issued. Revisions resulting from a 
change in the valuation technique or its application should be accounted for 
as a change in accounting estimate; however, the disclosure provisions for a 
change in accounting estimate are not required for revisions resulting from  
a change in valuation technique or its application. We do not believe that 
this pronouncement will have an impact on our financial condition or 
results of operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of the 
Useful Life of Intangible Assets” (“FAS 142-3”), which amends the factors 
that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions 
used for purpose of determining the useful life of a recognized intangible 
asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 
142”). FAS 142-3 is intended to improve the consistency between the useful  
life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected  
cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under SFAS 141(R), 
“Business Combinations”, and other US generally accepted accounting 
principles. FAS 142-3 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 
15, 2008. Earlier application is not permitted. The Company believes  
the impact of adopting FAS 142-3 will not have a material effect on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Deriva-
tive Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 161”). SFAS 161 requires 
specific disclosures regarding the location and amounts of derivative instru-
ments in the Company’s financial statements; how derivative instruments 
and related hedged items are accounted for; and how derivative instruments 
and related hedged items affect the Company’s financial position, financial 
performance, and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements 
issued for fiscal years and interim periods after November 15, 2008. Early 
application is permitted. We do not believe that this pronouncement will 
have an impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Inter-
ests in Consolidated Financial Statements-an amendment of ARB No. 51”, 
which establishes accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling 
interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary by clarify-
ing that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in 
the consolidated entity that should be reported as a component of equity. 
It requires that changes in a parent’s ownership interest while the parent 
retains its controlling interest be accounted for as equity transactions and 
any retained noncontrolling equity investment upon the deconsolidation of 
a subsidiary be initially measured at fair value. SFAS No. 160 is effective for 

fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and shall be applied 
prospectively, except for the presentation and disclosure requirements which 
shall be applied retrospectively. We do not believe that this pronouncement 
will have an impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R (revised 2007), “Busi-
ness Combinations” which establishes principles and requirements on how an  
acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable  
assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the 
acquiree at the acquisition date fair value, as well as the recognition and 
measurement of goodwill acquired in a business combination. SFAS No. 
141R also requires certain disclosures to enable users of the financial state-
ments to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination.  
Acquisition costs associated with the business combination will generally be 
expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141R is effective prospectively to business 
combinations in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. We 
do not believe that this pronouncement will have an impact on our financial 
condition or results of operations.

NOTE 9:
Segment Reporting

We have one business segment, our lending and investing operations. This 
segment originates and services medallions, secured commercial, and consumer 
loans, and invests in both marketable and nonmarketable securities.

NOTE 10:
Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Employment Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with certain key officers for 
either a three or five-year term. Annually, the contracts with a five-year term 
will renew for new five-year terms unless prior to the end of the first year, 
either the Company or the executive provides notice to the other party of its 
intention not to extend the employment period beyond the current five-year 
term. In the event of a change in control, as defined, during the employment  
period, the agreements provide for severance compensation to the executive 
in an amount equal to the balance of the salary, bonus, and value of fringe 
benefits which the executive would be entitled to receive for the remainder 
of the employment period (see Note 18).

Employment agreements expire at various dates through 2013. At December 
31, 2008, minimum payments under employment agreements are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2009 $1,287
2010 799
2011 664
2012 664
2013 288
2014 and thereafter —

Total $3,702
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(b) Other Commitments

The Company had portfolio commitments outstanding of $5,478,000 at  
December 31, 2008. Generally, commitments are on the same terms as loans  
to or investments in existing borrowers or investees, and generally have fixed 
expiration dates. Since some commitments are expected to expire without 
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily repre-
sent future cash requirements. In addition, the Company had approximately 
$45,460,000 of undisbursed funds relating to revolving credit facilities with 
borrowers. These amounts may be drawn upon at the customer’s request if 
they meet certain credit requirements.

Commitments for leased premises expire at various dates through June 30, 
2016. At December 31, 2008, minimum rental commitments for non- 
cancelable leases are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2009 $1,182
2010 1,126
2011 1,126
2012 1,048
2013 907
2014 and thereafter 2,266

Total $7,655

Rent expense was $1,271,000, $1,353,000, and $1,266,000 for the years 
ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

(c) Litigation

The Company and its subsidiaries become defendants to various legal 
proceedings arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of 
management, based on the advice of legal counsel, there is no proceeding 
pending, or to the knowledge of management threatened, which in the 
event of an adverse decision would result in a material adverse impact on  
the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

NOTE 11:
Related Party Transactions

Certain directors, officers, and shareholders of the Company are also directors 
and officers of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, MFC, MCI, FSVC, and  
Medallion Bank, as well as of certain portfolio investment companies.  
Officer salaries are set by the Board of Directors of the Company (see  
Note 18).

A member of the Board of Directors of the Company since 1996 is also  
of counsel in the Company’s primary law firm. Amounts paid to the law 
firm were approximately $404,000, $837,000, and $542,000 in 2008, 
2007, and 2006.

During 2008, 2007, and 2006 we serviced $204,055,000, $163,816,000 
and $155,099,000 of loans for Medallion Bank. Included in net investment 
income were amounts as described below that were received from Medallion 
Bank for services rendered in originating and servicing loans, and also for 
reimbursement of certain expenses incurred on their behalf:

Year ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Servicing fees $1,492 $1,395 $1,327
Loan origination fees 804 452 381
Reimbursement of operating expenses 192 173 167
Interest income 5 7 16

Total other income $2,493 $2,027 $1,891

SPAC

Included in investments in controlled subsidiaries is $6,567,000 of investments 
in and loans to a special purpose acquisition company, Sports Properties  
Acquisition Corp. (the SPAC), 18%-owned by the Company which, 
consummated its initial public offering (IPO) in January 2008. Immediately 
prior to the IPO, the Company purchased warrants for $5,900,000 from 
the SPAC in a private placement which will allow it to acquire 5,900,000 
additional shares of common stock in the future under various conditions 
and restrictions. If the SPAC is unable consummate an approved business 
combination within 24 months of the IPO, the Company’s entire investment  
in the SPAC will become worthless as all of the assets of the SPAC will be 
used to repay the public stockholders.

The Company has entered into a consulting agreement with ProEminent 
Sports, whose principal acts as a consultant to the Company for sports  
related investments and, included within the scope of his duties, also provides 
services to the SPAC, including serving as its Chief Executive Officer, and 
assisting generally with the SPAC’s offering and business combination. The 
Company pays ProEminent Sports a monthly fee of $20,000. Following  
a business combination, in the event the CEO is not offered employment  
or a board position with the SPAC, the Company has agreed to continue  
the consulting arrangement for at least an additional twelve months. The  
Company had previously entered into a consulting agreement with GamePlan, 
LLC which was terminated as of June 1, 2008, when the SPAC entered into 
its own consulting agreement with GamePlan, LLC. The Company had 
paid GamePlan, LLC a monthly fee of $10,000.

The Company has agreed to indemnify the SPAC in the event of the SPAC’s 
liquidation for all claims of any vendors, service providers, or other entities 
that are owed money by the SPAC for services rendered or contracted for,  
or for products sold to the SPAC, including claims of any prospective 
acquisition targets. In addition, the Company, as the primary sponsor of 
the SPAC, may advance additional funds for operational and acquisition-
related purposes, which may be repaid from the ultimate disposition of the 
Company’s equity investment in the SPAC.

Certain of the Company’s officers and directors also serve as officers and 
directors of the SPAC, and in that role entered into agreements with the 
SPAC and its underwriter(s) to present to the SPAC, prior to presentation 
to any other person or entity, opportunities to acquire entities, until the 
earlier of the SPAC’s consummation of a business combination, the SPAC’s 
liquidation, or until such time as they cease to be an officer or director of 
the SPAC. The Company entered into a similar agreement.
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SPAC 2

Included in deferred costs in other assets is $759,000 of investments in and 
loans to a special purpose acquisition company, National Security Solutions, 
Inc. (SPAC 2), 74%-owned by the Company which is currently in organiza-
tion prior to registration with the SEC to register units for sale in an initial 
public offering. Up to $375,000 of this may be repayable upon completion 
of the offering or June 30, 2009, whichever is first. Prior to the offering, the 
Company will purchase warrants for $4,125,000 from SPAC 2 in a private 
placement which will allow it to acquire 4,125,000 additional shares of 
common stock. After the offering, the Company will own approximately 
17% of SPAC 2’s outstanding shares. If SPAC 2 is unable consummate 
an approved business combination within 24 months of its offering, the 
Company’s entire investment in SPAC 2 will become worthless as all of the 
assets of SPAC 2 will be used to repay the public stockholders.

The Company will also agree to indemnify SPAC 2 in the event of SPAC 2’s 
liquidation for all claims of any vendors, service providers, or other entities 
that are owed money by SPAC 2 for services rendered or contracted for, or 
for products sold to SPAC 2, including claims of any prospective acquisition 
targets. In addition, the Company, as the majority owner of SPAC 2, may 
advance additional funds for operational and acquisition-related purposes, 
which may be repaid from the proceeds of the offering or the ultimate 
disposition of the Company’s equity investment in SPAC 2.

Certain of the Company’s officers and directors also serve as officers and 
directors of SPAC 2, and in that role will enter into agreements with SPAC 
2 and its underwriter(s) to present to SPAC 2, prior to presentation to any 
other person or entity, opportunities to acquire entities, until the earlier of 
SPAC 2’s consummation of a business combination, SPAC 2’s liquidation, 
or until such time as they cease to be an officer or director of SPAC 2. The 
Company will also enter into a similar agreement.

NOTE 12:
Shareholders’ Equity

In November 2003, the Company announced a stock repurchase program 
which authorized the repurchase of up to $10,000,000 of common stock 
during the following six months, with an option for the Board of Directors 
to extend the time frame for completing the purchases, which expires in 
April 2009. In November 2004, the repurchase program was increased by  
an additional $10,000,000. As of December 31, 2008, 1,394,124 shares 
were repurchased for $12,681,000.

NOTE 13:
Noninterest Income and Other Operating Expenses

The major components of noninterest income were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Servicing fees $1,798 $1,436 $1,327
Prepayment penalties 1,343 460 782
Late charges 294 277 228
Other  402 271 309

Total noninterest income $3,837 $2,444 $2,646

Included in prepayment penalties in 2008 and 2006 was $718,000 and 
$629,000 related to the early payoff of several large loans. The increase in 
servicing fees, from prior years primarily reflected the increased fees relat-
ing to servicing Medallion Bank’s growing portfolio. Included in the other 
noninterest income was $86,000 of management fees paid by the SPAC 
investment in 2008.

The major components of other operating expenses were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Travel, meals, and entertainment $   620 $   548 $   491
Miscellaneous taxes 546 436 274
Directors fees 471 345 492
Office expense 429 535 294
Depreciation and amortization 387 457 415
Insurance 232 308 302
Telephone 225 205 194
Loan collection costs 139 254 372
Other expenses 705 599 678

Total other operating expenses $3,754 $3,687 $3,512

Travel, meals, and entertainment increased due to an increase in invest-
ment development activities in 2008. Miscellaneous taxes increased in 2008 
due to recognizing a $113,000 tax refund received in 2007. Directors’ fees 
increased due to higher fees, expense reimbursements, and a higher number 
of meetings held in 2008. Office expenses were higher in 2007 due to office 
repairs and maintenance expenses, and the disposal and writeoffs of certain 
assets. Depreciation and amortization decreased as more assets became fully 
depreciated. Loan collection costs have been steadily decreasing for the last 
three years as the quality of the portfolio has improved. Other expenses 
increased from 2007 primarily reflecting higher bank fees and overall slight 
increase in miscellaneous expenses such as advertising, referral, and dues and 
subscriptions in 2008.
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NOTE 14:
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data

The following table provides selected financial ratios and other data:

Year ended December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Net share data
Net asset value at the beginning of the year $      9.86 $      9.73 $      9.69 $      9.83 $      8.89
Net investment income 0.85 0.30 0.18 0.26 0.01
Income tax (provision) benefit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.01)
Net realized gains (losses) on investments (0.21) 0.80 0.17 0.21 0.13
Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments 0.22 (0.23) 0.39 (0.08) 1.09

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 0.86 0.87 0.74 0.39 1.22
Issuance of common stock — (0.01) (0.04) (0.06) 0.00
Repurchase of common stock — 0.01 — 0.03 0.05
Distribution of net investment income (0.76) (0.45) (0.44) (0.29) (0.14)
Distribution of net realized gains on investments — (0.31) (0.22) (0.21) (0.19)
Other  0.01 0.02 — — —

Total increase (decrease) in net asset value 0.11 0.13 0.04 (0.14) 0.94

Net asset value at the end of the year (1) $      9.97 $      9.86 $      9.73 $      9.69 $      9.83

Per share market value at beginning of year $    10.02 $    12.37 $    11.26 $      9.70 $      9.49
Per share market value at end of year 7.63 10.02 12.37 11.26 9.70
Total return (2) (16%) (13%) 16% 21% 6%

Ratios/supplemental data
Average net assets $174,082 $171,503 $167,528 $167,909 $162,843
Total expense ratio (3) 24% 28% 23% 21% 18%
Operating expenses to average net assets 9.95 10.40 8.91 10.11 9.97
Net investment income (loss) after taxes to average net assets 8.67 3.09 1.89 2.73 (0.01)

(1)  Includes $0.08, $0.16, $0.08, $0.12, and $0.07 of undistributed net investment income per share as of December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004, and $0.00 of undistributed net realized 
gains per share for all years presented.

(2)  Total return is calculated by dividing the change in market value of a share of common stock during the year, assuming the reinvestment of dividends on the payment date, by the per share market value 
at the beginning of the year.

(3) Total expense ratio represents total expenses (interest expense, operating expenses, and income taxes) divided by average net assets.

NOTE 15:
Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a 401(k) Investment Plan (the 401(k) Plan) which covers 
all full-time and part-time employees of the Company who have attained 
the age of 21 and have a minimum of one year of service, including the 
employees of Medallion Bank. Under the 401(k) Plan, an employee may 
elect to defer not less than 1% and no more than 15% of the total annual 
compensation that would otherwise be paid to the employee, provided, 
however, that employee’s contributions may not exceed certain maximum 

amounts determined under the Internal Revenue Code. Employee contribu-
tions are invested in various mutual funds according to the directions of the 
employee. Beginning September 1, 1998, the Company elected to match 
employee contributions to the 401(k) Plan in an amount per employee up 
to one-third of such employee’s contribution but in no event greater than 
2% of the portion of such employee’s annual salary eligible for 401(k) Plan 
benefits. The Company’s 401(k) plan expense, which including amounts for 
the employees of Medallion Bank, was approximately $82,000, $98,000, 
and $59,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.
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NOTE 16:
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 107, “Disclosures About 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (SFAS 107) requires disclosure of 
fair value information about certain financial instruments, whether assets, 
liabilities, or off-balance-sheet commitments, if practicable. The following 
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class 
of financial instrument. Fair value estimates that were derived from broker 
quotes cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in 
many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument.

(a) Investments — The Company’s investments are recorded at the estimated 
fair value of such investments.

(b) Floating rate borrowings — Due to the short-term nature of these 
instruments, the carrying amount approximates fair value.

(c) Commitments to extend credit — The fair value of commitments to 
extend credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar 
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and 
present creditworthiness of the counter parties. For fixed rate loan commit-
ments, fair value also includes a consideration of the difference between the 
current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. At December 31, 
2008 and 2007, the estimated fair value of these off-balance-sheet instruments 
was not material.

(d) Fixed rate borrowings — The fair value of the debentures payable to 
the SBA is estimated based on current market interest rates for similar debt.

 December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

 Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Value Amount Value

Financial Assets
Investments $570,597 $570,597 $653,046 $653,046
Cash  32,075 32,075 33,454 33,454
Financial Liabilities
Funds borrowed 462,650 462,650 542,549 542,549

NOTE 17:
Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Medallion adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157 in the 2008 first quarter. 
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring  
fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the quality of inputs 
used to measure fair value, and enhances disclosure requirements for fair 
value measurements. Medallion accounts for a substantially all of its  
financial instruments at fair value or considers fair value in its measurement, 
in accordance with the accounting guidance for investment companies. See 
Note 2 sections “Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities” and “Investment Valu-
ation” for a description of our valuation methodology which is unchanged 
during 2008.

In accordance with SFAS No. 157, Medallion has categorized its financial 
instruments, based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique, 
into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the  
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or  
liabilities (level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3).

As required by SFAS No. 157, when the inputs used to measure fair value 
fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the level within which the fair 
value measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For example, a level 
3 fair value measurement may include inputs that are observable (level 1 and 

2) and unobservable (level 3). Therefore gains and losses for such assets and 
liabilities categorized within the level 3 table below may include changes in 
fair value that are attributable to both observable inputs (level 1 and 2) and 
unobservable inputs (level 3).

Financial assets and liabilities recorded on the consolidated balance sheets 
are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted 
quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market that 
Medallion has the ability to access (examples include active exchange-traded 
equity securities, exchanged-traded derivatives, most US Government and 
agency securities, and certain other sovereign government obligations).

Level 2. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on quoted 
prices in markets that are not active or model inputs that are observable 
either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or  
liability. Level 2 inputs include the following:

A)  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets (for  
example, restricted stock);

B)  Quoted price for identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active 
markets (for example, corporate and municipal bonds, which trade 
infrequently);
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Included in level 3 investments in other controlled subsidiaries is the 
investment in Medallion Bank, the SPAC, and an investment in a start-up 
business engaged in media-buying consulting. Included in level 3 equity 
investments are unregistered shares of common stock in a publicly-held 
company as well as certain private equity positions in non-marketable  
securities. Included in level 3 other assets is the investment in SPAC 2.

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of  
Medallion’s level 3 financial assets and liabilities for the year ended  
December 31, 2008.

(Dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
 Medallion loans $  — $       — $402,964 $402,964
 Commercial loans — — 89,611 89,611
 Investment in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries — 3,650 71,100 74,750
 Equity investments 246 — 3,026 3,272
 Other assets — 29,728 759 30,487

 Total Realized and Unrealized
 Gains (Losses) Included in Income

  Appreciation Other  Purchases,   Amounts 
 December 31, (Depreciation) Revenues and  Issuances and Transfers December 31,  Related to
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 on Investments Expenses Total Settlements In (Out) (1) 2008 Held Assets (2)

Assets
 Medallion loans $498,883 $      15 $ — $      15 $(95,934) $ — $402,964 $       —
 Commercial loans 91,782 (3,613) — (3,613) 1,442 — 89,611 (3,138)
 Investment in Medallion  
  Bank and other  
  controlled subsidiaries 53,871 (2,231) — (2,231) 18,818 642 71,100 (2,231)
 Equity investments 4,530 (1,574) — (1,574) 70 — 3,026 (1,994)
 Other assets 1,146 — — — 255 (642) 759 —

(1)  The SPAC was reclassified during the nine months ended December 31, 2008 from other assets to investment in controlled subsidiaries upon consummation of the initial public offering of the SPAC’s 
common stock.

(2) Total realized and unrealized gains (losses) included in income for the year which relate to assets held as of December 31, 2008.

C)  Pricing models whose inputs are observable for substantially the full  
term of the asset or liability (examples include most over-the-counter 
derivatives, including interest rate and currency swaps); and

D)  Pricing models whose inputs are derived principally from or corrobo-
rated by observable market data through correlation or other means 
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability (examples include 
certain residential and commercial mortgage-related assets, including 
loans, securities and derivatives).

Level 3. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on prices 
or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable 
and significant to the overall fair value measurement. These inputs reflect 
management’s own assumptions about the assumptions a market participant 
would use in pricing the assets or liability (examples include certain private 

equity investments, certain residential and commercial mortgage-related  
assets (including loans, securities, and derivatives), and long-dated or complex 
derivatives including certain equity derivatives and long-dated options on 
gas and power).

A review of fair value hierarchy classification is conducted on a quarterly basis. 
Changes in the observability of valuation inputs may result in a reclassification 
for certain financial assets or liabilities. Reclassifications impacting level 3 of 
the fair value hierarchy are reported as transfers in/out of the level 3 category 
as of the beginning of the quarter in which the reclassifications occur.

The following table presents Medallion’s fair value hierarchy for those  
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 
31, 2008.
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NOTE 18:
Subsequent Events — Troubled Assets Relief Program (TARP)

On February 27, 2009, Medallion Bank (the Bank) issued and sold, and 
the US Treasury purchased under the TARP Capital Purchase Program 
(the CPP), (1) 11,800 shares of the Bank’s Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative 
Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, and (2) a warrant (the Warrant), which 
was immediately exercised, to purchase up to 590 shares of the Bank’s Fixed 
Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series B, for an aggregate 
purchase price of approximately $11,800,000 in cash. The liquidation 
preference of both Series is $1,000 per share.

The securities were sold in a private placement exempt from SEC registration.

Non-cumulative dividends on the Series A shares will accrue on the liquida-
tion preference at a rate of 5% per annum for the first five years, and at a 
rate of 9% per annum thereafter, and the dividends on the Series B shares 
will accrue on the liquidation preference at a rate of 9% per annum, both, if,  
as, and when declared by the Bank’s Board of Directors out of funds legally 
available thereof. The Preferred Shares have no maturity date and rank 
senior to the Bank’s common stock (and pari passu with one another) with 
respect to the payment of dividends and distributions and amounts payable 
upon liquidation, dissolution, and winding up of the Bank. The Bank’s 
Articles of Amendments provide that, subject to the approval of the FDIC, 
the Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the Bank at 100% of 
their liquidation preference plus declared and unpaid dividends, provided, 
however, that the Preferred Shares may be redeemed prior to February 27, 
2012 only if (i) the Bank has raised aggregate gross proceeds in one or more 
Qualified Equity Offerings, as defined, of at least $3,097,500 and (ii) the 
aggregate redemption price does not exceed the aggregate net proceeds from 
such offerings. The Series B shares cannot be redeemed until the Series A 
shares have been redeemed.

On February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (the ARRA) was signed into law. The ARRA, among other things, 
directs the US Treasury to permit CPP participants to redeem the preferred 
stock issued under the CPP without first requiring a Qualified Equity  
Offering, upon consultation with the appropriate Federal banking agency.

The agreements between the Bank and the US Treasury pursuant to which 
the Preferred Shares and the Warrant were sold contain limitations on the 
payment of common stock dividends to a quarterly rate of $1.00 per share 
or $1,000,000, and on the Bank’s ability to repurchase its common stock, 
and subjects the Bank and the Company to certain of the executive compen-
sation limitations and requirements included in the Emergency Economic 
Stabilization Act of 2008 (the EESA). As a condition to the closing of the 
transaction, the Company and its senior executive officers have agreed to all 
terms and conditions.

The ARRA amends the EESA to require the US Treasury to issue additional 
executive compensation standards applicable to CPP participants (which  
may include parent companies such as the Company), which will include,  
among other things, the repayment by the senior executive officers and  
other highly compensated employees of bonus amounts if the bonus was  
based on materially inaccurate financial information or other criteria and  
the prohibition of the payment or accrual of any bonus to the institution’s 
highest paid executive officer except through restricted stock with delayed 
vesting and subject to dollar limits. The ARRA further requires CPP  
participants to permit stockholders to vote on a non-binding resolution  
approving the institution’s compensation of executives.

NOTE 19:
Subsequent Events — Other

On February 18, 2009, the Company entered into contracts to purchase 
interest rate caps on a $132,000,000 notional value of principal from DZ 
Bank. The caps provide for payments to the Company if LIBOR (0.44% at 
December 31, 2008) exceeds 4%. The caps were purchased in three tranches 
expiring in six months, one year, and two years, and in the aggregate cost 
$70,000, which cost will be carried in other assets on the balance sheet and 
amortized over the lives of the underlying contracts to interest expense.

On February 10, 2009, the Company’s board of directors declared a $0.19 per 
share common stock dividend, payable on March 30, 2009 to shareholders 
of record on March 13, 2009.

On February 2, 2009 the Company’s revolving note agreement with Sterling 
National Bank was amended to provide for an interest rate floor of 3%.
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December 31, 2008   Security  # of  % of  Interest Investment
(Dollars in thousands) Industry State Type % Held Invest. Total Rate (1) Balances

Medallion loans
New York     1,027 53% 6.04% $ 304,306
Boston     152 5 7.54 31,283
Chicago     186 5 7.15 28,172
Newark     180 5 8.17 27,809
Cambridge     25 1 7.59 4,387
Other      27 1 7.40 6,584

Total      1,597 70% 6.42% 402,541
Deferred loan acquisition costs        423
Unrealized depreciation on loans        —

Medallion loans, net        $402,964

Commercial loans
 Secured mezzanine (14% Minnesota, 11% Wisconsin, 10% Florida, 10% Oklahoma, 9% Indiana,  
  9% California, 8% Texas, 8% Michigan, and 21% all other states)
   Manufacturing     20 6% 13.97% $   34,551
   Administrative and support services     5 2 17.12 9,861
   Wholesale trade     3 2 13.59 9,752
   Accommodation and food services     4 1 11.00 4,492
   Professional, scientific, and technical services    1 1 19.00 2,508
   Health care and social assistance     1 * 7.00 1,847
   Information     2 * 17.63 1,588
   Retail trade     1 * 10.88 876

 Total     37 12% 14.23 $  65,475

 Asset-based (69% New York, 23% New Jersey, and 8% all other states)
   Wholesale trade     10 1% 4.79% $     5,419
   Transportation and warehousing     5 1 5.63 2,065
   Retail trade     6 * 5.01 1,888
   Manufacturing     10 * 6.30 1,334
   Construction     3 * 5.36 986
   Finance and insurance     6 * 6.27 761
   Administrative and support services     3 * 5.55 462
   Arts, entertainment, and recreation     1 * 5.75 331
   Health care and social assistance     1 * 5.50 210
   Real estate and rental and leasing     1 * 5.50 96

 Total     46 2% 5.29 $  13,552

 Other secured commercial (91% New York, 7% New Jersey, and 2% Illinois)
   Accommodation and food services     11 1% 6.87% $     5,321
   Retail trade     17 1 11.15 4,374
   Transportation and warehousing     168 1 7.09 3,323
   Other services (except public administration)    10 * 8.93 1,427
   Real estate and rental and leasing     5 * 7.20 1,001
   Arts, entertainment, and recreation     2 * 8.57 424

 Total     213 3% 8.34 $  15,870

Total      296 17% 11.97% $  94,897
Deferred loan acquisition costs        (171)
Unrealized depreciation on loans        (5,115)

Commercial loans, net        $  89,611

(1) Represents the weighted average interest rate of the respective portfolio as of the date indicated.

CONSOLIDATED SChEDuLE OF INvESTMENTS
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December 31, 2008   Security  # of  % of  Interest Investment
(Dollars in thousands) Industry State Type % Held Invest. Total Rate (1) Balances

Investment in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries

Medallion Bank** Commercial  Utah Common stock 100% 1 11% 9.37% $   64,003
Salt Lake City, Utah banking

SPAC  Special Purpose NY Common Stock 18% 1 1 0.00 6,567
437 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022

Medallion Hamptons Real Estate NY Membership 100% 1 * 0.00 1,917
Holding, LLC   Interests
437 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022

Generation Outdoors, LLC Advertising NY Common stock 100% 1 * 0.00 530
437 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022

Total      4 13% 8.22% $  73,017
Unrealized appreciation on investments in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries     1,733

Investment in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries, net      $  74,750

Equity investments

Restaurant Technologies Restaurant   Common Stock * 1 *% 0.00% $        990
940 Apollo Rd. Suite 110 Service
Eagan, MN 55121 Provider

PMC Commercial Trust ** Real Estate  Common Stock * 1 * 0.00 901
17950 Preston Road, Suite 600 Investment
Dallas, TX 75252 Trust

Convergent Capital, Ltd Commercial  Limited  7% 1 * 0.00 640
505 N. Highway 169 Finance  Partnership
Minneapolis MN 35441   Interest

On Top Radio Station   Ownership  12% 1 * 0.00 200
2435 North Central Expressway Broadcasting  Shares
Richardson, TX 75080

Micromedics, Inc. Medical Device   Common Stock * 1 * 0.00 59
1270 Eagan Industrial Road Manufacturer
St. Paul, MN 55121-1385

Star Concessions, Ltd. Airport Food   Limited  45% 1 * 0.00 40
8008 Cedar Springs Road and Retail  Partnership
Terminal Building LB   Interest
Dallas, TX ‘75235

Metlife Insurance  Common Stock * 1 * 0.00 5

Appliance Recycling Appliance  Common Stock * 1 * 0.00 —
Centers of America, Inc.** Recycler
7400 Excelsior Boulevard
Minneapolis, MN 55426-4516

Total      8 *% 4.33% $    2,835
Unrealized appreciation on equities        437

Equity investments, net        $    3,272

Investment securities
Total      — —% —% $          —
Unrealized appreciation on investment securities       —
Investment securities, net        $          —

Total investments at cost     1,905 100% 7.56% $573,290

Deferred loan acquisition costs        252
Unrealized appreciation on investments in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries     1,733
Unrealized appreciation on equities        437
Unrealized depreciation on loans        (5,115)

Net Investments ($458,102 pledged as collateral under borrowing arrangements)     $570,597

* Less than 1.0%

** Not an eligible portfolio company as such term is defined in Section 2(a)(46) of the 1940 Act.

(1) Represents the weighted average interest rate of the respective portfolio as of the date indicated.

CONSOLIDATED SChEDuLE OF INvESTMENTS
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December 31, 2007   Security  # of  % of  Interest Investment
(Dollars in thousands) Industry State Type % Held Invest. Total Rate (1) Balances

Medallion loans
New York     1,166 61% 6.91% $ 399,955
Chicago     286 5 7.43 33,008
Boston     161 5 8.44 32,446
Newark     159 3 8.40 22,058
Cambridge     25 1 8.41 5,174
Other      29 1 7.58 5,481

Total      1,826 76% 7.13% 498,122
Deferred loan acquisition costs        798
Unrealized depreciation on loans        (37)

Medallion loans, net        $498,883

Commercial loans
 Secured mezzanine (22% Minnesota, 15% Wisconsin, 11% Indiana, 10% Texas, 7% Iowa,  
  7% Florida, and 28% all other states)
   Manufacturing     21 5% 14.32% $   32,258
   Accommodation and food services     4 1 11.40 6,442
   Administrative and support services     3 1 17.01 6,265
   Wholesale trade     1 1 13.00 4,000
   Transportation and warehousing     1 * 14.00 2,850
   Professional, scientific, and technical services    2 * 18.81 2,619
   Health care and social assistance     1 * 7.00 1,906
   Information     3 * 17.67 1,808
   Retail trade     1 * 10.88 1,004

 Total     37 9% 14.19 $  59,152

 Asset-based (77% New York, 21% New Jersey, and 2% all other states)
   Wholesale trade     10 1% 8.45% $     7,505
   Retail trade     7 1 8.87 3,333
   Administrative and support services     3 * 8.65 2,879
   Transportation and warehousing     5 * 9.51 2,425
   Construction     2 * 9.25 1,159
   Manufacturing     10 * 10.14 1,111
   Arts, entertainment, and recreation     1 * 9.75 569
   Finance and insurance     5 * 10.10 506
   Professional, scientific, and technical services    1 * 9.25 264
   Health care and social assistance     1 * 9.50 89
   Real estate and rental and leasing     1 * 9.50 30

 Total     46 3% 8.91 $  19,870

 Other secured commercial (91% New York, 7% New Jersey, and 2% Illinois)
   Transportation and warehousing     132 1% 7.25% $     5,152
   Accommodation and food services     10 1 9.05 4,763
   Retail trade     13 1 11.61 3,843
   Other services (except public administration)    18 1 9.56 3,789
   Real estate and rental and leasing     6 * 7.39 1,144
   Arts, entertainment, and recreation     2 * 8.59 413
   Construction     1 * 7.25 148
   Manufacturing     1 * 8.00 4

 Total     183 3% 9.05 $  19,256

Total      266 15% 12.12% $  98,278
Deferred loan acquisition costs        (64)
Unrealized depreciation on loans        (6,432)

Commercial loans, net        $  91,782

(1) Represents the weighted average interest rate of the respective portfolio as of the date indicated.

CONSOLIDATED SChEDuLE OF INvESTMENTS
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December 31, 2007   Security  # of  % of  Interest Investment
(Dollars in thousands) Industry State Type % Held Invest. Total Rate (1) Balances

Investment in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries

Medallion Bank** Commercial  Utah Common stock 100% 1 8% 14.24% $   53,834
Salt Lake City, Utah banking

Medallion Hamptons Real Estate NY Membership  100% 1 * 0.00 1,730
Holding, LLC   Interests
437 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022

Generation Outdoors, LLC Advertising NY Common stock 100% 1 * 0.00 17
437 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022

Total      3 9% 13.79% $  55,581
Unrealized appreciation on investments in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries     1,920

Investment in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries, net      $  57,501

Equity investments

PMC Commercial Trust ** Real Estate   Common Stock * 1 *% 11.2% $ 901
17950 Preston Road, Suite 600 Investment
Dallas, TX 75252 Trust

Restaurant Technologies Restaurant  Common Stock * 1 * 0.00 620
940 Apollo Rd. Suite 110 Service Provider
Eagan, MN 55121

Clear Source Bottled Water  Warrants * 1 * 0.00 278
2281 Vermont Rte. 66 Manufacturer
Randolph, VT 05060

Convergent Capital, Ltd Commercial   Limited  7% 1 * 0.00 240
505 N. Highway 169 Finance  Partnership
Minneapolis MN 35441   Interest

Micromedics, Inc. Medical Device  Common Stock * 1 * 0.00 59
1270 Eagan Industrial Road Manufacturer
St. Paul, MN 55121-1385

Star Concessions, Ltd. Airport Food  Limited  45% 1 * 0.00 40
8008 Cedar Springs Road and Retail  Partnership
Terminal Building LB   Interest
Dallas, TX 75235

Appliance Recycling  Appliance  Common Stock * 1 * 0.00 —
Centers of America, Inc.** Recycler
7400 Excelsior Boulevard
Minneapolis, MN 55426-4516

Total      7 *% 4.70% $    2,138
Unrealized appreciation on equities        2,742

Equity investments, net        $    4,880

Investment securities
Total      — —% —% $          —
Unrealized appreciation on investment securities       —
Investment securities, net        $          —

Total investments at cost     2,102 100% 8.45% $654,119

Deferred loan acquisition costs        734
Unrealized appreciation on investments in Medallion Bank and other controlled subsidiaries     1,920
Unrealized appreciation on equities        2,742
Unrealized depreciation on loans        (6,469)

Net Investments ($458,102 pledged as collateral under borrowing arrangements)     $653,046

* Less than 1.0%

** Not an eligible portfolio company as such term is defined in Section 2(a)(46) of the 1940 Act.

(2) Represents the weighted average interest rate of the respective portfolio as of the date indicated.

CONSOLIDATED SChEDuLE OF INvESTMENTS
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Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Medallion Financial Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Medallion 
Financial Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”), including the consolidated 
schedule of investments, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and 
the selected financial ratios and other data (see note 14) for each of the three 
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2008. These financial 
statements and selected financial ratios and other data are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these consolidated financial statements and selected financial ratios and 
other data based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material mis-
statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consoli-
dated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide  
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the selected 
financial ratios and other data referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 
31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations, changes 
in net assets, cash flows, and selected financial ratios and other data for each 
of the three years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2008, in 
conformity with US generally accepted accounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on 
the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(“COSO”), and our report dated March 13, 2009 expressed an unqualified 
opinion thereon.

Weiser LLP
New York, New York
March 13, 2009

REpORT OF INDEpENDENT REgISTERED pubLIC ACCOuNTINg FIRM
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For the years ended December 31,   2008 2007 2006

Interest income
Investments   $  1,365,464 $  1,654,465 $  1,589,039
Loan interest including fees   40,007,949 34,909,582 28,386,375

Total interest income   41,373,413 36,564,047 29,975,414
Interest expense   14,933,771 13,803,604 10,453,732

Net interest income   26,439,642 22,760,443 19,521,682
Provision for loan losses   11,300,146 5,177,823 3,197,752

Net interest income after provision for loan losses   15,139,496 17,582,620 16,323,930

Non-interest income   468,566 336,719 490,128
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets   (88,794) 55,423 26,378

Non-interest expense
Loan servicing   4,190,889 3,520,906 2,951,525
Salaries and benefits   2,276,077 2,174,839 1,953,858
Regulatory fees   408,248 137,059 45,287
Professional fees   346,400 357,477 497,368
Occupancy and equipment   201,214 177,367 154,392
Credit reports   199,321 160,909 124,818
Other    932,170 661,324 561,761

Total non-interest expense   8,554,319 7,189,881 6,289,009

Income before income taxes   6,964,949 10,784,881 10,551,427
Provision for income taxes   2,775,621 4,058,745 4,387,959
Net income   4,189,328 6,726,136 6,163,468

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax   (64,096) 269,518 (2,313)

Total comprehensive income   $  4,125,232 $  6,995,654 $  6,161,155

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF OpERATIONS AND OThER COMpREhENSIvE INCOME (LOSS)
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December 31,    2008 2007

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents, substantially all of which are federal funds sold   $    9,400,755 $  17,024,801
Investment securities available-for-sale    20,088,254 21,837,833

Loans, net of deferred loan acquisition costs    406,910,964 322,419,804
Allowance for loan losses    (10,807,817) (7,311,430)

Loans, net    396,103,147 315,108,374

Due from affiliates    — 1,120,371
Repossessed inventory    2,425,106 978,057
Fixed assets, net    206,393 198,304
Deferred tax asset    1,649,512 931,165
Other assets    5,520,841 4,635,517

Total assets    $435,394,008 $361,834,422

Liabilities and shareholder’s equity
Liabilities
Time deposits, including accrued interest payable of $3,655,540 in 2008 and $3,717,322 in 2007  $370,063,540 $302,800,323
Subordinated debt and related party deposit    205,553 105,553
Other liabilities    1,120,846 3,136,500
Due to affiliates    129,517 —
Taxes payable    106,199 898,925

Total liabilities    371,625,655 306,941,301

Commitments and contingencies    — —

Shareholder’s equity
Common stock, $1 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, 1,000,000 issued and outstanding  1,000,000 1,000,000
Additional paid in capital    49,750,000 39,000,000
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax    (39,988) 24,108
Retained earnings    13,058,341 14,869,013

Total shareholder’s equity    63,768,353 54,893,121

Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity    $435,394,008 $361,834,422

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

bALANCE ShEETS
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      Accumulated Other  Total 
     Additional Paid Comprehensive Retained Shareholder’s 
For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 Common Stock in Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity

Balance at December 31, 2005 $1,000,000 $30,650,000 $(243,097) $   7,729,409 $ 39,136,312
Capital Contributions  — 1,550,000 — — 1,550,000
Net income — — — 6,163,468 6,163,468
Unrealized losses on investment securities — — (2,313) — (2,313)

Balance at December 31, 2006 1,000,000 32,200,000 (245,410) 13,892,877 46,847,467
Capital Contributions — 6,800,000 — — 6,800,000
Net income — — — 6,726,136 6,726,136
Dividends paid to parent — — — (5,750,000) (5,750,000)
Unrealized gains on investment securities — — 269,518 — 269,518

Balance at December 31, 2007 1,000,000 39,000,000 24,108 14,869,013 54,893,121
Capital Contributions — 10,750,000 — — 10,750,000
Net income — — — 4,189,328 4,189,328
Dividends paid to parent — — — (6,000,000) (6,000,000)
Unrealized losses on investment securities — — (64,096) — (64,096)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $1,000,000 $49,750,000 $  (39,988) $13,058,341 $63,768,353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the years ended December 31,   2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income from operations   $     4,189,328 $     6,726,136 $     6,163,468
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows provided by operating activities:
 Depreciation and amortization   83,535 71,136 47,208
 Provision for loan losses   11,300,146 5,177,823 3,197,752
 Amortization of origination costs   2,181,515 1,155,607 851,052
 Amortization of premium on investments   4,195 139,868 276,737
 Deferred tax asset   (679,890) (1,449,586) 730,159
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
  Interest receivable   (488,116) (447,701) (733,748)
  Repossessed inventory   (1,447,049) (205,212) (291,947)
  Other assets   (397,208) 44,855 (185,224)
  Interest payable   (61,783) 489,783 1,137,326
  Other liabilities   (2,015,653) 2,651,161 144,652
  Taxes payable   (792,726) 918,333 (125,084)

Net cash provided by operating activities   11,876,294 15,272,203 11,212,351

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in loans, net   (94,476,435) (53,602,012) (55,180,659)
Purchase of investments   (7,026,468) (6,166,975) (8,305,414)
Proceeds from maturity of investments   8,669,300 6,313,080 4,279,379
Purchase of premises and equipment   (91,624) (101,900) (71,100)
Loss on sale of premises and equipment   — 11,551 —
Proceeds from disposal of premises and equipment   — 5,000 —

Net cash used in investing activities   (92,925,227) (53,541,256) (59,277,794)

Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of time deposits   446,205,000 216,633,000 297,782,000
Payments made at maturity of time deposits   (378,880,000) (175,806,000) (256,543,000)
Federal funds purchased   10,500,000 16,245,000 —
Payments made at maturity of federal funds purchased   (10,500,000) (16,245,000) —
Change in due to parent/affiliates   1,349,887 (1,282,065) (51,756)
Proceeds from capital contributions   10,750,000 6,800,000 1,550,000
Dividends paid   (6,000,000) (5,750,000) —
Repayment of subordinated debt   — — (200,000)

Net cash provided by financing activities   73,424,887 40,594,935 42,537,244

Net change in cash and cash equivalents   (7,624,046) 2,325,882 (5,528,199)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year   17,024,801 14,698,919 20,227,118

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year   $     9,400,755 $   17,024,801 $   14,698,919

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest   $   14,039,515 $   12,518,703 $     8,617,151
Cash paid for income taxes   3,400,625 4,590,000 3,782,883
Loans transferred to repossessed inventory   9,535,278 5,391,666 3,664,350

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CASh FLOwS
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NOTE 1:
Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of business — Medallion Bank (the Bank) is a limited service 
industrial bank headquartered in Salt Lake City, Utah. The Bank was 
formed in May 2002 for the purpose of obtaining an industrial bank (IB) 
charter pursuant to the laws of the State of Utah. The Bank is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Medallion Financial Corp. (Medallion). The Bank 
originates asset-based commercial loans and commercial loans to finance 
the purchase of taxi medallions (licenses), both of which are marketed and 
serviced by the Bank’s affiliates who have extensive prior experience in these 
asset groups. The Bank originates consumer loans on a national basis that 
are secured by marine, recreational vehicle, and trailer products to customers 
with prior credit blemishes. The Bank also originates unsecured consumer 
loans to finance hearing aids. Time certificates of deposits are originated 
nationally through a variety of brokered deposit relationships.

Basis of presentation — The Bank’s financial statements are presented in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the US and 
prevailing industry practices, which require management to make estimates 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities. Estimates, by their nature, are based upon 
judgment and available information. Actual results could differ materially 
from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents — The Bank considers all highly liquid instru-
ments with an original purchased maturity of three months or less to be cash  
equivalents. A non-interest bearing compensating balance of $100,000 is 
maintained at Zion’s Bank. Cash balances are generally held in accounts at 
large national or regional banking organizations in amounts that frequently 
exceed the federally insured limits.

Investment securities — Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 
115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” 
requires that all applicable investments be classified as trading securities, 
available-for-sale securities, or held-to-maturity securities. The Bank had 
$20,088,000 and $21,838,000 of available-for-sale securities at fair value 
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. The statement further requires that 
held-to-maturity securities be reported at amortized cost and available-
for-sale securities be reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
excluded from earnings, at the date of the financial statements and reported 
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as a separate component 
of shareholder’s equity, net of the effect of income taxes, until they are sold. 
The Bank had $64,000 of pretax net unrealized losses and $39,000 of pretax 
net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2008 
and 2007. At the time of sale, any gains or losses, calculated by the specific 
identification method, will be recognized as a component of operating 
results and any amounts previously included in shareholder’s equity, which 
were recorded net of the income tax effect, will be reversed.

Loans — Loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of 
deferred loan acquisition costs, which primarily includes deferred fees paid 
to loan originators, and which is amortized to interest income over the life 
of the loan. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis. Loans are 
usually charged-off when they are 120 days contractually past due unless 
the loan is both well secured and in the process of collection or bankruptcy, 

or when, in the opinion of management, full collection of principal and 
interest is unlikely. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that 
are charged off is reversed against interest income. For the recreational 
consumer loan portfolio, the process to repossess the collateral is started  
at 60 days past due. If the collateral is not located and the account reaches 
120 days delinquent, the account is charged off. If the collateral is repossessed, 
a loss is recorded to write the loan down to its fair value less selling costs, 
and the collateral is sent to auction. When the collateral is sold, the net 
auction proceeds are applied to the account, and any remaining balance is 
written off, and any excess proceeds are recorded as a realized gain. Proceeds 
collected on charged off accounts are recorded as a recovery. Total loans 
90 days or more past due were $4,345,000, $1,036,000, and $631,000 at 
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

A loan is considered to be impaired when, based on current information and 
events, it is likely the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due accord-
ing to the contractual terms of the original loan agreement. Management 
considers loans that are in bankruptcy status, but have not been charged-off, 
to be impaired. These loans are charged-down to fair value and placed on 
nonaccrual status. Fair value is determined based upon comparable market 
prices for substantially similar collateral plus management’s estimate of 
disposal costs. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed 
on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income. The interest on these 
loans is accounted for on the cash basis until qualifying for return to accrual 
status. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and inter-
est amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are 
reasonably assured. At December 31, 2008, $2,442,000 or 1% of consumer 
loans and $1,832,000 or 2% of commercial loans were on nonaccrual,  
compared to $623,000, or less than 1% of consumer loans on nonaccrual  
at December 31, 2007, of which the Bank had established allowance for 
loan losses of $117,000,$222,000, and $27,000, respectively. The amount 
of interest income on nonaccrual loans that would have been recognized 
if the loans had been paying in accordance with their original terms was 
$141,000 in 2008, $27,000 in 2007, and $0 in 2006. None of the Bank’s 
medallion loans were on nonaccrual as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Allowance for loan losses — In analyzing the adequacy of the allowance for  
loan losses, the Bank uses historical delinquency and actual loss rates acquired 
from Medallion and the unrelated financial institution from which the 
consumer portfolio was purchased. The allowance for loan losses is evaluated 
on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic 
review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the 
nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect 
the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral, 
prevailing economic conditions, and excess concentration risks. This evalu-
ation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to 
significant revision as more information becomes available. Credit losses are 
deducted from the allowance and subsequent recoveries are added.

Fixed assets — Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and amortization. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense while 
significant improvements are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the related assets. Capitalized leasehold improvements are amortized over 
the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining lease term.
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Income taxes — The Bank uses the asset and liability method in providing 
income taxes on all transactions that have been recognized in the financial 
statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future 
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement 
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their existing tax bases. 
The Bank files its tax returns on a separate company basis.

Other comprehensive gain/(loss) — The Bank had ($64,000), $270,000, 
and ($2,000) of net unrealized gains (losses) due to the mark-to-market of 
available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 
and 2006. The Bank had no other components of comprehensive loss.

Restrictions on dividends, loans, and advances — Banking regulations 
place certain restrictions on dividends paid and loans or advances made  
by the Bank to Medallion. The total amount of dividends that may be  
paid at any date is generally limited to the retained earnings of the Bank. 
However, dividends paid by the Bank would be prohibited if the effect 
thereof would cause the Bank’s capital to be reduced below applicable  
minimum standards. The Bank was restricted from paying dividends in  
the first three years of operations.

Fair value of financial instruments — The fair value of a financial instru-
ment is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing  
parties, other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined 
based upon quoted market prices. The Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of  
Financial Instruments,” which excludes certain financial instruments and  
all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements.

Fair value of assets and liabilities — The Bank adopted Statement of 
Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS No. 157) 
in the 2008 first quarter, which defines fair value, establishes a framework 
for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measure-
ments. While SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measure-
ments, it applies under other pronouncements that require or permit fair 
value measurements, such as SFAS No. 107, 133, 150, 155, and 156. SFAS 
No 157 clarifies the definition of fair value as an exit price (i.e. a price 
that would be received to sell, as opposed to acquire, an asset or transfer a 
liability), and emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement. 
It establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between assumptions 
developed based on market data obtained from independent external sources 
and the reporting entities own assumptions. Further, it specifies that fair 
value measurement should consider adjustment for risk, such as the risk 
inherent in the valuation technique or its inputs. For assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, SFAS No. 157 expands the  
required disclosures concerning the inputs used to measure fair value. See 
also Notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year 
balances to conform with the current year presentation. These reclassifications 
have no effect on the previously reported results of operations.

Recently issued financial accounting standards — In October 2008, the  
FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial  
Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active”. The FSP clarifies  
the application of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurement”, and provides  

an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value  
of a financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active.  
The FSP is effective upon issuance, including for prior periods for which  
financial statements have not been issued. Revisions resulting from a change 
in the valuation technique or its application should be accounted for as 
a change in accounting estimate; however, the disclosure provisions for a 
change in accounting estimate are not required for revisions resulting from  
a change in valuation technique or its application. We do not believe that 
this pronouncement will have an impact on our financial condition or 
results of operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of the 
Useful Life of Intangible Assets” (“FAS 142-3”), which amends the factors 
that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions 
used for purpose of determining the useful life of a recognized intangible 
asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 
142”). FAS 142-3 is intended to improve the consistency between the 
useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period 
of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under 
SFAS 141(R), “Business Combinations”, and other US generally accepted 
accounting principles. FAS 142-3 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2008. Earlier application is not permitted. The Company 
believes the impact of adopting FAS 142-3 will not have a material effect on 
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Deriva-
tive Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 161”). SFAS 161 requires 
specific disclosures regarding the location and amounts of derivative instru-
ments in the Company’s financial statements; how derivative instruments 
and related hedged items are accounted for; and how derivative instruments 
and related hedged items affect the Company’s financial position, financial 
performance, and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements 
issued for fiscal years and interim periods after November 15, 2008. Early 
application is permitted. We do not believe that this pronouncement will 
have an impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Inter-
ests in Consolidated Financial Statements-an amendment of ARB No. 51”, 
which establishes accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling 
interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary by clarify-
ing that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest  
in the consolidated entity that should be reported as a component of equity. 
It requires that changes in a parent’s ownership interest while the parent 
retains its controlling interest be accounted for as equity transactions and 
any retained noncontrolling equity investment upon the deconsolidation of 
a subsidiary be initially measured at fair value. SFAS No. 160 is effective for 
fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and shall be applied 
prospectively, except for the presentation and disclosure requirements which 
shall be applied retrospectively. We do not believe that this pronouncement 
will have an impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R (revised 2007),  
“Business Combinations” which establishes principles and requirements  
on how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the  
identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling 
interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date fair value, as well as the  
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recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in a business combination.  
SFAS No. 141R also requires certain disclosures to enable users of the 
financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business 
combination. Acquisition costs associated with the business combination will  
generally be expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141R is effective prospectively 
to business combinations in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 
2008. We do not believe that this pronouncement will have an impact on 
our financial condition or results of operations.

NOTE 2:
Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are summarized as follows at December 31.

  2008 2007

Loans
Consumer  $190,703,397 $141,210,443
Taxi medallion  123,841,952 88,890,219
Commercial:
Asset-based  78,745,557 72,929,629
Construction  7,794,154 14,855,725

Total commercial  86,539,711 87,785,354
Deferred loan acquisition costs  5,825,904 4,533,788

Total loans  $406,910,964 $322,419,804

In October 2008, the Bank purchased approximately $26,000,000 of  
medallion loans from an unaffiliated third party for cash.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are summarized as follows.

Balance at 12/31/05   $   5,025,131
Provision for loan losses   3,197,752
Loan charge-offs   (3,298,937)
Recoveries   1,132,839

Balance at 12/31/06   6,056,785
Provision for loan losses   5,177,823
Loan charge-offs   (5,320,596)
Recoveries   1,397,418

Balance at 12/31/07   7,311,430
Provision for loan losses   11,300,146
Loan charge-offs   (9,565,538)
Recoveries   1,761,779

Balance at 12/31/08   $10,807,817

The loan charge-offs and recoveries resulted from the consumer portfolio.

NOTE 3:
Investment Securities

Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2008 consists of 
the following.

  Gross  Gross 
 Amortized Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses Fair Value

Mortgage-backed securities, principally obligations of US federal agencies $17,707,234 $170,844 $159,320 $17,718,758
State and municipalities 2,445,000 30,994 106,498 2,369,496

Total  $20,152,234 $201,838 $265,818 $20,088,254

Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2007 consists of  
the following.

  Gross  Gross 
 Amortized Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses Fair Value

Mortgage-backed securities,principally obligations of US federal agencies $19,149,260 $144,982 $120,165 $19,174,077
State and municipalities 2,650,000 23,286 9,530 2,663,756

Total  $21,799,260 $168,268 $129,695 $21,837,833
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The amortized cost and estimated market value of investment securities  
as of December 31, 2008 by contractual maturity are shown below. Actual 
maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may 
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepay-
ment penalties.

  Amortized Cost Market Value

Due in one year or less  $              — $              —
Due after one year through five years  — —
Due after five years through ten years  1,035,620 1,036,399
Due after ten years  19,116,614 19,051,855

Total   $20,152,234 $20,088,254

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 
31, 2008 and 2007 aggregated by investment category and length of time 
that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position follows.

 Less than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

 Gross   Gross 
December 31, 2008 Unrealized Losses Fair Value Unrealized Losses Fair Value

Mortgage-backed securities,principally obligations of US federal agencies $   88,019 $ 6,678,469 $71,301 $2,739,699
State and municipalities 106,498 743,502 — —

Total  $194,517 $7,421,971 $71,301 $2,739,699

 Less than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

 Gross   Gross 
December 31, 2007 Unrealized Losses Fair Value Unrealized Losses Fair Value

Mortgage-backed securities, principally obligations of US federal agencies $     — $         — $120,165 $8,291,706
State and municipalities 4,084 495,916 5,446 459,554

Total  $4,084 $495,916 $125,611 $8,751,260

Unrealized losses on securities have not been recognized into income because  
the issuers’ bonds are of high credit quality, and the Bank has the intent 
and ability to hold the securities for the foreseeable future. The decline in 
fair value is primarily due to the decrease in the value of the underlying 
collateral. The fair value is expected to recover as the bonds approach the 
maturity date.

NOTE 4:
Fixed Assets

Fixed assets and their related useful lives at December 31 were as following:

 Useful lives 2008 2007

Computer software 3 years $189,237 $128,037
Furniture and fixtures 5–10 years 91,552 85,376
Leasehold improvements 3–5 years 66,749 61,550
Equipment 5 years 58,232 40,875
Telephone equipment 3 years 36,287 34,347
Deposit system 3 years 13,975 13,975

     456,032 364,160
Less accumulated depreciation  
 and amortization  (249,639) (165,856)

Net fixed assets  $206,393 $198,304

NOTE 5:
Deposits

At December 31, 2008 the scheduled maturities of all time deposits were  
as follows.

2009    $229,863,000
2010    54,986,000
2011    81,559,000

Total    $366,408,000

All time deposits are in denominations of less than $100,000 and have been  
originated through Certificate of Deposit Broker relationships. The weighted  
average interest rate of deposits outstanding at December 31, 2008 was 3.85%.
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NOTE 6:
Income Taxes

Income taxes are summarized as follows.

 2008 2007 2006

Current
Federal $2,979,078 $4,770,556 $3,168,568
State  476,433 737,776 489,231
Deferred
Federal (592,725) (1,263,743) 730,160
State  (87,165) (185,844) —

Net provision for income taxes $2,775,621 $4,058,745 $4,387,959

The following table reconciles the provision for income taxes to the US 
federal statutory income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2008, 
2007, and 2006.

 2008 2007 2006

US federal statutory tax rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State taxes 5.6 4.3 4.6
Prior year under (over) accrual — 4.0 7.4
Other  0.3 (4.7) (4.4)

Effective income tax rate 39.9% 37.6% 41.6%

The Bank files its tax returns on a separate company basis.

Deferred tax balances reflected in the balance sheet were as follows.

  2008 2007

Provision for loan losses  $4,031,258 $2,727,106
Loan origination fees  (2,265,914) (1,768,963)
Unrealized (gains) losses on investments  23,993 (14,465)
Other   (139,825) (12,513)

Net deferred tax asset (liability)  $1,649,512 $ 931,165

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers 
whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred 
tax assets will not be realized. The realization of deferred tax assets is 
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods 
in which temporary differences, as determined pursuant to SFAS No. 109, 
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” become deductible. Management considers 
the reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and 
tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Management’s evaluation  
of the realizability of deferred tax assets must consider both positive and 
negative evidence. The weight given to the potential effects of positive 
and negative evidence is based on the extent to which it can be objectively 
verified. Based on these considerations, no valuation allowance was deemed 
necessary as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

NOTE 7:
Other Transactions with Affiliates

The Bank’s taxi medallion, asset-based commercial, and certain other con-
struction loans aggregated $204,055,000 and $163,816,000 at December 
31, 2008 and 2007. These loans are marketed and serviced by the affiliates. 
The Bank paid $1,492,000, $1,395,000, and $1,327,000 for loan servicing 
fees to affiliates for 2008, 2007, and 2006. Origination fees of $804,000, 
$529,000, and $540,000 were capitalized as deferred costs and will be 
amortized to interest income over the life of the loan for 2008, 2007, and 
2006. Amortization costs were $680,000, $526,000, and $567,000 for 
2008, 2007, and 2006.

As part of the settlement for the purchase of the taxi medallion loans, the 
Bank issued a subordinated promissory note to Medallion for $305,553 in 
2004. The promissory note is interest bearing at the rate of 3 month Libor 
(1.43% at December 31, 2008) plus 125 basis points, adjustable quarterly, 
interest paid monthly. The promissory note will be used to cover any loss 
that may arise in the taxi medallion loan purchased portfolio. The note was 
paid down to $105,553 in 2006. The remaining balance of the promissory 
note will be repaid to Medallion after the purchased portfolio has liquidated. 
Interest expense of $5,000, $7,000, and $16,000 was paid on this note for 
2008, 2007, and 2006.

At December 31, 2008, the Bank owed $130,000 to affiliates for origination 
fees, monthly servicing fees on loans, charges for corporate overhead, legal 
and business development expenses due to the affiliates, partially offset by 
payments due the Bank from collection of loan payments by affiliates. At 
December 31, 2007, the Bank was owed $1,120,000 for collections of loan 
payments by affiliates, partially offset by origination fees, monthly servicing 
fees on loans, charges for corporate overhead, and legal and business devel-
opment expenses due to the affiliates.

The bank reimbursed the parent for expenses incurred on its behalf of 
$192,000, $173,000, and $167,000 for 2008, 2007, and 2006.

NOTE 8:
401(k) Plan

The Bank participates in the 401(k) plan offered by Medallion. The 401(k) 
Plan covers all full and part-time employees of the Bank who have attained 
the age of 21 and have a minimum of one year of service. Under the 401(k) 
Plan, an employee may elect to defer not less than 1% and no more than 
15% of the total annual compensation that would otherwise be paid to the 
employee, provided however, that employees’ contributions may not exceed 
certain maximum amounts determined under the Internal Revenue Code. 
Employee contributions are invested in various mutual funds according 
to the directions of the employee. At the discretion of Medallion’s Board 
of Directors, the Bank can provide for employer matching contributions. 
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Medallion has elected to match employee contributions up to one-third of 
the employee’s contribution, but not greater than 2% of the portion of the 
employee’s annual salary eligible for 401(k) benefits. For the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Bank provided $20,000, $15,000, 
and $11,000 in employer matching, which amount is included in salaries 
and benefits expense on the accompanying statement of operations.

NOTE 9:
Commitments and Contingencies

Lines of credit — At December 31, 2008, the Bank had unsecured Federal 
Funds lines with correspondent banks of $25,000,000.

Loans — At December 31, 2008, the Bank had commitments to extend 
credit of $31,083,000 to asset-based customers as long as there is no violation 
of any condition established in the contract. The Bank had commitments to 
extend credit of $526,000 to real estate customers for unfunded amounts.

Leases — The Bank leases office space under a non-cancelable operating 
lease that expires November 2012. Rental expense related to the lease was 
$120,000, $111,000, and $112,000 for the years ended December 31, 
2008, 2007, and 2006. The Bank has the option to extend the lease term  
for an additional five years.

Future minimum lease payments under this operating lease as of December 
31, 2008 were as follows:

2009    $122,880
2010    125,446
2011    129,208
2012    121,691
2013    —

Total    $499,225

NOTE 10:
Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements adminis-
tered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Utah 
Department of Financial Institutions (UDFI). Failure to meet minimum 
capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct 
material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy 
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, 
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative 
measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items 
as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital 
amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the 
bank regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy 
require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios as defined in 
the regulations (set forth in the table below). Additionally, as conditions 
of granting the Bank’s application for federal deposit insurance, the FDIC 
ordered that beginning paid-in-capital funds of not less than $22,000,000 
be provided, and that a ratio of Tier 1 Capital as defined in section 325.2 
of the FDIC Rules and Regulations (12 C.F.R. § 325.2), to total assets of 
not less than 15% will be maintained, and an adequate allowance for loan 
losses shall be maintained and no dividends shall be paid throughout the 
first three years of operation. As of December 31, 2008, the Bank’s Tier 1 
leverage capital ratio was 14.7%, below the FDIC mandated 15%, and as a 
result, in January 2009, $1,750,000 of capital was contributed by the parent 
to the Bank.

The Bank’s actual and the regulatory minimum capital amounts and ratios 
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are presented in the following tables.

   Minimum To be 
   Well Capitalized Under 
  Minimum for Capital Prompt Corrective 
 Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

As of December 31, 2008 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) $63,808,000 14.7% $17,383,400 4.0% $21,729,250 5.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 63,808,000 15.3 16,723,560 4.0 25,085,340 6.0
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 69,105,000 16.5 33,447,120 8.0 41,808,900 10.0

   Minimum To be 
   Well Capitalized Under 
  Minimum for Capital Prompt Corrective 
 Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

As of December 31, 2007 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) $54,869,000 15.8% $13,884,440 4.0% $17,355,550 5.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 54,869,000 16.3 13,444,120 4.0 20,166,180 6.0
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 59,109,000 17.6 26,888,240 8.0 33,610,300 10.0
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NOTE 11:
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 107, “Disclosures About 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (SFAS 107) requires disclosure of 
fair value information about certain financial instruments, whether assets, 
liabilities, or off-balance-sheet commitments, if practicable. The following 
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class 
of financial instrument. Fair value estimates that were derived from broker 
quotes cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in 
many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument.

(a) Loans — Current market value most closely approximates book value.

(b) Investments — The Bank’s investments are recorded at the estimated 
fair value of such investments.

(c) Cash — book value equals market value.

(d) Floating rate borrowings — Due to the short-term nature of these 
instruments, the carrying amount approximates fair value.

(e) Commitments to extend credit — The fair value of commitments to 
extend credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into simi-
lar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements 
and present creditworthiness of the counter parties. For fixed rate loan com-
mitments, fair value also includes a consideration of the difference between 
the current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. At December 31, 
2008 and 2007, the estimated fair value of these off-balance-sheet instru-
ments was not material.

(f ) Fixed rate borrowings — The fair value of time deposits issued is  
estimated based on current market interest rates for similar debt.

 December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

 Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Value Amount Value

Financial Assets
Loans  $396,103 $396,103 $315,108 $315,108
Investment securities 20,088 20,088 21,838 21,838
Cash  9,401 9,401 17,025 17,025
Financial Liabilities
Funds borrowed 366,408 366,408 302,906 302,906

NOTE 12:
Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring  
fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the quality of inputs 
used to measure fair value, and enhances disclosure requirements for fair 
value measurements.

In accordance with SFAS No. 157, the Bank has categorized its financial 
instruments, based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique, 
into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the  
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or  
liabilities (level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3).

As required by SFAS No. 157, when the inputs used to measure fair value 
fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the level within which the fair 
value measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For example, a level 
3 fair value measurement may include inputs that are observable (level 1 and 
2) and unobservable (level 3). Therefore gains and losses for such assets and 
liabilities categorized within the level 3 table below may include changes in 
fair value that are attributable to both observable inputs (level 1 and 2) and 
unobservable inputs (level 3).

Financial assets and liabilities recorded on the balance sheets are categorized 
based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted 
quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market that the 
Bank has the ability to access (examples include active exchange-traded 
equity securities, exchanged-traded derivatives, most US Government and 
agency securities, and certain other sovereign government obligations).

Level 2. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on quoted 
prices in markets that are not active or model inputs that are observable 
either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or  
liability. Level 2 inputs include the following:

A)  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets (for  
example, restricted stock);

B)  Quoted price for identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active 
markets (for example, corporate and municipal bonds, which trade 
infrequently);

C)  Pricing models whose inputs are observable for substantially the full  
term of the asset or liability (examples include most over-the-counter 
derivatives, including interest rate and currency swaps); and

D)  Pricing models whose inputs are derived principally from or corrobo-
rated by observable market data through correlation or other means 
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability (examples include 
certain residential and commercial mortgage-related assets, including 
loans, securities and derivatives).

Level 3. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on prices 
or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable 
and significant to the overall fair value measurement. These inputs reflect 
management’s own assumptions about the assumptions a market participant 
would use in pricing the assets or liability (examples include certain private 
equity investments, certain residential and commercial mortgage-related  
assets (including loans, securities, and derivatives), and long-dated or complex 
derivatives including certain equity derivatives and long-dated options on 
gas and power).
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Changes in the observability of valuation inputs may result in a reclassification  
for certain financial assets or liabilities. Reclassifications impacting level 3  
of the fair value hierarchy are reported as transfers in/out of the level 3 category.

The following table presents the Bank’s fair value hierarchy for those assets 
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December  
31, 2008.

(Dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Available-for-sale investment securities (1) $ — $20,088 $ — $20,088

(1) Total realized and unrealized gains (losses) of ($64) were included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for 2008 related to these assets.

The following table presents the Bank’s fair value hierarchy for those assets  
and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of December  
31, 2008.

(Dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets (1)

Impaired loans $ — $ — $3,935 $3,935

(1) Total unrealized losses of $571 for impaired loans were included in income for 2008 related to these assets.

See Note 1 for further discussion of valuation techniques used in measuring 
fair value.

NOTE 13:
Subsequent Events — Troubled Assets Relief Program (TARP)

On February 27, 2009, the Bank issued and sold, and the US Treasury  
purchased under the TARP Capital Purchase Program (the CPP), (1)  
11,800 shares of the Bank’s Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred 
Stock, Series A, and (2) a warrant (the Warrant), which was immediately 
exercised, to purchase up to 590 shares of the Bank’s Fixed Rate Non- 
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series B, for an aggregate purchase 
price of approximately $11,800,000 in cash. The liquidation preference of 
both Series is $1,000 per share.

The securities were sold in a private placement exempt from SEC registration.

Non-cumulative dividends on the Series A shares will accrue on the liquida-
tion preference at a rate of 5% per annum for the first five years, and at a rate  
of 9% per annum thereafter, and the dividends on the Series B shares will 
accrue on the liquidation preference at a rate of 9% per annum, both, if, 
as, and when declared by the Bank’s Board of Directors out of funds legally 
available thereof. The Preferred Shares have no maturity date and rank 
senior to the Bank’s common stock (and pari passu with one another) with 
respect to the payment of dividends and distributions and amounts payable 
upon liquidation, dissolution, and winding up of the Bank. The Bank’s 
Articles of Amendments provide that, subject to the approval of the FDIC, 
the Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the Bank at 100% of 
their liquidation preference plus declared and unpaid dividends, provided, 
however, that the Preferred Shares may be redeemed prior to February 27, 
2012 only if (i) the Bank has raised aggregate gross proceeds in one or more 
Qualified Equity Offerings, as defined, of at least $3,097,500 and (ii) the 

aggregate redemption price does not exceed the aggregate net proceeds from 
such offerings. The Series B shares cannot be redeemed until the Series A 
shares have been redeemed.

On February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (the ARRA) was signed into law. The ARRA, among other things, 
directs the US Treasury to permit CPP participants to redeem the preferred 
stock issued under the CPP without first requiring a Qualified Equity Offer-
ing, upon consultation with the appropriate Federal banking agency.

The agreements between the Bank and the US Treasury pursuant to which 
the Preferred Shares and the Warrant were sold contain limitations on the 
payment of common stock dividends to a quarterly rate of $1.00 per share 
or $1,000,000, and on the Bank’s ability to repurchase its common stock, 
and subjects the Bank and Medallion to certain of the executive compensa-
tion limitations and requirements included in the Emergency Economic 
Stabilization Act of 2008 (the EESA). As a condition to the closing of the 
transaction, Medallion and its senior executive officers have agreed to all 
terms and conditions.

The ARRA amends the EESA to require the US Treasury to issue additional 
executive compensation standards applicable to CPP participants (which 
may include parent companies such as Medallion), which will include, 
among other things, the repayment by the senior executive officers and 
other highly compensated employees of bonus amounts if the bonus was 
based on materially inaccurate financial information or other criteria and the 
prohibition of the payment or accrual of any bonus to the institution’s highest 
paid executive officer except through restricted stock with delayed vesting 
and subject to dollar limits. The ARRA further requires CPP participants 
to permit stockholders to vote on a non-binding resolution approving the 
institution’s compensation of executives.
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of Medallion Bank

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Medallion Bank (the 
“Bank”) (a wholly owned subsidiary of Medallion Financial Corp.) as of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related statements of operations and 
other comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholder’s equity, and cash 
flows for each of the three years in the three-year period ended December 
31, 2008. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 
2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each 
of the three years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2008, in 
conformity with US generally accepted accounting principles.

Weiser LLP
New York, New York
March 13, 2009

REpORT OF INDEpENDENT REgISTERED pubLIC ACCOuNTINg FIRM
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CuMuLATIvE TOTAL RETuRN

The following graph commences as of December 31, 2003 and compares 
the Company’s total stockholder return on its Common Stock with the 
cumulative total return for the NASDAQ Composite Index and the Russell 
2000 Index. Furthermore, the following graph assumes the investment of 

$100 on December 31, 2003 in each of the Company’s Common Stock, the 
stocks comprising the NASDAQ Composite Index and the Russell 2000 
Index and assumes dividends are reinvested.

 Dividends Declared High Low

2008
Fourth Quarter $0.19 $  9.84 $ 5.58
Third Quarter 0.19 10.66 8.96
Second Quarter 0.19 10.04 8.31
First Quarter 0.19 10.33 9.04

2007
Fourth Quarter $0.19 $11.00 $  9.70
Third Quarter 0.19 12.00 10.39
Second Quarter 0.19 12.43 11.15
First Quarter 0.19 12.34 10.80
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